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Every dark cloud has a silver lining,
every economy, organization, business, family and

even individuals live through challenges and success.

The nectar of success is always sweetest when you rise above
the challenges and Shine Brighter.

It has been a challenging year for us.
We thank all of you for staying together, walking together and

now as we are ready to take new leaps
We as SRS promise each member of SRS Parivar that the

GROWTH WILL ALWAYS BE TOGETHER.

SUN RISING SOON!

www.srspar i var. com



SRS LIMITED IN BRIEF

- Chris Hadfield

Ultimately, leadership is not about glorious crowing acts,
it’s about keeping your team focused on a goal and motivated to do
their best to achieve it, especially when the stakes are high and the

consequences really matter.
It is about laying the groundwork for other’ success, and then standing 

back and letting them shine.

SRS Limited is the flagship company of SRS Group.

SRS Limited is a diversifed company covering sectors like Gold & Jewellery,

Cinemas, Retail and Food & Beverages.
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MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN

CHAIRMANDR. ANIL JINDAL

Your Company SRS, since 2000 has remained an inseparable part of Indian consumer's daily life. In consonance with the Group's spirit 

of trust, quality and perseverance, SRS has continuously strived to reinvent itself in tune with changing times. 

In addition to our business goals and commitment to drive shareholder value, your company is focused on playing its role as a 

responsible corporate citizen. We continue to contribute towards initiatives that drive societal change in the communities where we 

operate, while ensuring that our growth is sustainable.

Unarguably, the road ahead is filled with challenges and opportunities. We are fully equipped to grab the opportunities and face any 

challenges the market throws up. The year 2017-18, therefore, will be a year of consolidation and laying the foundation for a growth 

path. The Government’s determination to remove the obstacles to economic growth is encouraging. Let us pray for a burst of consistent 

growth that our country needs, growth driven by our efforts and commitment to serve the Indian masses. Our company’s plans of 

generating greater returns will continue and I would like you to remain with us amidst the unfavourable circumstances.

With this, I would like to conclude my speech.

I once again thank you for your continued support.I would also like to thank other stakeholders – our clients, vendors and partners – for 

their trust and support.

Regards!

(Dr. Anil Jindal)

Chairman

As a Group,

we stand committed

to the values of integrity, 

excellence, respect, 

teamwork and trust.

Our values have 

transcended the barriers 

of time and continue to 

inspire the way we operate 

our businesses, engage 

with our stakeholders and 

shape our future. 

Dear Shareholders, 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I welcome you all to the 17th Annual General 

Meeting of your company. Thank you for your presence here today, and for your 

continued support that is critical to the success of our company. The fiscal 2016-17 

was probably the most challenging year for us, we recorded reduction in revenues. 

Fierce global economy is under significant stress and the economic inertia is 

smothering India's growth rates and creating a dismal investment horizon. We, at 

SRS, are thinking harder, putting in efforts and running the extra mile to counter a 

not-too-exciting business outlook.

Your company’s performance in the last fiscal illustrates the challenges faced by 

the industry, we have a presence in. The phenomenal impact that digital 

technology is having on businesses around the world is creating exciting and 

viable new opportunities. However, capitalizing on this opportunity requires a 

strong focus on innovation and collaboration.  

While these are aggressive and ambitious goals, the Board strongly believes that 

these are eminently achievable through game changing initiatives. This will of 

course not be easy. These goals have to be viewed in the context of significant 

external and internal challenges. Markets are volatile, business models are 

changing rapidly, new capabilities need to be built and the organization needs to 

adapt with great agility. Our turnover is reduced to 27% with a loss of Rs.160.50 

Crore and Share price has come down to very low. However, with focused energy, 

creativity and discipline many new initiatives will begin to show tangible results. 

We had approached National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for extension of time 

to repay the depositor. The order was passed; however, we are not able to totally 

comply with that due to the poor financial health of the company. 

Since April 2016, your Company is facing liquidity problems; brand image of the 

company was affected. We were unable to repay secured/unsecured debts, 

rendering the accounts under NPA category. Numerous losses incurred during the 

F.Y.2016-2017 entailing turnover reduction, and resignation of Senior and 

middle-level staff.

The following measures have been taken to revive the financial health of the 

Company:

• Selling of Shares by Promoters

• Closure of business of FZC, Dubai

• Consolidation of verticals/business

As a Group, we stand committed to the values of integrity, excellence, respect, 

teamwork and trust. Our values have transcended the barriers of time and 

continue to inspire the way we operate our businesses, engage with our 

stakeholders and shape our future. 
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

GLOBAL AND INDIAN ECONOMY
The global economy has seen an upheaval, through dramatic 
deterioration in oil prices, an unprecedented hike in the value of the 
dollar. China being blemished with a slowdown, pallor of ambiguity 
has fallen on Europe and US monetary policy undergoing a change.  
There has been a quick deviation between monetary policy in the 
United States and policy in other major economies, leading to rate 
volatility. These  result in an assortment of deviating performances: 
The US economy appears to be on a path to progress; Europe is 
finally improving; China is slowing, but the government is 
becoming more proactive; Japan is recovering, but doubts remain 
about nonmonetary policy; India is optimising the investor wave.

India has already made its presence felt as the fastest growing 
major economy. The Government of India has forecasted that the 
Indian economy will grow by 7.1 per cent in FY 2016-17. As per the 
Economic Survey 2016-17, the Indian economy should grow 
between 6.75 and 7.5 per cent in FY 2017-18. The improvement in 
India’s economic fundamentals has accelerated in the year 2015 
with the collective impact of strong government reforms, Reserve 
Bank of India's (RBI) inflation focus supported by compassionate 
global commodity prices.

India's consumer confidence index stood at 136 in the fourth 
quarter of 2016, topping the global list of countries on the same 
parameter, as a result of strong consumer sentiment, according to 
market research agency, Nielsen.

The Global Economy
Global growth will receive an uplift from lower oil prices, 
which reflect to an important extent higher supply.

• Global growth in 2015–16 is projected at 3.5 and 3.7 percent, 
downward revisions of 0.3 percent relative to the October 
2014 World Economic Outlook (WEO). 

• The distribution of risks to global growth is more balanced 
than in October.

MARKET SIZE

India's gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 7 per cent 
year-on-year in October-December 2016 quarter, which is the 
strongest among G-20 countries, as per Organisation for Economic 
Co-operation and Development (OECD) Economic Survey of India, 
2017. According to IMF World Economic Outlook Update (January 
2017), Indian economy is expected to grow at 7.2 per cent during 

FY 2016-17 and further accelerate to 7.7 per cent during FY 
2017-18.

The tax collection figures between April 2016 and January 2017 
show an increase in Net Indirect taxes by 16.9 per cent and an 
increase in Net Direct Taxes by 10.79 per cent year-on-year, indicat-
ing a steady trend of healthy growth. The total number of e-filed 
Income Tax Returns rose 21 per cent year-on-year to 42.1 million in 
2016-17 (till 28.02.17), whereas the number of e-returns processed 
during the same period stood at 43 million.

Corporate earnings in India are expected to grow by over 20 per 
cent in FY 2017-18 supported by normalisation of profits, especially 
in sectors like automobiles and banks, while GDP is expected to 
grow by 7.5 per cent during the same period, according to 
Bloomberg consensus.

India's labour force is expected to touch 160-170 million by 2020, 
based on rate of population growth, increased labour force partici-
pation, and higher education enrolment, among other factors, 
according to a study by ASSOCHAM and Thought Arbitrage 
Research Institute.

India's foreign exchange reserves stood at US$ 366.781 billion as on 
March 17, 2017 as compared to US$ 360 billion by end of March 
2016, according to data from the RBI.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

With the improvement in the economic scenario, there have been 
various investments leading to increased M&A activity. Some of 
them are as follows:

M&A activity in India more than doubled year-on-year to reach US$ 
61.26 billion in 2016-17. Early-stage start-ups in India are expected 
to raise US$ 800 million in 2017, due to greater focus on profitabili-
ty and sustainable growth, as per a report by InnoVen Capital.

NITI Aayog, Department of Industrial Policy & Promotion (DIPP) and 
Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) launched an “India Innova-
tion Index” in line with the Global Innovation Index (GII) to rank 
states based on innovation by capturing innovation data from all 
Indian states and updating them regularly.

The Union Cabinet, Government of India, has approved the Central 
Goods and Services Tax (CGST), Integrated GST (IGST), Union 
Territory GST (UTGST) and Compensation Bill.  

The Union Cabinet has approved a memorandum of understanding 
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(MoU) between India and United Arab Emirates (UAE), aimed at 

enhancing cooperation in the field of small and medium enterpris-

es (SMEs) between the two countries, and thereby providing an 

opportunity for the Indian SMEs to improve and innovate further.

The Union Cabinet has approved MoU between India and the 

African Asian Rural Development Organisation (AARDO), to 

implement capacity building programmes for rural development.

The Union Cabinet has approved  MoU between India and Hungary, 

aimed at improving bilateral cooperation in the field of water 

management, which is expected to develop relations between 

public and private organizations concerning water resources of 

both the countries. 

The Government of India and the Government of the United States 

of America have signed MoU to enhance cooperation on energy 

security, clean energy and climate change through increased 

bilateral engagement and further joint initiatives for promoting 

sustainable growth.

The Government of India plans to auction 280 mines with an 

estimated mineral value of over Rs 10 lakh crore (US$ 153.64 

billion) in the fiscal year 2017-18, and also use drone technology to 

prepare topography maps and inspect mines.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

The Government of India announced demonetisation of high 

denomination bank notes of Rs 1000 and Rs 500, with effect from 

November 8, 2016, in order to eliminate black money and the 

growing menace of fake Indian currency notes, thereby creating 

opportunities for improvement in economic growth.

In the Union Budget 2017-18, the Finance Minister, Mr Arun Jaitley, 

verified that the major push of the budget proposals is on growth 

stimulation, providing relief to the middle class, providing 

affordable housing, curbing black money, digitalisation of the 

economy, enhancing transparency in political funding and 

simplifying the tax administration in the country.

Numerous foreign companies are setting up their facilities in India 

on account of various government initiatives like Make in India and 

Digital India. Mr. Narendra Modi, Prime Minister of India, has 

launched the Make in India initiative with an aim to boost the 

manufacturing sector of Indian economy, to increase the purchas-

ing power of an average Indian consumer, which would further 

boost demand, and hence spur development, in addition to 

benefiting investors. 

Some of the recent initiatives and developments undertaken by 

the government are listed below:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has launched a Simplified 

Proforma for Incorporating Company Electronically (SPICE), aimed 

at providing speedy services for incorporation to bring ease of 

doing business in the country on par with global norms.

The Government of India has unveiled a new Urban Development 

strategy for the next 20 years, aimed at development of rural and 

urban areas, providing housing for the urban poor and ensuring 

gender equity in the country among other objectives. 

The Government of India has raised Rs 30,000 crore (US$ 4.61 

billion) through disinvestment proceeds, the highest amount 

raised via stake sales, and further aims to meet the disinvestment 

target of Rs 56,500 crore (US$ 8.68 billion) for the year, as per Mr 

Neeraj Gupta, Secretary, Department of Investment and Public 

Asset Management (DIPAM).

The Government of India along with its investment promotion 

agency, Invest India, are in discussion with around 300 Indian and 

foreign companies to channelize investments worth US$ 62 billion, 

which will help create over 1.7 million job opportunities in India. 

The Union Cabinet, Government of India, has approved Rs 10,000 

crore (US$ 1.53 billion) initial corpus for the Fund of Funds for 

Start-ups (FFS) established in June 2016. 

Government of India has positioned sustainability as the core of 

India’s development. To achieve this, the government aims to 

promote education, skill development, digital connectivity and 

entrepreneurship in a sustainable method.

The Ministry of Housing and Urban Poverty Alleviation, Govern-

ment of India, has approved the construction of 1,17,814 affordable 

houses for the urban poor and will provide an assistance of Rs 1,816 

crore (US$ 279 million) under the Prime Minister’s Awas Yojana 

(Urban).

The Ministry of Women and Children Development, Government of 

India, plans to execute the Integrated Child Development Services 

(ICDS) Scheme, Scheme for Adolescent Girls (AGs) and Maternity 

Benefit Programme (MBP), to deal with the problem of malnutri-

tion in the country. The Government has released funds worth Rs 

23,092 crore (US$ 3.53 billion) to States and Union Territories, to aid 

the cause.

ROAD AHEAD

According to The World Bank, the Indian economy will likely grow at 

7 per cent in 2016-17, followed by further acceleration to 7.6 per 

cent in 2017-18 and 7.8 per cent in 2018-19. Demonetisation is 

expected to have a positive impact on the Indian economy, which 

will help foster a clean and digitised economy in the long run, 

according to Ms Kristalina Georgieva, Chief Executive Officer, The 

World Bank. India is expected to be the third largest consumer 

economy as its consumption may triple to US$ 4 trillion by 2025, 

owing to shift in consumer behaviour and expenditure pattern, 

according to a Boston Consulting Group (BCG) report.
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JEWELLERY
REPORT (2016-17)

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

INTRODUCTION
India is known for its love for ornaments and hence the Gems and 
Jewellery sector plays a significant role in the economy. In fact, it 
contributes to around 6-7 per cent of the country’s GDP, churning 
out a handsome amount to thrive. Considered as one of the fastest 
growing sectors, it is intrinsically export and labour intensive.

India has uplifted itself to emerge as the hub of the global jewellery 
market. This was facilitated by low expenditure and availability of 
high-skilled labour. India is the world’s largest cutting and polishing 
centre for diamonds, with the government policies backing up the 
diamond-centric operations. Moreover, India exports 95 per cent of 
the world’s diamonds, as per statistics from the Gems and Jewellery 
Export promotion Council (GJEPC).

The Government of India has declared the Gems and Jewellery 
sector as a focus area for export promotion, keeping its potential for 
growth and value addition into contention. The Government has 
lately adopted a plethora measures to endorse investments and 
upgrade technology/skills, in turn promoting ‘Brand India’ in the 
international market. The Indian government presently allows 100 
per cent Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in the sector through the 
automatic route

MARKET SIZE
The gems and jewellery market in India houses more than 500,000 
players, majority weighing towards small players. India is 
considered as one of the largest exporters of gems and jewellery 
industry. The sector plays a vital role in the Indian economy, 
contributing a major chunk to the total foreign reserves of the 
country, with UAE, US, Russia, Singapore, Hong Kong, Latin America 
and China being the biggest importers of Indian jewellery. India’s 
gems and jewellery exports to the US rose 7.81 per cent 
year-on-year during October-December 2016, that can be 
contributed to revival in the overall economic activity in the US.

The overall net exports during April-December 2016 stood at Rs 
175,879.24 crore (US$ 26.28 billion), whereas exports of cut and 
polished diamonds stood at Rs 113,171.17 crore (US$ 16.91 billion). 
Exports of gold coins and medallions stood at Rs 25,819.48 crore 
(US$ 3.86 billion) and silver jewellery export stood at Rs 18,010.72 
crore (US$ 2.69 billion) during April-December 2016.

INVESTMENTS/DEVELOPMENTS
The Gems and Jewellery sector is being a host to changes in 
consumer preferences. This can be contributed to adoption of 
western lifestyle, consumers are demanding more in terms of 
designs and varieties in jewellery. Here, branded jewellers are able 
to fulfil their changing demands better than the local unorganised 
players. Also, increase in per capita income has led to an increase in 
sales of jewellery, as jewellery is the unwritten status symbol in 
India.

SOME OF THE KEY INVESTMENTS IN THIS INDUSTRY ARE:
Recently, the International Institute of Diamond Grading & 
Research (IIDGR) has invested US$ 5 million for expansion of  its 
synthetic diamond testing facility in Surat.

Kalyan Jewellers is set to invest Rs 500 crore (US$ 75 million), in 
hopes to launch 15 new showrooms in 2017, adding to their  
upcoming expansion in Northern and Eastern regions of India, 
alongside going global  in West Asia. They also have plans to invest 
Rs 900 crore (US$ 133.55 million) over the next three years to 
increase their presence in the international markets like Sri Lanka, 
Singapore and Malaysia. Also, The India arm of US private equity 
(PE) firm Warburg Pincus picked up a minority stake in Kalyan, with 
plans to fund its retail and manufacturing expansion plans.

London’s ultra-luxury jeweller for the affluent, Faberge, has decided 
to infiltrate the Indian market as Delhi and Mumbai, India’s 
economic hotspots will be Faberge’s beachhead in the country.  The 
jeweller plans to sell its products by select trunk shows for the 
uber-rich.

Melorra, a Bengaluru-based  premium online jewellery start-up, has 
successfully raised US$ 5 million funding from venture capital firm 
Lightbox Ventures, for brand cultivation, technology development 
and talent acquisition.

Major mining companies such as Rio Tinto, De Beers and Alrosa 
have set their bases up in Indian Diamond Trading Centre (IDTC) , 
to eliminate the middlemen in diamond trade and allow Indian 
manufacturers to deal directly with miners.

India Bullion and Jewellers Association (IBJA) has signed a pact 
with the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in setting up India’s first 
bullion exchange through a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV). In this 
collaboration IBJA and its constituents will hold 70 per cent and BSE 
will hold 30 per cent stake.
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Jewellery major Joyalukkas surges ahead and invest Rs 1,500 crore 
(US$ 220.08 million) on setting up 20 stores in India and 10 
overseas. The new stores, will add to the Thrissur-headquartered 
company's existing 95 outlets.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES
In the Union Budget 2017-18, the Government of India, presented 
tax cuts for the middle class and other sections of society (5 per 
cent for the Rs 250,000-500,000 tax slab; which was 10 per cent 
initially), increasing the rate of consumption. Also, the Government 
of India’s proposal to cut corporate tax rates to 25 per cent for micro, 
small and medium enterprises (MSMEs), will embolden a large 
number of gems and jewellery exporters from MSME category.

The recent move of demonetisation is encouraging people to use 
plastic money, debit/ credit cards for all sorts of purchases. This, in 
turn, is beneficial for the industry, creating more transparency and 
a better channel of flow

In a move to embolden the industry, Reserve Bank of India has 
announced norms for gold monetisation scheme, allowing 
individuals, trusts and mutual funds to deposit gold with banks in 
return for interest. This reduces gold imports and assuages pressure 
on trade balance, profiting traders, while liberalising gold import 
norms. Now, star and premier export houses can import the 
commodity, while banks and nominated agencies will offer gold for 
domestic use as loans to bullion traders and jewellers.

India has recently signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) 
with Russia; sourcing data on diamond trade between the two 
countries, where India is the top global processor of diamonds, 
while Russia is the largest rough diamond producer. The 
Government also plans to establish a special zone with tax benefits 
for diamond import and trading in Mumbai. This is a conscious 
effort to develop the city as a rival to Antwerp and Dubai, which are 
currently the top trading hubs for diamond.

Due to shortage of skilled manpower, the Gems and Jewellery Skill 
Council of India is planning to train over four million people till 
2022. 

ROAD AHEAD
In the coming years, growth in Gems and Jewellery sector would be 
parallel to the ongoing development of large retailers/brands, as 
established brands are guiding the organised market. Increasing 
penetration of organised players facilitates variety in terms of 
products and designs. The improvement in availability along with 
the reintroduction of low cost gold metal loans, the relaxation of 
restrictions of gold imports and likely stabilisation of gold prices at 
lower levels is expected to drive volume growth for jewellers over 
short to medium term. 

India’s total exports ($ billion)

India’s share in world exports (%) 2011The Pie Gets
Smaller
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12

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16
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SRS JEWELLS

Since the foundation of SRS Jewells in 2008, it has grown to new 

heights and has been highly successful in trading and exporting 

real diamond fashion jewellery as well as gold jewellery to 

beautifully adorn, gift and compliment women of the community. 

At SRS Jewells, we pride ourselves for showcasing wide variety of 

ornaments for our consumers ranging from pieces such as studded 

earring, bangles, bracelets, designer sets etc. SRS retails Hallmark 

jewellery to give the best value and peace of mind to the 

consumers, our products comes with assured guarantee of purity 

and elegance. We focus on enhancing the beauty and style of 

women across ages by combining the essences of traditional and 

contemporary jewellery.

The jewellery industry is one of the fastest growing sectors in the 

market and plays a significant role in the Indian economy 

contributing close to 6% to 7% of the country’s GDP. However, in the 

fiscal year 2016 to 2017 the industry as a whole suffered massive 

setbacks because of an immense excise duty imposed by the 

Central Government. This decision by authorities led to 

All-India-Jewellers union going off on a strike for two months 

which affected the sector tremendously, with heavy-weights such 

as SRS, Tanishq and Nakshatra facing financial crisis.

The other major national news of the year was the announcement 

of demonetization by the NDA government. Fortunately, 

demonetization had minimal impact for organized jewellers across 

India. However, due to demonetization, the ticket prices on gold 

jewellery, especially were decreased due to limitations of the use of 

pan cards by consumers.Interestingly, it has been noticed that there 

was an exponential increase in consumers purchasing products 

through the medium of credit and debit cards. With the 

implementation of the Goods and Service tax we shall wait and see 

how this will impact the industry at hand.  The GST council has 

provided a special 3% GST to the gems and jewellery sector. 

Prominent business experts state that the immediate consequence 

of the implementation of the GST reform would be faced majorly by 

consumers, as buying jewellery especially gold will become more 

expensive. This increase is attributed due to the resale value of gold 

becoming 3% less.

Nonetheless, the other trends witnessed in the market is that there 

was a higher demand shown in the market for plain gold jewellery 

with low making charges in comparison to  studded and fashion 

jewellery. The reason attributed to this is because many consumers 

believe gold to be a more beneficial investment in comparison to 

other ornaments.  This season the prime festivals for the industry 

sector such as Dhanteras and Akshyatritiya did very well as stores 

across India produced good revenue profit. Also,Light weight 

jewellery was identified with a high growth rate movement in the 

market as well.

Yet, along with some setbacks there were some positives news as 

well. SRS Jewells is deeply humbled to be awarded for delivering 

the best consumer experience in North India by the Platinum Guild 

Council in 2016. We promise to diligently strive to deliver our 

consumers with the world’s finest quality of gold and diamond 

jewellery.

Turnover of the segment has been reduced from Rs.3389.84 Crore 

in FY 2015-16 to Rs.681.03 Crore  in 2016-17, there is loss of 

Rs.81.44 Crore of the segment in comparison to the profit of Rs. 

125.11 crore in the previous year.

Although the significant losses have had a dampening effect on the 

group, it was temporary. We have decided to adopt consolidation 

measures in emboldening our efforts rather than running after 

expansions. Hence, we would be remodelling the existing stores, 

enhancing their profitability before taking another bold step.
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SRS Jewlls Retail Showrooms

1 Delhi SRS Jewells, 2129-2130, Gurdwara Road, Opp Post office, Karol Bagh, New Delhi

2 Ghaziabad SRS Jewells, G-9-10,  F -8, Krishna apra shopping plaza, Near Shipra Mall,  Indirapuram, GHZ (U.P)

3 Faridabad SRS Jewells , SCF Plot No. A -6 , Nehru Ground , NIT Faridabad. 

4 Faridabad SRS Jewells , SRS Mall, Sec -12,  Ground floor, Faridabad. 

S.No. Unit Name Address

SRS Jewells Wholesale O�ices

1 Delhi 1165, 2nd Floor, Kucha Mahajani, Chandni Chowk, Delhi.

2 Delhi S-4, 2nd Floor, Building No. 2609, Corner Building, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi

S.No. Unit Name Address
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INDIAN MEDIA
REPORT
(WITH A SPECIAL LOOK ON MULTIPLEXES)

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

INTRODUCTION

The Indian Media and Entertainment (M&E) industry is a dawning 

sector and making rapid growth strides. Proving its buoyancy to 

global scene, the Indian M&E industry is on the upstream currents 

of a sturdy phase of growth, backed by intensifying consumer 

demand and recovering advertising revenues. At present, the 

industry has been largely focused on increasing digitisation and 

higher internet usage over the last decade.

MARKET DYNAMICS

It is predicted that Indian media & entertainment sector will grow 

at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 14.3 per cent, 

touching Rs 2.26 trillion (US$ 33.9 billion) by 2020.

Over FY 2015-20, radio will grow at a CAGR of 16.9 per cent, while 

digital advertising will expand at 33.5 per cent. The largest 

segment, India’s television industry, is expected to grow at a CAGR 

of 15 per cent, while print media is expected to grow at a CAGR of 

8.6 per cent.

India is considered as one of the highest spending and fastest 

growing advertising market globally. The country’s expenses on 

advertising is estimated at 15.5 per cent in 2016, and is expected to 

grow by 11.2 per cent in 2017. The Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) 

inflows in the Information and Broadcasting (I&B) sector (including 

Print Media) in the period April 2000 – December 2016 fared at US$ 

6.3 billion, as per data released by Department of Industrial Policy 

and Promotion (DIPP).

RECENT DEVELOPMENT/INVESTMENTS

Hotstar, a digital streaming platform owned by Star India Ltd, has 

made foray into a partnership with Zapr Media Labs, a media tech 

company based in Bengaluru, to execute in-depth analysis on 

mobile audience, to be leveraged by brands in creating 

personalised communication.

Bigtree Entertainment Pvt. Ltd, that owns Bookmyshow, has 

attained 75 per cent stake in Townscript, an online event 

registration and ticketing platform based in Pune.

PE major Warburg Pincus has  successfully procure 14 per cent stake 

in India’s largest multiplex chain PVR Ltd for Rs 820 crore (US$ 123 

million).

ITW Consulting, a global sports consulting and management 

company, has made its foray into the Indian market by introducing 

its entertainment, media and communication arm, ITW Playworx, 

based in Mumbai with offices across Delhi, Bengaluru, Chennai and 

Kolkata.

Carnival Cinemas, the third largest cinema multiplex chain in India, 

has paired up with Odisha government to build 30 entertainment 

centres or recreation zones, with over 1-1.5 acres of land in tier-II or 

tier-III locations of each district.

Dekkho, an online video streaming platform, has prolifically raised 

US$ 1.2 million in a seed round from seven angel investors, meant 

to be utilized for expanding its technology infrastructure and 

devoting in content licensing.

Amazon has commenced its Prime Video service in India at an 

aggressive annual subscription price of Rs 499 (US$ 7.48), with 

one-month free trial, consisting range of Hollywood as well as 

international movies, TV Shows and nine Indian original shows, in 

its content library.

The Ministry of Information & Broadcasting has drafted plans to set 

up a Film Promotion Fund, to provide financial assistance to Indian 

films, which would be selected in various competition section of 

International Film Festivals, or being India’s official nomination to 

the Academy Awards under Foreign Film Category, for promotional 

activities.

Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd, the UK-based media and digital 

marketing communications company, has acquired Perfect 

Relations Group, an independent public relations firm, allowing the 

company to additionally strengthen its complete communications 

contribution to the Indian market.

Cinepolis, a Mexico-based multiplex chain, aims to add 160 more 

screens by investing around Rs 400 crore (US$ 60 million) in India in 

the next two years, hence taking its total count to 400 screens in the 

country.

Dalian Wanda Group Co Ltd, world's largest cinema chain operator, 

has started talks with leading multiplex owners, such as PVR Ltd 

and Carnival Cinemas Ltd, in hopes of acquiring assets and entering 

the Indian market.

US based investment firm Tiger Global Management LLC has 

16 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



obtained  25 per cent stake in 'The Viral Fever' (TVF), an online video 

content creator, for US$ 10 million.

Balaji Telefilms Limited (Balaji Telefilms) has raised Rs 150.08 crore 

(US$ 22.51 million) through allotment of equity shares on preferen-

tial basis to catapult the launch and growth of ALT Digital Media, a 

Business-to-Consumer(B2C) digital content business segment of 

Balaji Group.

Global video-streaming service Netflix has crossed the threshold of 

India as high-speed Internet connectivity and is now becoming 

rapidly available to Indians and nearly one-fifth of India's 1.3 billion 

population is now online.

MULTIPLEXES

After promotion from single theatres to a multiplex environment, 

moviegoers in India can now advance to even larger cinema 

watching experience. International exhibitor, Cinépolis, will soon 

open its large multiplex format called Megaplex (mega multiplex) 

in India. Large format megaplexes allocate more titles to be played 

and titles to stay in theatre for a longer first run. The 15-screen 

megaplex, to be launched in Pune has been designed to have 3 

Cinepolis VIP screens (a luxurious and ultra premium cinema 

experience) and 12 regular screens. The megaplex will run 75 shows 

per day or 1 new show every 10 minutes offering patrons with 

extraordinary choice of film titles and show timings with an 

average seating capacity of 180 seats. Cinepolis is opening more 

such megaplexes with 14 screens in Thane, 11 screens in Kochi and 

10 screens in Ghaziabad soon. PVR also has an 11-screen multiplex 

in Bangalore, 9 screens each in Mumbai, Chandigarh and Kochi. 

Movie goers have begun to appreciate luxury in entertainment. 

They are gradually more willing to pay INR700- INR1000 for a PVR’s 

Director Cut ticket or Big Cinema’s Ebony Lounge, as it offers an 

unprecedented experience, churned out as novelty factor. It is not 

merely a luxury movie theatre, but is a complete package with 

grand auditoriums with 180 degree reclining chairs, a cafe, a 

restaurant-cum-bar, a lounge, a patisserie and a film-themed book 

shop. PVR has been a recipient of encouraging response from 

patrons in Delhi region, and PVR intends to take this model to other 

key metro cities as well.  The film industry has also recognized the 

immense potential posed by the audience that lies at the bottom 

rung. Close to 70 percent of India’s population reside in rural areas, 

representing a large untapped market. Rural incomes are growing 

faster than urban incomes, with the low income group expected to 

shrink significantly, middle income group likely to go up to 500 

million from the current 350 million people and the rich segment to 

expand to 150 milllion from 50 million. Subsequently, the industry 

has begun to recognize the vast potential of this segment.

WAY FORWARD

The Indian Media and Entertainment industry is on an inspiring 

growth path. The revenue from advertising is expected to grow at a 

CAGR of 13 per cent and will exceed Rs 81,600 crore (US$ 12.24 

billion) in 2019 from Rs 41,400 crore (US$ 6.21 billion) in 2014. 

Internet has overtaken the print segment as the second-largest 

segment contributing to the overall pie of M&E industry revenues.

Television and print are expected to continue remaining the largest 

contributors to the advertising pie in 2018 as well. Internet 

advertising will materialize as the third-largest segment, with a 

share of about 16 per cent in the total M&E advertising pie. The film 

segment, contributing Rs 12,640 crore (US$ 1.89 billion) in 2014 is 

anticipated to grow steadily at a CAGR of 10 per cent on the back of 

higher domestic and overseas box-office collections as well as 

cable and satellite rights.

CINEMAS IN NUMBERS Cinema
advertising
constitues

1% of
the total

advertising
revenue pie
The number
of in-cinema
advertisers
have grown

from
50-100
in 2010

to more than
2500 in 2016

India is the biggest cinema
market in the world with

1,000
MOVIES

Released annually and clocking
more than

1.93
MILLION

movie-goers annually

IN-CINEMAS ADVERTISING:
STRUCTURAL CHANGES

Proliferation of multipleses in
the exhinition space grwoing at a rate of

8-9% ANNUALLY
Consolidation of multiplex business

along with aggregation of ingle cinemas
inventory by UFO Movies & Real Image

has made it easier for brands and agences
to Iiason

WITH NEARLY
100% DIGITIZATION

OF SCREENS:
Volume of ad inventory has increased

Digitization allows simultaneous screening
in various theaters along with geo-targeting
and multillngual support for ads; brands can
log and monitor the quality and frequecy of

their commercials

IN-CINEMA
SCREEN

ADVERTISING
REVENUES FOR

FY 2016-17

PVR `212
CRORE

552
scree

UFO `158
CRORE

3713
scree

QUBE
CINEMA `158

CRORE
3713

scree

INOX `91
CRORE

425
scree

India is also an
under-screened market with

six screens per million population as
against 123 in the USA, 87 in France,

60 in UK and 23 in China

Annual Report 2016-17 17 | SRS Limited



SRS CINEMAS

Since its establishment in 2004, SRS Cinemas is a renowned brand 

name under which the Company operates a chain of deluxe 

multiplexes across various cities that include Gurgaon, Faridabad, 

Ghaziabad, Lucknow, Gorakhpur, Patiala, Ludhiana, Shimla, Agra, 

Bhiwadi, Saharanpur, Bareilly etc. SRS Cinemas prides itself for 

being one of the largest multiplexes chain in North India with a 

presence in various strategic locations having 62 screens and 16099 

seats prevalent. We, at SRS Cinemas always believe in providing 

entertainment with a world- class and luxurious experience to our 

consumers.

This year has brought a series of new opportunities and avenues to 

further expand SRS Cinema’s horizons across India. We are 

constantly evolving and changing with the times of a new digital 

media landscape. We have actively been promoting on various 

social media platforms about the latest information on movies and 

offers, we are providing to our consumers. To keep up with the 

changing times, the SRS cinema’s website was recently updated 

and revamped. We have also initiated a hiring and recruitment 

drive from social media platforms. At SRS Cinemas we focus on 

coming up with new ideas to entertain movie goers with schemes 

such as the Navrata offers, Wah se wah offer at NCR locations, online 

and offline Independence Day offer, WOW its Thursday offer at 

cinemas located in Saharanpur and Hajipur. Our offers are actively 

updated on our website at www.srscinemas.net

We are driven to provide premium movie going experience 

through our “Online Class” venture at SRS Cinemas located in 

Faridabad and Gurgaon. Through this venture people can look up 

and book premium seats at a nominal price range,  providing them 

additional benefits such as exclusive treatment, best view, extra leg 

space etc. We have spiced up and changed our menu board across 

18 locations and started a cine-bite menu at SRS Eldeco as well. 

The food packaging of our products has also been completely 

refurbished. We have launched new meal combos such as the 

samosa combo at SRS Lucknow, idli and vada combo at SRS 

Cinemas at Ranchi. On our weekday menu, we have started 25% off 

in select locations. To bridge the gap and cater to those who prefer 

using cashless transactions, we have executed digital payment 

solutions by starting with Airtel Money. Other online wallets will be 

started shortly, however to become more affordable, we have 

initiated new pocket friendly ticket prices at SRS and Eldeco malls 

at Pristine and Lucknow.

We have actively promoted SRS Cinemas across multiple 

advertising channels such as traditional and out of home avenues 

through façade branding and EOM creatives at SRS Omaxe and SRS 

Eldeco. SRS Cinemas has also collaborated with different types of 

promotions with major wallet players such as Jio Money and Paytm 

on offers. We have also promoted the Summer Splash offer. The 

prime festivals and specific day’s celebrations such as Diwali, 

Navratra and Women’s Day have been promoted by giving 

advertisements in newspapers and proposed lucrative deals for 

moviegoers.

SRS Cinemas have brought forward this year, an innovative and 

special scheme for women consumers. By enacting a “Queen’s Que” 

which has provided special benefits for them such as a separate 

queue so that they face no difficulty whatsoever. This year we have 

installed a 3D format at SRS Cinemas at Bhiwadi which we 

promoted through banners and standees. Along with this, we have 

further expanded our reach by expanding and opening up an SRS 

Cinemas location at Ranchi.

With such big accomplishments, SRS Cinemas will strive to 

continue this momentum in the years to come.

Total Number
of Screens

62

Total Seats

16099

Cities

17

States

8

Admits

72
LACS

Gross Sale

150
 CRORE

Revenue
Per Seat 

98K
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Screen presence

1 SRS Cinemas, SRS Mall, (Faridabad) Faridabad Haryana 11/12/2004 3 776

2 SRS Cinemas, Pristine Mall, (Faridabad)* Faridabad Haryana 8/24/2007 3 644

3 SRS Cinemas, Shubham Tower, NIT (Faridabad) Faridabad Haryana 1/11/2008 1 233

4 SRS Cinemas, Eldeco Station 1 Mall, (Faridabad) Faridabad Haryana 1/21/2011 3 689

5 SRS Cinemas, Omaxe Mall, (Gurgaon) Gurgaon Haryana 12/8/2006 2 506

6 SRS Cinemas, Celebration Mall, (Gurgaon)  Gurgaon Haryana 11/20/2009 2 551

7 SRS Cinemas, Aditya City Centre, (Ghaziabad) UP Ghaziabad UP 2/12/2010 4 918

8 SRS Cinemas, JaIpuria Mall, (Ghaziabad) Ghaziabad UP 2/19/2010 3 974

9 SRS Cinemas, City Mall, (Gorakhpur) Gorakhpur UP 6/20/2008 3 742

10 SRS Cinemas, Shoppers Pride Mall (Bijnor) Bijnor UP 3/31/2010 2 458

11 SRS Cinemas, Omaxe Mall (Patiala) Patiala Punjab 9/17/2010 4 1117

12 SRS Cinemas, Omaxe Mall (Ludhiana) Ludhiana Punjab 1/26/2012 3 1013

13 SRS Cinemas, CK Mall (Shimla) Shimla Himachala Pradesh 5/18/2013 2 341

14 SRS Cinemas, Phenix United Mall, (Bareilly) Bareilly UP 7/5/2013 4 986

15 SRS Cinemas, City Mall, (Lucknow) Lucknow UP 9/8/2013 3 884

16 SRS Cinemas, V Square Mall, (Bhiwadi)* Bhiwadi Rajasthan 12/20/2013 3 621

17 SRS Sarv Cinemas, Sarv Multiplex, (Agra) Agra UP 1/24/2014 3 1075

18 SRS Cinemas,(Hajipur)* Hajipur Bihar 3/28/2015 2 500

19 SRS Cinemas, (Saharanpur) Saharanpur UP 3/31/2015 4 1132

20 SRS Cinemas, (Muktsar)* Muktsar Punjab 7/17/2015 3 590

21 SRS Cinemas, (Kashipur)* Kashipur Uttrakhand 12/18/2015 2 468

22 SRS Cinemas, (Ranchi) Ranchi Jharkhand 7/22/2016 3 881

 TOTAL    62 16099

S.No. Site Name Location State Date Of Opening Screen Capacity

* Under the franchise model.
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RETAIL REPORT

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

INTRODUCTION
The Indian retail industry has emerged to be one of the most 
self-motivated, alongside being fast-paced industries with the 
entry of several new players in the Indian diaspora. This has 
resulted to a large scale infiltration, creating more job 
opportunities and a healthier sense of competition. It accounts for 
over 10 per cent of the country’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP), 
with 8 per cent of the employment.

MARKET SIZE
India is currently the world’s fifth-largest global destination in the 
retail space, with expectations of doubling to US$ 1 trillion by 2020 
from US$ 600 billion in past. This can be contributed to driven by 
growth in expenditure, urbanisation and basic shifts of perceptions 
.While the overall retail market is expected to grow at 12 per cent 
per annum, Business to Business (B2B) e-commerce market is 
expected to reach US$ 700 billion by 2020. Online retail is currently 
on par with the physical stores.

India is likely to become the world’s most rapidly growing 
e-commerce market, powered by robust investment and rapid 
increase in the number of internet users, along with the Digital 
India initiative. Various agencies have high expectations about 
growth of Indian e-commerce markets, with sales expected to 
reach US$ 120 billion by 2020, Close to 530 million shoppers primed 
to emerge by 2025, led by rapid speed on reliable telecom 
networks, easier adoption of online services and superior rate of 
convenience.

Meanwhile, India’s direct selling industry is primed to reach a size of 
Rs 23,654 crore (US$ 3.54 billion) by FY2019-20, as per a joint report 
by India Direct Selling Association (IDSA) and PHD. And exports of 
locally made retail and lifestyle products grew at a compound 
annual growth rate (CAGR) of 10 per cent in 2016.

INVESTMENT SCENARIO/OPPORTUNITIES
With the rising need for consumer goods in different sectors 
including consumer electronics and home appliances, many 
companies have invested in the Indian retail space in the past few 
months.

Adidas India Private Limited, charted out plans of opening around 
30-40 big flagship stores across Delhi, Mumbai and Bengaluru, by 2020.

Urban Ladder, a premium online furniture store, is in pre-mediated 
talks to raise around US$ 25-30 million from prior investors Kalaari 
Capital, SAIF Partners and Sequoia Capital, along with one new 
investor, which is allotted to fund its expansion plans.

Future Group has aligned with UK clothing retailer Laura Ashley to 
make and sell merchandise as well as venture into wholesale 
distribution in India.

Parle Agro Pvt. Ltd. has launched Frooti Fizz, an extension of the 
original Mango Frooti, which is being retailed across 1.2 million 
outlets in the country as it aims to increase the annual revenue 
from Rs 2800 crore (US$ 0.42 billion) to Rs 5000 crore (US$ 0.75 
billion) by 2018. 

International Finance Corporation (IFC), the investment section of 
The World Bank, proceeds to invest up to Rs 134 crore (US$ 19.86 
million) in Kishore Biyani's Future Consumer Enterprises Ltd, aiding 
the company in driving its growth plans.

Amazon India has launched six new fulfilment centres across 
Chennai, Coimbatore, Delhi, Jaipur and Mumbai, which are set to 
open up 5.5 million square feet of storage space for sellers on the 
marketplace who use the ‘Fulfilled by Amazon’ service. This is set to 
embolden the operations of Amazon centres by a larger extent. 

Aditya Birla Retail, a faction of the eminent US$ 40 billion Aditya 
Birla Group and the fourth-largest supermarket retailer in the 
country, acquired Total hypermarkets, which was previously owned 
by Jubilant Retail.  On that high note, Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail 
Limited (ABFRL) has announced that it is set to acquire exclusive 
online and offline rights of Forever 21, a premier American high 
street fashion brand, to the delight of Indian consumers.

Leading apparel brands are showing keen interest in setting their 
bases up in the India soil.  This can be contributed to the fact that 
consumers are emerging to be more brand conscious, opting for 
high end options.

Neil Barrett, one of the leading Italian fashion brands, has made its 
foray into the Indian market, as it establishes its retail presence 
through a special partnership with Fervour, a multi-brand boutique 
that houses international designer brands.

New York-based designer brand Kate Spade will be launched 
amidst great anticipation in India, later this year and is primed 
to launch a network of stand-alone stores across major cities. This 
announcement sets forth a fertile market for one more global 
brand to enter the Indian retail space after the Government of India 
relaxed single brand retail norms recently.

KartRocket, a Delhi based e-commerce enabler has finished the 
tenure of  its US$ 8 million funding round by raising US$ 2 million 
from a Japanese investor, which is going to be used in enhancing 
Kraftly, a mobile-centric online-to-offline marketplace which 
targets small sellers, individuals and home-based entrepreneurs all 
across the nation in product categories such as apparel and 
accessories.

PurpleTalkInc, a US based mobile solutions company, has succes-
sively invested US$ 1 million in Nukkad Shops, a Hyderabad-head-
quartered uber-local commerce platform that aids neighbourhood 
retail stores to take their businesses online through a mobile app.
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Mumbai-centred baby care and kids products e-tailer, Hopscotch.in, 
has been successful in raising US$ 13 million in a Series C round of 
funding from Facebook co-founder Mr Eduardo Saverin, which will 
aid the firm in enlargement and expansion of its technology 
platform.

Gurgaon-centred e-commerce firm Shopclues has raised US$ 150 
million from Singapore government's GIC and its existing investors 
Tiger Global and Nexus Venture Partners, at a total valuation of US$ 
1.1 billion, thereby becoming the latest among a slew of 
e-commerce companies from India reaching a billion dollar 
valuation.

Aeropostale, an American teen fashion retailer, has chosen to enter 
India over China, and expects India to be among its top three 
markets over the next four years with revenue target of Rs 500 crore 
(US$ 74.12 million).

Textile major Arvind Limited has announced a partnership with 
Sephora, owned by LVMH Moet Hennessy Louis Vuitton, a French 
luxury conglomerate, in order to enter into the beauty and cosmet-
ics segment. Also, US apparel retail major Gap Inc, has tied up with 
Arvind Group’s fashion portal NNNow.com to sell its products 
online,  helping the retailer expand its presence beyond metros and 
tier-I cities.

US-based Pizza chain Sbarro plans an almost threefold increase in 
its store count from the current 17 to 50 over the next two years 
through multiple business models.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES
The Government of India has taken various initiatives to improve 
the retail industry in India.

Government of India has authorized 100 per cent Foreign Direct 
Investment (FDI) in online retail of goods and services through the 
automatic route, in that way providing transparency on the existing 
businesses of e-commerce companies operating in India.

The Government of Andhra Pradesh signed a multitude of pacts 
worth Rs 1,500 crore (US$ 222.36 million) in a wide range of sectors 
including retail and steel and gas, with Walmart India, Future Group, 
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Ltd and Spencer’s Retail, during the 
prestigious Partnership Summit in Visakhapatnam, while also 

unveiling a robust retail policy aimed to attract retail businesses to 
successfully invest in the state.

The Ministry of Urban Development has come into foray with a 
Smart National Common Mobility Card (NCMC) model, enabling 
seamless travel by metros and other transport systems across the 
country, as well as retail purchases.

IKEA, the world’s largest furniture retailer, is all set to invest Rs 
10,500 crore (US$ 1.56 billion) to put up 25 stores across India and 
hire over 15,000 permanent and 37,500 temporary employees to 
assist in running its stores. It also bought its first piece of land in 
India at Hyderabad, the joint capital of Telangana and Andhra 
Pradesh, for building a retail store. IKEA’s retail outlets have a 
standard design and each location entails an investment of around 
Rs 500–600 crore (US$ 74–89 millions)

The Government has permitted a proposal to scrap the distinctions 
among different types of overseas investments by shifting it to a 
single composite limit. This means that portfolio investment up to 
49 per cent will not require government approval nor does it have 
to comply with sectorial conditions as long as it does not result in a 
transfer of ownership and/or control of Indian entities to foreigners. 
This leads to a rise in foreign investments, especially in the 
attractive retail sector.

WAY FORWARD
Customers are getting an upper hand as they have the ever 
increasing choice of products at the lowest rates. E-commerce is 
creating the biggest revolution in the retail industry, with the trend 
promising to continue in the years to come. Retailers should ideally 
leverage the digital retail channels (e-commerce), that would 
enable them to spend less money on real estate while reaching out 
to more customers in tier-2 and tier-3 cities .Both organised and 
unorganised retail companies have to work together to ensure 
better prospects for the overall retail industry, all in while 
generating new benefits for their customers.

In spite of all this, the long-term outlook for the industry is positive, 
as Indian retail is set to scale new heights.
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SRS
VALUE BAZAAR

Since its first store opening in Faridabad in 2006, SRS Value Bazaar 

has set-up a chain of 45 retail stores across various cities that 

include Gurgaon, Delhi, Ghaziabad, Faridabad, Noida, Lucknow and 

more. SRS Value Bazaar brings the finest in food and groceries, 

personal care, home care, fabric care, confectionaries, packaged 

foods, frozen foods and much more, making it a one-stop shop for 

all your needs; establishing it as a key player in the retail space. The 

hassle-free shopping actually becomes a delightful experience in 

the world-class, safe and homely ambience matched perfectly by a 

team of customer care executives who are always eager to help and 

assist you with all your needs.

The Indian Retail Industry arose as one of the most active and 

rapidly growing market due to the entry of several new players in 

the field accounting for over 10% of the country’s Gross Domestic 

Product (GDP), and around 8% of the employment workforce, 

catapulting India to the stature of the world’s fifth-largest 

destination for retail space. However, with the onset of 

demonetisation the Indian Retail Industry has been impacted due 

to the liquidity crunch as the Retail Industry generates a lot of cash 

transactions, thus, leading to a reduction in sales. To counter these 

short term setbacks SRS’ retail branch removed Central and 

Regional warehouses to cut manpower and rent costs and further 

streamline product distribution via direct store fillings in Gurgaon, 

Faridabad, Ghaziabad branches and so on with minimal cost. 

Moreover, to further reduce the impact of demonetisation and 

make purchases easier for customers, fruitful deals with Mobile 

Payments and Commerce platforms like Paytm and Mobikwik were 

struck. By providing an alternate payment method,  SRS Value 

Bazaar managed to reduce the pressure felt due to the lack of new 

currency denominations in circulation and retain a large chunk of 

their customer base, encouraging positive footfall and a reliable 

structure. Interestingly, it has been observed that there was a 

gradual increase in modern trade through the medium of credit 

and debit cards, and Mobile Payments. Furthermore, extra 

consumer offers, such as flat cashback offer run through Paytm and 

100% SuperCash offer run through Mobikwik to name a few, have 

been instrumental in increasing sales and footfall, and recovering 

from the temporary cash crisis.

With the introduction of General Merchandise category SRS Value 

Bazaar successfully managed to widen their margin of products, 

thus, contributing to a more wholesome consumer experience. 

From Kitchen accessories like Lighters and Pans to Stationery items 

like Pens, Pencils and Notebooks to Socks & Undergarments, 

customers need not look further than their closest SRS Value Bazaar 

outlet. Non-moving/rotten Stock Keeping Units were also removed 

from Automatic Replenishment Systems to maintain profitable and 

smooth Stock Keeping Unit sequence. This led to a slash in the 

inventory from Rs 20 crore to Rs 12 crore without change in their 

top selling Stock Keeping Units which was further used to upgrade 

billing software and increase the number of billing counter systems 

to provide a well-paced and premium experience to the customers.

Unfortunately, due to unprofitable results from the Online Business 

SRS had to shut it down to cut excessive losses. 

Yet, along with a few setbacks some positive news was also 

generated. Few private label products such as Atta, Water, Sugar, 

Cleaning Aids have been introduced for enhanching the category 

with increase revenue & margins. We promise to diligently strive to 

deliver to our conusmer with the world’s finest quality products 

and services at the best prices possible. 
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Apart from above, the Company operates several Exclusive Brand Outlets of Leading Brands

1 SRS Value Bazaar,Malviya Nagar, Delhi.. 1900 D-78,Main Market, Malviya Nagar, Delhi

2 SRS Value Bazaar Chhattarpur Delhi 4500 D-88, Khsara no. - 267, Chhattarpur enclave, 100 ft Road, New Delhi

3 SRS Value Bazaar,Sector-12, Faridabad 9500 SRS Multiplex, City Centre, Sector 12 Faridabad

4 SRS Value Bazaar, Sector-3, Faridabad 5200 Housing Board Cly.,Near Bishamber Vatika,Sector 3,Faridabad

5 SRS Value Bazaar,Sector-34, Faridabad 900 SCO - 1, Opp Kanishka Tower, Sec-34, Faridabad

6 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-46, Faridabad 1800 SCO -67 & 68, Huda Market, Faridabad.

7 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-87, Faridabad 2689 SRS Residency , Sector-87, Faridabad

8 SRS Value Bazaar Sector 21C III 1000 SCO -151, Sector - 21C, Faridabad

9 SRS Value Bazaar,Palwal 6271 Bye Pass, GT Road, Palwal

10 SRS Value Bazaar, Sector-57, Gurgaon 6414 Bestech Mall,  Sec 56, Sushant Lok, Gurgaon

11 SRS Value Bazaar,Omaxe Mall, Gurgaon 8722 Omaxe Plaza, Sector 49, Sohna Road, Gurgaon

12 SRS Value Bazaar,Sec-7, Gurgaon. 2250 765/11,Dayal Mkt.,Shivpuri,Sec-7, Gurgaon

13 SRS Value Bazaar, Shushant Lok-1,Gurgaon 4125 Ground Floor,Shri Ram Complex,C Block,Near Maple
   Height,Shushant Lok-I,Gurgaon.

14 SRS Value Bazaar South City -I, Gurgaon 4000 Village - Silokhara, Opp. Unitech Shopping Arcade, South city-I,
   Gurgaon.

15 SRS Value Bazaar Ardee City Gurgaon 4400 Gate no. - 3, Baljeet Market, Sector - 52, Gurgaon

16 SRS Value Bazaar Sector 55 Gurgaon 4700 Plot no. 95 & 96 , Urban Estate, Sector 55 , Gurgaon

17 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-51, Noida 5140 C-3, Near Kendriya Vihar,Sector-51,Noida.

18 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-62, Noida 3800 RN 4-6, Sector-62, Noida.

19 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-48, Noida 4300 232A/01, Block - C, Setor-48, Noida.

20 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-44, Noida 4000 Khsara no. 513,Village - Chellera, Sector-44, Noida

21 SRS Value Bazaar Crossing Republik, Ghaziabad 7117 Paramount Spectrum, Crossing Republik, Ghaziabad 

22 SRS Value Bazaar Gaur Valerio Ghajiabad 4790  Ground Floor, Gaur Valerio,Commercial Block, Ahinsa
   Khand,Indirapuram, Ghaziabad

23 SRS Value Bazaar Sec-120/73 5000 Khasra no.482-483 village Sarfabad, tehsil dadri GTV Nagar,
   Sec-73, Noida, UP

24 SRS Value Bazaar, Sec-82,Noida 5500 Plot no. 77 Sec-93, Near by Police Chowki Noida-UP

S.No. Unit Name Area sq.ft. Address

SRS Value Bazaar Stores

1 SRS Fashion Wear, Faridabad GF-28-29, Crown Interiorz Mall, Sector – 35,  Delhi Mathura Road, Faridabad

2 SRS Fashion Wear, Faridabad SRS Mall,  Sec-12, Faridabad

3 SRS Fashion Wear, Palwal Agra Chowk, G.T Road, Palwal

S.No. Unit Name Address

SRS Fashion Wear Stores

Annual Report 2016-17 23 | SRS Limited



FOOD
AND BEVERAGE

FOOD COURT 
We have started SRS 7 Dayz business 13 years ago with a goal to 

expand our footprint in all major cities of India.  We had many years 

in this business and have seen the ups and downs of the business 

and understood the in and out about the business. In the last year,  

we’ve come to realize that food and beverage business is getting

more challenges due to major competitions, different choice of 

foods, major real estate cost, etc. SRS 7 Dayz contribution is very less 

in the revenues and has not been a profitable venture of the 

Company. Therefore, we are consolidating the food business and 

focusing our self towards other businesses.
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SRS
HUMAN RESOURCE
DEPARTMENT

SRS always takes care of its employees and makes sure a healthy 

work environment is maintained. The Human Resource Depart-

ment of SRS believes in the growth and improvement of the 

working conditions for the team.

During the Financial Year 2016-17, our HR team took on several 

advancements including technological ones such as showing 

real-time attendance data on the HR portal of SRS resulting in 

better coordination and development of an easy connection 

between employees and the HRD team.

Over the last few months, we have organized a number of activities 

and employee recognition programs to keep our staff inspired and 

motivated, to boost the efficiency of their work. Employee of the 

month, target based Incentive,  birthday celebrations, creation of a 

wall of fame to appreciate the efforts of individuals, off-campus 

outings and fun events like badminton challenge, carom challenge 

and quizzes etc. 

We endeavor to constantly keep in mind our employees' health and 

welfare and to do so we had organized a health camp, a health talk 

and also a seminar on soft loans free from interest. During 2016-17, 

the total number of job applications that we received was approxi-

mately 8932 out of which 1135 new employees joined our SRS 

family. 

We hope that in the forthcoming year our family keeps increasing 

exponentially and contributes to our success story. 
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SRS IT 
INFRASTRUCTURE
UPGRADATION

INFRASTRUCTURE UPGRADATION

Data Center  Upgrade with these features: A data center is a facility 

used to house computer systems and associated components, such 

as telecommunications and storage systems. It generally includes 

redundant or backup power supplies, redundant data 

communications connections and environmental controls.

Power - Data centers are powered by multiple power feeds from 

separate sources, backed up by multiple UPS and diesel powered 

generator systems.

Carrier-neutral network: Facilities utilize multiple carrier-neutral, 

high-speed internet feeds, ensuring reasonably priced bandwidth 

delivered over a secure and redundant network.

Environmental- The physical environment of a data centre is 

rigorously controlled. Air conditioning is used to control the 

temperature and humidity in the data center for Data Processing 

Environments recommends a temperature range of 18–27 °C 

(64–81 °F), a dew point range of −9 to 15 °C (16 to 59 °F), and ideal 

relative humidity of 60%, with an allowable range of 40% to 60% 

for data center environments. The temperature in a data center will 

naturally rise because the electrical power used heats the air. Unless 

the heat is removed, the ambient temperature will rise, resulting in 

electronic equipment malfunction. By controlling the air 

temperature, the server components at the board level are kept 

within the manufacturer's specified temperature/humidity range. 

Air conditioning systems help control humidity by cooling the 

return space air below the dew point. Too much humidity, and 

water may begin to condense on internal components. In case of a 

dry atmosphere, ancillary humidification systems may add water 

vapor if the humidity is too low, which can result in static electricity 

discharge problems which may damage components. 

Subterranean data centers may keep computer equipment cool 

while expending less energy than conventional designs.

Network Operations Center (NOC)- NOC teams ensure top 

performance in event management, enforce security standards and 

assist with client requests. Each data center is protected and 

operated by an experienced NOC team. Several of our data centers 

have an in-house NOC team staffed 24/7/365.

APPLICATION LEVEL UPGRADATION
Wallet Implementation: New mode of payment was introduced to 

encourage the cashless transaction . Wallet introduced were Paytm 

& Mobikwik.

New module implementation : Software implementation for 

production unit. In this module complete processing of raw 

material  to finished goods is done.

Automation of Finance in Retail: Auto posting of sales & purchase 

of all retail stores is directly posted in finance module.
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CONTROLS &
POLICIES 

INTERNAL CONTROLS 
With various business verticals and multi-locational operations, the 

Company has always had strong system of internal control and 

audit so as to ensure that all systems and processes are adhered to 

take all decisions in a proper, timely and transparent manner. This 

ensures that each vertical is treated as a de facto separate business 

unit, and undergoes stringent and focused internal audits. Apart 

from this, clear policies have been institutionalized for 

wide-sweeping control management such as Insider Trading, IT 

Policy etc.

What also helps matters is the fact that since the Company is listed 

on the BSE and NSE, it follows Corporate Governance norms as laid 

down by the regulators thus leading to good transparency and 

disclosure levels enables customers to earn seamlessly on every 

transaction they make at these two verticals, quite different from 

other such programs that work only in a single vertical 

environment. It is also working on a uniform platform based 

feedback application that will help the Company to assess its 

services levels and provide inputs for better brand building and 

effective marketing initiatives.

The Company believes in constant upgradation of Technology and 

invests wisely to utilize the true potential of technology to provide 

stability, speed and transparency to business.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
Some information in this report may contain forward-looking 

statements. We have based these forward looking statements on 

our current beliefs, expectations and intentions as to facts, actions 

and events that will or may occur in the future. Such statements 

generally are identified by forward-looking words such as “believe”,  

“plan”,  “anticipate”,  “continue”,  “estimate”,  “expect”,  “may”,   “will” or 

other similar words. 

A forward- looking statement may include a statement of the 

assumptions or bases underlying the forward-looking statement. 

We have chosen these assumptions or bases in good faith, and we 

believe that they are reasonable in all material respects. However, 

we caution you that forward-looking statements’ and assumed 

facts or basis almost always vary from actual results, and the 

differences between the results implied by the forward-looking 

statements and assumed facts or bases and actual results can be 

material, depending on the circumstances. You should also keep in 

mind that any forward-looking statement made by us in this report 

or elsewhere speaks only as of the date on which we made it. New 

risks and uncertainties come up from time to time, and it is 

impossible for us to predict those events or how they may affect us. 

We have no duty to, and do not intend to, update or revise the 

forward- looking statements in this report after the date hereof.

The risks and uncertainties relating to these statements include, 

but are not limited to, risks and uncertainties regarding 

fluctuations in earnings, our ability to manage growth, intense 

competition in multiplex, Jewellery, retail business due to the entry 

of new players, including those factors which may affect our cost 

advantage, lack of good quality content, onset of new technologies 

such as DTH, IPTV, e-commerce segment of Jewellery & grocery  

and increasing penetration of Home-video, which may impact 

overall industry growth, wage increases in India, real estate costs 

increases, delay or failure in handover of properties from real estate 

developers, the success of our subsidiary companies, withdrawal of 

entertainment tax exemption granted by government and general 

economic conditions affecting our industry.

In light of these risks and uncertainties, any forward-looking 

statement made in this report or elsewhere may or may not occur 

and has to be understood and read along with this disclaimer.

Others: In this report, the terms “we”, “us”, “our”, “SRS” or “the 

Company”, unless otherwise implies, refer to SRS Limited (“SRS 

Limited”) and its subsidiary, SRS Entertainment India Limited 

(Formerly known as SRS Entertainment Limited).
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ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company on a standalone and 
consolidated basis, for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2017, including the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the 
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date, 
together with the Reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ 
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Sh. Jitender Kumar Garg 
(DIN:00088125), who retires by rotation at this Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment.

3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration by passing 
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution with or 
without modifications: -

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
139(1) and other applicable provisions (if any) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time, the 
Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 or any other law 
for the time being in force, M/s. SVP & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants and M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered 
Accountants be and are hereby appointed as Joint Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion 
of the Four consecutive Annual General Meetings, subject to 
ratification by members at every AGM held after this AGM 
and that the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized 
to fix their remuneration plus travelling and other out of 
pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with 
statutory audit and such other remuneration, as may be 
recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with 
the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4.     Appointment of Sh. Shivam Gupta (DIN: 07858958) as an 
Independent Director

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:  

 “RESOLVED THAT Sh. Shivam Gupta (DIN:07858958), who 
was appointed as an Additional (Independent) Director of 

the Company by the Board on 23rd June, 2017 pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (referred to as 
the “Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule IV to the Act, and 
whose tenure of office expires at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 
of the Act and in respect of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 
2013 from a member proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company to hold office for five 
consecutive years from 23rd June, 2017 upto 22nd June, 2022 
and whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

 Place: Faridabad  By order of the Board
Date: 12th July, 2017  For SRS Limited

  

(Navneet Kwatra)
 C.O.O. & Company Secretary
  M. No.ACS-16672

NOTES

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on poll 
instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a 
member of the Company. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, a person can act as 
proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and 
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the 
total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. 
A member holding more than ten percent of the total share 
capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a 
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a 
proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. The enclosed proxy form, duly completed, stamped and

Notice is hereby given that the 17th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of SRS Limited will be held as under: 

Day  : Wednesday
Date  : 27th September, 2017
Time  : 1:00 P.M. 
Venue  : “Eternity Auditorium”,  SRS Tower, 8th Floor,
   Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur,
   G. T. Road, Faridabad -121003

to transact the following business: 

SRS LIMITED NOTICE
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 signed, must reach at the Registered Office not later than 48 
hours before the scheduled time of the Meeting.  

4. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed 
for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the 
conclusion of the meeting, members entitled to vote would 
be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, at any time during 
the business hours of the company, provided not less than 
three days’ notice in writing is given to the Company.

5. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized 
representative to attend the meeting are requested to send 
a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the 
meeting in terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. The relevant Explanatory Statements setting out the 
material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 
2013 concerning the Special Business in the notice is 
appended herein below. 

7. Sh. Jitender Kumar Garg retires by rotation and being 
eligible offers himself for re-appointment at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting.

8. The relevant information as required in terms of Regulation 
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors 
seeking appointment/re-appointment is annexed to this 
notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite consents/ 
declarations for their appointment/reappointment.

9. M/s. SVP & Associates, Chartered Accountants and M/s. 
Oswal Sunil & Co., Chartered Accountants have submitted 
their certificates expressing their eligibility for ratification of 
their re-appointment as Joint Statutory Auditors of the 
Company in terms of Section 139 (1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rules made thereunder. 

10. Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd. is the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA’s) of the Company. 
All investor related communication may be sent to RTA’s at 
the following address: 
Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd.
 Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping 
Centre, Near Dada Harsukh Dass Mandir, New Delhi–110062
Ph. #011-29961281-283, Fax#011-29961284
Email id: beetalrta@gmail.com

11. Members are requested to notify all the changes, if any, in 
their addresses/particulars to their depository participants 
in respect of their holding in electronic form and to RTA’s at 
the above address in respect of their holding in physical 
form.

12. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will 
remain closed from Thursday, 21st September, 2017 to 
Wednesday, 27th September, 2017 (both days inclusive).

13. In terms of the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed 
amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012 (IEPF Rules), the 
Company has uploaded the information in respect of the 
unclaimed dividend, pending share application money, 
interest on refund account in IPO of the Company and 

Interest on Fixed/Public Deposits as on the last annual 
general meeting of the Company which was held on 30th 
September, 2016, on the website of the IEPF viz. 
www.iepf.gov.in and under “Investors” section on the 
website of the Company viz. www.srsparivar.com. The 
concerned members are requested to verify the details of 
their unclaimed amounts, if any, from the said websites and 
write to the Company/RTAs before the same is due for 
transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

14. The Company is concerned about the environment and 
utilizes all natural resources in an optimum way. Therefore, 
you are requested to update your email ids with your 
Depository Participants in case of shares held in demat and 
in case of physical shares, register/update your email id with 
the Company’s RTAs to enable us to send you the reports and 
other communications via email.

15. In terms of Section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Rules made thereunder, Copies of the Annual 
Report containing Notice of 17th Annual General Meeting 
and the instructions for e-voting along with Attendance Slip 
and Proxy Form is being sent by electronic mode to all the 
Members whose email addresses are registered with 
Depository Participant(s) or Company or Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agents unless any member has requested a physical 
copy of the same. For Members who have not registered 
their e-mail addresses, physical copies of Annual Report 
along with attendance slip and proxy form are being sent by 
permitted mode. In case you wish to get the physical copy of 
Annual Report, you may send your request to 
mamtarastogi@srsparivar.com.

16. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and provisions 
of Regulation 44 of the Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 the Company is pleased to provide the 
members facility to exercise their right to vote at the 17th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company by electronic 
means and the businesses may be transacted through 
e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL). 

17. The Shareholders can vote on all the businesses to be 
transacted at the Annual General Meeting by way of any one 
of the following methods:
• Remote e-voting i.e. the facility of casting votes by a  
  member using an electronic voting system from a place  
  other than venue of the Annual General Meeting;
•  Voting at the venue of the Annual General Meeting by 
  poll through ballot paper, as will be provided by the 
  Company.

18. A Shareholder can opt for only one mode of voting. In case a 
shareholder votes through remote e-voting as well as casts 
vote though ballot form, the votes cast through remote 
e-voting shall be considered and the voting through 
physical ballot shall not be considered by the scrutinizer.
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19. The Shareholders who have voted through remote e-voting 

 shall be entitled to attend the meeting, however, they shall 
not be allowed to cast their vote again at the venue of the 
Annual General Meeting.    

20. The Shareholders attending the meeting, who have not 
already cast their votes through remote e-voting, shall be 
able to exercise their right at the meeting.

21. The Shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held 
by them. The facility of voting would be provided once for 
every folio/client id, irrespective of the number of joint 
holders.

22. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such 
joint holder who is higher in the order of names would be 
entitled to vote.

23. The Shareholders as on the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, 20th 
September, 2017 shall only be eligible to vote on the 
resolutions mentioned in the notice of annual general 
meeting.

24. Members may also note that the Notice of this Annual 
General Meeting and the Annual Report for the year 
2016-17 will also be available on the Company’s website 
www.srsparivar.com for their download.

 All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice 
and Explanatory Statement are available for inspection at 
the Registered Office of the Company on all working days 
(except Saturdays, Sundays and Public holidays) between 
11.00 a.m and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of Annual General 
Meeting.

25. The Company has appointed Ms. Savita Trehan, Practicing 
Company Secretary, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the 
voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

26.  The scrutinizer will submit her final and consolidated report 
to the Chairman of the Company within 2 working days after 
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. The 
scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of all kinds of voting will 
be final.

27. The results of Annual General Meeting shall be declared by 
the Chairman or his authorized representative or any 
Director of the Company, so authorized, after the Annual 
General Meeting within the prescribed time limits.

28. The results of voting will also be placed at the website of the 
company viz. www.srsparivar.com and on the website of 
CDSL viz. www.cdslindia.com.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on Saturday, 23rd September, 2017 
at 10:00 A.M. and ends on Tuesday, 26th September, 2017 at 
5:00 P.M. During this period shareholders’ of the Company 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut-off date of Wednesday, 20th September, 
2017 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module 
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting 
date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 

www.evotingindia.com.

(iv) Click on Shareholders.

(v) Now Enter your User ID 
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter
   Folio Number registered with the Company.

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on
Login.

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on 
to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of 
any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly 
reach the Company selection screen. However, members 
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily 
enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly 
note that this password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on 
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts 
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can 
be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in
this Notice.

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and
Physical Form

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by 
Income Tax Department
 Members who have not updated their 

PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the 
first two letters of their name and the 8 
digits of the sequence number in the 
PAN field. 

 In case the sequence number is less 
than 8 digits enter the applicable 
number of 0’s before the number after 
the first two characters of the name in 
CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is 
Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 
1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN 
field.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of 
Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in 
your demat account or in the company 
records in order to login.
 If both the details are not recorded with 

the depository or company please enter 
the member id/folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details field as 
mentioned in instruction (v).

PAN

Dividend
Bank Details
OR Date of
Birth (DOB)
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(xii) Click on the EVSN for SRS Limited on which you choose to 
vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” 
and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select 
the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that 
you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you 
dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the 
entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, 
click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 
wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your 
vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will 
not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by 
clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xviii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed 
password then enter the User ID and the image verification 
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as 
prompted by the system.

(xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

   Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals,
HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to 
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as 
Corporates.

    A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the 
stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

    After receiving the login details, a compliance user 
should be created using the admin login and password. 
The Compliance user would be able to link the 
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

    The list of accounts should be mailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of 
the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

   A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of 
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in 
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xx) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become 
Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding 
shares as on the cut-o� date i.e. Wednesday, 20th September, 
2017 may visit the Company’s website www.srsparivar.com for 
‘Notice calling the 17th Annual General Meeting’ or may write to 
our RTA’s for copy of Notice and can follow the same instructions 
as mentioned above for e-Voting.

(xxi) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you 
may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and 
e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under 
help section or write an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(xxii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app 
m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app 
can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and 
Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store 
and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the 
instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your 
mobile.

29. Members desiring any information/clarification on the 
accounts are requested to write to the Company at least 10 
days in advance, so as to enable the management to keep the 
information ready at the Annual General Meeting.

30. All documents referred to in the Notice will be available for 
inspection at the Company’s corporate & registered office 
during business hours on working days upto the date of AGM.

31. Should any assistance be desired or clarification be sought, 
you may write at mamtarastogi@srsparivar.com.

Place: Faridabad  By order of the Board
Date: 12th July, 2017  For SRS Limited

  

(Navneet Kwatra)
 C.O.O. & Company Secretary
  M. No.ACS-16672
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4

Sh. Shivam Gupta was appointed as an Additional (Independent) Director of the Company by the Board on 23rd June, 2017. His tenure of 
office expires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and a notice has been received 
from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company along with a deposit of Rs.1, 00,000/- under the 
provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, after reviewing the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, is of the opinion that Sh. Shivam 
Gupta fulfills the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations, Act & Rules made there under to be eligible to be appointed as Independent 
Director of the Company. The Board is also of the opinion that he is independent of the management of the Company. The Board considers 
that his association would be of immense benefit to the Company.

A copy of the draft letter for the appointment of Sh. Shivam Gupta as an Independent Director setting out the terms and conditions is 
available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Company’s registered office during normal business hours on working days 
up to the date of the AGM. 

The Company has received from Sh. Shivam Gupta consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014; intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that he is not disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and a declaration to the effect 
that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The resolution seeks the approval of the members in terms of Sections 149 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under for appointment of Sh. Shivam Gupta as an Independent Director for Five (5) 
consecutive years commencing from 23rd June, 2017 to 22nd June, 2022. He is not liable to retire by rotation.

None of the Directors, KMP or their relatives is interested either directly or indirectly, in the said proposal, except Sh. Shivam Gupta.

The Board recommends the resolution set out in Item No. 4 for the approval of members.

Place: Faridabad  By order of the Board
Date: 12th July, 2017  For SRS Limited

  

(Navneet Kwatra)
 C.O.O. & Company Secretary
 M. No.ACS-16672
 

INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

Name of Director Date of Birth Quali�cation  Exp. Directorship in Chairmanship/ No. of Shares
    other Indian Companies Membership of  held in the 
     Committees of the Companies  
     Board of  Public Ltd. 
     Companies 

Sh. Jitender Kumar Garg 22.01.1964 M. Com,  27 Yrs. 1) SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. Member-1 90,000
  M. Phil. L. Lb.  2) SRS Knowledge & Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
    3) SRS Xanthic Projects Pvt. Ltd.
    4) JK Professionals Pvt. Ltd.
    5) SRS Mines Overseas Limited

Sh. Shivam Gupta 11.10.1995 B. Com,  - SRS Entertainment India Ltd. NIL NIL
  CA (Inter)
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To,
The Members,
Your Directors present the 17th Annual Report together with the Audited Financials of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The financial performance of your Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017 is summarized below: -

DIRECTORS'
REPORT

Particulars  2016-17 2015-16

Revenue from Operations  1,00,087.65 3,73,151.40
Other Income  179.37 135.94

Total Revenue  1,00,267.02 3,73,287.34

Pro�t/(Loss) before Finance Cost, Depreciation & Amortization Expense and Tax (7,214.40) 12,195.16
Finance Cost  11,700.12 8,091.84

Pro�t/(Loss) before Depreciation & Tax  (18,914.52) 3,785.82

Depreciation  1,772.17 1,890.30

Pro�t/(Loss) before Tax (20,686.69) 1,895.52

Provision for Tax
 - Current  410.70 
 - Deferred Tax (4,637.99) (40.09)
 - MAT Credit - (71.41)
 - Earlier Years - 18.60

Pro�t/(Loss) after Tax (16,048.70) 1,577.72

Other Comprehensive Income (2.11) (13.58)

Total  Comprehensive Income (16,050.81) 11,591.30
Face Value per Equity Share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00

Earnings Per Share (in Rs.)
 - Basic (5.76) 0.57
 - Diluted (5.76) 0.57

₹ in Lacs
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS  

During the financial year under review, the Company has suffered 
huge losses as compared to the previous financial year.

The Company reported revenue of Rs.1,002.67 Crore in FY 2016-17, 
representing a decline of 73.14% over the figure of Rs.3,732.87 
Crore reported in FY 2015-16. The Company has suffered Total 
Comprehensive loss of Rs.160.50 crore in F.Y. 2016-2017 as 
compared to Total Comprehensive Income of Rs. 15.91 crore in  
F.Y.2015-2016.

The Company is facing liquidity crunch since April, 2016 & the 
impact of the same is still subsisting. Due to this, your Company is 
unable to make payments of Secured & Unsecured Debts on time. 
This has affected the brand image of the Company.  

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of the company which have occurred between 
the end of Financial Year 2016-17 and the date of this report.

DIVIDEND

The Company has incurred losses; hence your Directors do not 
recommend any dividend on equity shares for the financial year 
under review.

The details of amount lying as unclaimed in the Unpaid Dividend 
Account of the Company for the Dividend declared for the financial 
year 2011-12 & 2012-13 are given in the Corporate Governance 
Report.

SHARE CAPITAL
The paid up Equity Share Capital as at 31st March, 2017 was Rs.278, 
58, 20,260/- During the year under review, your Company did not 
issue any further Capital.

Equity Shares of your Company are listed at BSE Limited and 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 
2013, Sh. Jitender Kumar Garg retires by rotation and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment.

Sh. Praveen Gupta, Independent Director, has resigned from 
directorship of the Company on 14th February, 2017, due to other 
preoccupations. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the 
services rendered by Sh. Praveen Gupta during his tenure of 
directorship with the Company.

Sh. Shiv Mohan Gupta, Independent Director, has resigned from 
directorship of the Company on 31st March, 2017, due to other 
preoccupations. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the 
services rendered by Sh. Shiv Mohan Gupta during his tenure of 
directorship with the Company.

Sh. Praveen Kumar Kapoor, Non-Executive Director has resigned 
from directorship of the Company on 23rd June, 2017, due to other 
preoccupations. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the 
services rendered by Sh. Praveen Kumar Kapoor during his tenure 
of directorship with the Company.

Sh. Shivam Gupta was appointed as an Additional (Independent) 
Director of the Company on 23rd June, 2017. His tenure of office 
expires at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and he is 
eligible for reappointment.

Sh. Vinod Kumar was not regularly visiting office due to which the 
whole administrative system was upsetting. He was not attending 

the Board Meetings as well and thus not participating/ 
contributing in the streamlining of business during such slowdown 
& liquidity crunch. Hence, Sh. Vinod Kumar was re-designated to 
Non-Executive Director w. e. f. 23rd June, 2017.

A brief resume of appointee Directors, the nature of expertise in 
specific functional areas and names of Companies in which they 
hold Directorship and/or Membership/Chairmanship of 
Committees of the Board, as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is annexed with the Notice calling 17th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.

Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent 
Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence as 
prescribed, both, under the provisions of Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Sh. Sunil Jindal, Managing Director, Dr. Anil Jindal, Sh. Vinod Kumar 
(re-designated as Non-Executive) and  Sh. Raju Bansal, Executive 
Directors are not receiving any commission/remuneration from any 
Holding/Subsidiary Companies of the Company.     

BOARD MEETINGS
A calendar of Meetings of the Board of Directors of your Company is 
prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors.

During the year under review, Fourteen (14) meetings of the Board 
of Directors were held. Independent Director’s also had their 
separate meeting on 31st March, 2017. The details of Board 
meetings and the attendance of Directors in such meetings are 
given in the ‘Corporate Governance Report’ forming part of this 
Annual Report. 

The intervening gap between the Board Meetings was within the 
period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION MECHANISM
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has carried 
out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the 
individual directors as well as evaluation of working of its Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Risk Management 
Committee and Investment Committee. 
Information on the manner in which formal annual evaluation has 
been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its 
Committees and individual directors is given in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

REMUNERATION POLICY
Information regarding Remuneration Policy is given in the 
Corporate Governance Report. 

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES 
The composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as 
required under Section 135(2), the composition of Audit 
Committee as required under Section 177 (8) and the composition 
of Nomination & Remuneration Committee as required under 
Section 178  of the Companies Act, 2013  is given in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Further, the Board has accepted all the recommendations of the 
Audit Committee during the year under review.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS (KMPS)
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) is a mandatory requirement which is 
to be complied by every Company belonging to such class or classes of the Companies as prescribed in the section. Following are the whole 
time key managerial personnel of your Company, who held such offices as are mentioned against their respective names:

1. Executive Chairman:- Dr. Anil Jindal

2. Managing Director:- Mr. Sunil Jindal

3. Whole Time Director:- Mr. Raju Bansal and Mr. Vinod Kumar*

4. Chief Financial Officer:- Mr. Sachin Goyal

5. COO & Company Secretary:- Dr.(Mrs.) Navneet  Kwatra

6. Comliance officer:- Mrs. Mamta Rastogi

*Upto 22nd June, 2017nd June, 2017nd

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
Your Company has not given guarantee in favour of any person/company during the financial year 2016-17.

The Company has provided following loans and has made the following investments u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013: 

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course 
of business and on an arm’s length basis. There being no ‘material’ related party transactions as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Regulation 27 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which may have potential conflict with 
the interest of your Company at large.

Hence, there are no details to be disclosed in Form AOC-2 in that regard.

STATUS OF BANK LOANS
Due to liquidity problems, the Company has been irregular and classified as NPA mainly due to non-servicing of interest and other realated 
charges for the Cash Credit Facilities and corporate loans availed from consortium of Banks for the aggregate outstanding amounting to 
Rs.87,288.78 Lacs and Rs. 532.21 Lacs, respectively as on 31st March, 2017.

The State Bank of India has initiated recovery procedure by opening a Trust and Retention Account (TRA) and recovered amounting to Rs.  
1,282.52 Lacs during the period from which the account have become NPA upto 31st March, 2017 and from the outstanding amount reported 
above, Rs. 87.75 Lacs has been recovered subsequently upto the date of 30th May 2017.

However, the company has submitted the request for the restructuring of accounts vide later dated 4th July 2016 followed by reference letter 
dated 18th May 2017 and deliberation in various consortium forums inter-alia including the meeting of Joint Lander Forum (JLF), with the 
sole of objecting of finding solutions aimed at revival.

FIXED DEPOSITS
Due to liquidity crunch in the Company, the Company was not able to maintain liquid assets for the year ended 31st March, 2017 as required 
under section 73 (2) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

The Company has been regular in repayment of Principal Amounts till mid of April, 2016. However, after that the repayments could not made 
on time .

The Company had filed an application with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for extension of time for repayment of Deposits and NCLT 
has passed the order on 20th  October, 2016 granting extension of time to the Company for repayment of Deposits. 

The NCLT has granted further extension vide its order dated 2nd February, 2017 for interest payments by 31st March, 2017 and Principal 
payments by 30th June, 2017 in accordance with its earlier Order dated 20th October, 2016. The payments due are in process.

The Company has re-paid full principal amount in few cases & under Hardship Category also.

S. No. Name of the Entity Nature of transaction Amount Particulars of Loans,
    Guarantee or Investment

1 SRS Entertainment India Ltd. Loan NIL Temporary Loan for expansion
 (Formerly known as   of business. 
 SRS Entertainment Limited)

2. SRS Entertainment India Ltd. Investment Rs.8,32,00,000/- Acquired the shares of the Company 
 (Formerly known as
 SRS Entertainment Limited) 
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The Management is making its best efforts for arranging funds for payment of interest/principal of deposits at the earliest.

UNCLAIMED REFUND & INTEREST ON REFUND ACCOUNT    
The Company has Rs.1, 49, 900/- as unclaimed in the Refund Account and Rs.29,277/- as unclaimed in the Interest on Refund Account 
maintained with the State Bank of India, for IPO of the Company as on 31st March, 2017.

AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors
M/s. SVP & Associates, Chartered Accountants and M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered Accountants, Joint Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and have expressed their willingness for reappointment as joint 
statutory auditors in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and confirmed that their re-appointment, if made, will be within the 
prescribed limits under Section 141(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and they are not disqualified for such re-appointment within the meaning 
of Section 141 of the said Act. 

The members are requested to ratify the appointment of M/s. SVP & Associates, Chartered Accountants and M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, 
Chartered Accountants, as Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this AGM until the conclusion of Four consecutive 
AGMs as mentioned in the Notice.

Internal Auditors
The following firms of Chartered Accountants were ceased to be the Internal Auditors of the Company during the year under review:  

M/s. Love Mangla & Co.
M/s. Sumit Chhabra & Co.
M/s. SRGM & Associates

The following firms of Chartered Accountants have been appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company w. e. f. 14th February, 2017: 

M/s. Jagannath Sharma & Associates 
M/s. 360 Degree Solutions

Secretarial Auditor
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board has appointed Ms. Savita Trehan, Company Secretary in practice, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company. 

Secretarial Audit Report for the year 2016-17 given by Ms. Savita Trehan in the prescribed form MR-3 is annexed to this Report as Annexure-I.

Ms. Savita Trehan was appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company till F.Y.2016-2017. She has been reappointed for another three years 
from F.Y.2017-18 to 2019-2020. 

AUDITORS’ REPORT 
The Joint Statutory Auditors’ M/s. SVP & Associates, Chartered Accountants and M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered Accountants have 
given the following two Qualifications in Joint Statutory Audit Report: 

I. Foreign Trade Receivables aggregating Rs.30619 lacs were outstanding as at 31st March, 2017 on account of sale during the FY 2015-16 
and FY 2016-17 in UAE (including Rs.13899 lacs out of sale to parties from inventories sent through NSEZ unit of the Company located 
in India to UAE Branch through Branch Transfer), which are unsecured, i.e., not backed by any security. 

 Hence, the Auditors’ are unable to form an opinion on the recoverability of the same & consequent impact on the Companies financial  
for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

 Management's estimation on the impact of audit quali�cation: 'Nil' as per management in view of the following:
Foreign Trade Receivables aggregating Rs. 30619 lacs were outstanding as at 31st March, 2017 on account of sale during the FY 2015-16 
and FY 2016-17 in UAE (including Rs.13899 lacs out of sale to parties from inventories sent through NSEZ unit of the Company located 
in India to UAE Branch through Branch Transfer), which are unsecured, i.e., not backed by any security. 

 Management is assured about the recoverability of the Foreign Trade Receivable and taking all necessary steps for the recoverability of 
the same.  Out of aforesaid Trade receivables, company has received Rs.9315 lacs subsequent to 31st March, 2017.

II. Deposit Repayment Reserve Account for the fixed deposits at the close of FY 2016-17 required under section 73(2)(c ) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 equal to 15% of the deposits maturing in the year and year following were found short by Rs.855 Lacs (short amount as on 
31st March 2017).

 The Auditors’ are unable to comment on the financial implications in respect of the same.

 The Secretarial Auditor Ms. Savita Trehan has also mentioned this qualification in her Secretarial Report. 

Management's estimation on the impact of audit quali�cation: 'Nil' as per management in view of the following:
The Company was not able to maintain funds in the liquid assets as required under the provisions of Section 73(2)(c) due to liquidity 
problem in the Company.
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The auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee during the financial year 2016-17.

HOLDING, SUBSIDIARIES AND BRANCHES
BTL Holding Company Limited has ceased to be the Holding Company of the Company w. e. f. 27th January, 2017. 

SRS Entertainment India Limited is the Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company.

SRS Worldwide (FZC) at Sharjah Airport International Free Zone (SAIF Zone), Sharjah, UAE is ceased to be the Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the 
Company w. e. f. 21st February, 2017.

The Company has acquired 100% shareholding in SRS Bright Retail Limited by acquiring it’s 1, 00,00,000 Equity Shares on 30th June, 2017  for 
expansion of its Retail Business. Hence, SRS Bright Retail Limited has becomes the Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company w. e. f. 30th June, 2017.

The Company is having Branch at Sharjah Airport International Free Zone (SAIF Zone), Sharjah for its jewellery business. 

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statement is set out 
herein as Annexure-II in the Form-AOC-1

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In compliance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Accounting Standard – 21 on Consolidated Financial Statements, this 
Annual Report also includes Consolidated Financial Statements for the year 2016-17.

Further, the Annual Accounts and related documents of the subsidiary company shall be kept open for inspection at the Registered Office of 
the Company. The Company will also make available copy thereof upon specific request by any Member of the Company interested in 
obtaining the same.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of the annual return as provided under sub-section (3) of section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to this report as 
Annexure - III.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with sub-rules (2) and (3) of Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, there are no employees drawing remuneration in excess of the 
limits set out in the said Rules.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided herein below:-

i) the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the year 2016-17:

(ii)  the percentage increase in remuneration of Managing Director, Whole-Time Director, CFO and Company Secretary in the financial  
 year 2016-2017:

 * Sh. Bhagwan Dass, Chief Financial Officer has resigned on 1st February, 2017 & Sh. Sachin Goyal has been appointed as Chief Financial 
Officer w. e. f. 27th January, 2017.   

  As the impact of the jewellery strike has badly impacted the Company and the Company’s operating cycle remained disrupted, the 
debtors realization of jewellery segment too was negligible. All such things cumulatively affected the cash flows of the Company 
severely since March, 2016. 

S. No. Name of Directors Nature of Directorship Ratio

1. Dr. Anil Jindal Chairman (Executive) 67:1

2. Sh. Sunil Jindal Managing Director 24:1

3. Sh. Raju Bansal Whole-Time Director  39:1

4. Sh. Vinod Kumar Whole-Time Director 20:1

S. No. Name of Directors/KMPs Designation % increase 

1. Dr. Anil Jindal Chairman (Executive) -49%

2. Sh. Sunil Jindal Managing Director  -45%

3. Sh. Raju Bansal Whole-Time Director  -44%

4. Sh. Vinod Kumar Whole-Time Director -54%

5. Sh. Bhagwan Dass* Chief Financial O�cer -37%

4. Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra C.O.O. & Company Secretary  -26%
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S. No. Name  Designation Revised Remuneration 
   (p.m.) (in Rs.) 

1. Dr. Anil Jindal Chairman (Executive) 3,50,000/-

2. Sh. Sunil Jindal Managing Director 2,00,000/-

3. Sh. Raju Bansal Whole-Time Director 1,25,000/-

4. Sh. Vinod Kumar Whole-Time Director 1,25,000/-

5. Sh. Bhagwan Dass Chief Financial O�cer 1,00,000/-

6. Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra  C.O.O. & Company Secretary 1,00,000/-

7. Ms. Seema Narang  Chief Accounts O�cer  1,00,000/-

S. No. Name  Designation Revised Remuneration 
   (p.m.) (in Rs.) 

1. Dr. Anil Jindal Chairman (Executive) 2,00,000/-

2. Sh. Sunil Jindal Managing Director 1,50,000/-

3. Sh. Raju Bansal Whole-Time Director 1,00,000/-

4. Sh. Vinod Kumar Whole-Time Director 1,00,000/-

 Therefore, for better efficiency in the long-term and for overall good of the Company, the remuneration of all the Key managerial 
Personnel’s of the Company i.e. the Chairman, Managing Director, Executive Directors, C.O.O & Company Secretary, Chief Finance Officer 
and Chief Accounts Officer were reduced w. e. f. 1st June, 2016. 

 All the KMPs gave their consent for the same. 

 The liquidity problem is still subsisting in the Company, therefore, the remuneration of all the Executive Directors of the Company was 
further reduced w. e. f. 1st January, 2017. 

 All the Executive Directors gave their consent for the same. 

 Further, there was no increase in the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors by way of sitting fee for attending Board/Committee 
meetings for the financial year 2016-17. No profit linked commission is paid to Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company. 

(iii)  the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees during the financial year was -4%.

(iv)  the number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2017 is 1630.

(v)   there is no employee receiving remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during the year: 

(vi)  yes, the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 
The Company has a Vigilance Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy to deal with fraud and mismanagement, if any. The details of Vigil 
mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy are explained in the Corporate Governance Report and have also been posted on the website of the 
Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN
For better corporate governance and in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted Risk Management Plan. The same is uploaded at the website of the 
Company www.srsparivar.com.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)  
The Company has Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy for your Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, on the recommendations of the CSR Committee.

The Annual Report on the CSR Activities undertaken by the Company during the financial year is enclosed herewith as Annexure-IV.     

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

i)  Energy Conservation

 With the ideology of adhering to preservation and conservation of natural resources, we continue being environmentally responsible 

and energy efficient. We are committed to do its bit towards protection of environment and after taking positive steps in this area, the 

Company is keeping up its efforts to enhance its sustainable footprint. The following initiatives have been taken in this area: 
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Particulars                 For the year ended

    31st March, 2017  31st March, 2016

FOB Sale 301.03 51,256.87

₹ in Lacs

Particulars                 For the year ended

  31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Bank Charges & other �nancial expenses 0.49 5.91

Insurance Expenses - 0.51

Lease Rent paid - 2.57

Legal & Professional Expenses - 0.15

Miscellaneous Expenses - 0.05

Rates & Taxes - 19.87

Other Operational Expense - 39.13

Security & House Keeping - 0.21

Total 0.49 68.40

 • CFLs and CDMTs were replaced with low consuming LED lights at SRS Mall and all the outlets of SRS Value Bazaar. 

 • Installed Air Cooled Fluid Cooler for 1010 KVA DG set for lower  fuel consumption

• Rain Water Harvesting System is in place for re-using rain water.

• Zero water discharge status from SRS Mall area to harvest every drop of rain water that will improve the ground water substantially. 

• Installed latest technology Energy Star Rating HVAC items for reduced electricity consumption

• Regularly & timely servicing of all DG sets  and equipment for lower fuel consumption

• Increased green area around the mall, which is not only environmentally friendly but also helps control the temperature. 

• Recycling of water by first using for fountains & then the same water is used for gardening purpose. This water is not drained in

  sewer/drain lines. 

• Timings reduced of running units to be controlled in early morning & late night. 

ii)  Technology Absorption                                      :    Nil

iii)  Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo   
Earning in foreign Currency:

Expenditure in foreign Currency: 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed that: - 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2017, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

 The Company has adopted all the Ind-AS standards on April, 2016 with the transition date as April 1, 2015, and all the adoption was 
carried out in accordance with Ind-As 101 –First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from 
Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP;  

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of 
the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) that the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls are 
adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f ) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively.

₹ in Lacs
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DETAILS ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company has put in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, some of which are outlined 
below:

Your Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line with the Accounting Standards prescribed in the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006 that continue to apply under Section 133 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable. These are in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in India. Changes in policies, if any, are approved by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
Your Company has a policy for the prevention of sexual harassment which has been implemented at unit level. It ensures prevention and 
deterrence towards the commissioning of acts of sexual harassment and communicates procedures for their resolution and settlement. A 
Committee has been constituted in accordance with the requirements under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 which ensures implementation and compliance with the Law as well as the policy at unit level. 

During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
There are no significant/material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status of your 
Company and its operations in future.

The Company had filed an application with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for extension of time for repayment of Deposits and NCLT 
has passed the order on 20th  October, 2016 granting extension of time to the Company for repayment of Deposits. 

The NCLT has granted further extension vide its order dated 2nd February, 2017 for interest payments by 31st March, 2017 and Principal 
payments by 30th June, 2017 in accordance with its earlier Order dated 20th October, 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Your Company is committed to maintain highest standards of Corporate Governance. The Directors adhere to the requirements set out by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India’s Corporate Governance Practice and have implemented all the prescribed stipulations. The 
Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms as part of Annual Report.

The report on Corporate Governance together with the certificate from Ms. Savita Trehan, Practicing Company Secretary [FCS No.4374], 
confirming the compliance of the Corporate Governance is annexed to this report for information of the Members.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report of financial condition and results of operations of the Company is given as a separate 
statement forming part of this Annual Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board places its warm appreciation to all the Shareowner’s, Bankers, Auditors, Customers, employees and all other associates who 
support and stand with the Company in this challenging times and look forward to their continued support.

Place: Faridabad      For and on behalf of the Board
Date: 12th July,  2017  

 (Sunil Jindal) (Raju Bansal)
Managing Director Whole-Time Director 

 DIN: 00013791 DIN: 00007344
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Annexure-I

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
SRS LIMITED
SRS Tower, 3rd Floor, Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur,
G.T.Road, Faridabad. 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by 
M/s. SRS LIMITED (CIN:L74999HR2000PLC040183)(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also 
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017, complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder, except that due to the resignation of two independent directors  in the month of February 
and March,2017 respectively, the composition of the Board of Directors was not proper in that period in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2017. However, on this day of Audit Report, the composition of the Board of Directors of the 
Company is in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.The Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism is in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. SRS Limited for the financial 
year ended on 31st  March, 2017 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
 Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz. :-
 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015

(v) Other laws which are specifically applicable to the Company.

And hereby certify that the company has made compliance with all the provisions of the above said Act(s) and Regulations.
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(ii) Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSELtd. and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) read withSEBI
 (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned 
above.

I further report that, as per the nature of activities carried on by the Company during the period under audit, the following Acts, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. are not applicable to the Company during the audit period:

a) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,1999;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies 
 Act and dealing with Client;

I further report that:

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company was in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 except that due to the resignation of two independent directors  in the month of February and March,2017 
respectively, the composition of the Board of Directors was not proper in that period in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. However, on this day of Audit Report, the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in 
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least 
seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the Minutes of the Meetings of the 
Board of Directors or Committee(s) of the Board, as the case may be. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company 
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period following specific events/actions were taken by the Company which have major bearing on the 
company’s affairs in pursuance of the act, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. referred above:

Deposit Repayment Reserve Account for the fixed deposits at the close of FY 2016-17 required under section 73(2)(c ) of the Companies Act, 
2013 equal to 15% of the deposits maturing in the year and year following were found short by Rs.855 Lacs (short amount as as on 31st 

March, 2017).

Due to inability of the Company to repay the Deposits timely (liquidity problem),the Company approached NCLT, Northern Region for 
extension of time in repayment of Deposits.

Date: 12th July, 2017   (Savita Trehan)
Place: Faridabad      Practicing Company Secretary

C.P. No.2569
 M.No.4374

Note: This report is to be read with the notes of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure-I

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
SRS LIMITED
SRS Tower, 3rd Floor, Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur,
G.T.Road, Faridabad. 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by 
M/s. SRS LIMITED (CIN:L74999HR2000PLC040183)(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also 
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017, complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder, except that due to the resignation of two independent directors  in the month of February 
and March,2017 respectively, the composition of the Board of Directors was not proper in that period in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2017. However, on this day of Audit Report, the composition of the Board of Directors of the 
Company is in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.The Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism is in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. SRS Limited for the financial 
year ended on 31st  March, 2017 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
 Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz. :-
 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015

(v) Other laws which are specifically applicable to the Company.

And hereby certify that the company has made compliance with all the provisions of the above said Act(s) and Regulations.
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(ii) Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSELtd. and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) read withSEBI
 (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned 
above.

I further report that, as per the nature of activities carried on by the Company during the period under audit, the following Acts, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. are not applicable to the Company during the audit period:

a) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,1999;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies 
 Act and dealing with Client;

I further report that:

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company was in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 except that due to the resignation of two independent directors  in the month of February and March,2017 
respectively, the composition of the Board of Directors was not proper in that period in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. However, on this day of Audit Report, the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in 
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least 
seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the Minutes of the Meetings of the 
Board of Directors or Committee(s) of the Board, as the case may be. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company 
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period following specific events/actions were taken by the Company which have major bearing on the 
company’s affairs in pursuance of the act, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. referred above:

Deposit Repayment Reserve Account for the fixed deposits at the close of FY 2016-17 required under section 73(2)(c ) of the Companies Act, 
2013 equal to 15% of the deposits maturing in the year and year following were found short by Rs.855 Lacs (short amount as as on 31st 

March, 2017).

Due to inability of the Company to repay the Deposits timely (liquidity problem),the Company approached NCLT, Northern Region for 
extension of time in repayment of Deposits.

Date: 12th July, 2017   (Savita Trehan)
Place: Faridabad      Practicing Company Secretary

C.P. No.2569
 M.No.4374

Note: This report is to be read with the notes of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

 

(Savita Trehan)
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To
The Members
SRS LIMITED
SRS Tower, 305 & 307, 3rd Floor,
Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur,
G. T. Road, Faridabad. 

Dear Sir/Ma’m

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2016-17 of even date is to be read along with the following notes:

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.  My responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the Secretarial records. 

 The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 
practices I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3.  I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records, personal records of employee(s) and Books of Accounts of 
the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

Date: 12th July, 2017    (Savita Trehan)
Place: Faridabad      Practicing Company Secretary

C.P. No.2569
 M.No.4374

(Savita Trehan)

‘Annexure A’
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Annexure-II

Form AOC -I
(Pursuant to �rst proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the �nancial statement of subsidiaries

Part "A": Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)
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1 SI. No. (1)

2 Name of the subsidiary SRS Entertainment
  India Ltd

3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if di�erent from the holding company's reporting period

4 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of
 foreign subsidiaries. N/A

5 Share Capital 266,600,000

6 Reserves & surplus  (33,000,181)

7 Total Assets  272,418,095 

8 Total Liabilities  38,818,276 

9 Investments  25,000 

10 Turnover  140,790,646 

11 Pro�t before taxation   (18,512,638)

12 Provision for taxation  (5,342,333)

13 Pro�t after taxation  (13,170,305)

14 Proposed Dividend

15 % of Shareholding 100.00%



Annual Report 2016-17 45 | SRS Limited



46 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 47 | SRS Limited



48 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 49 | SRS Limited



50 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 51 | SRS Limited



52 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 53 | SRS Limited



₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs
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 (In ₹)
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 (In ₹)
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4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above) 

CSR Expenditure –Rs.80, 20,212/-

5. Details of CSR spent during the �nancial year:

a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs.80,30,000/- 

b) Amount unspent if any: Nil

a) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

The CSR Committee con�rms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

              

   (Sunil Jindal)                                                                                     (Lalit Kumar)

       Managing Director                                Chairman-CSR Committee 

Annexure IV to Board’s Report

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the 

web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs

 The CSR Policy is adopted by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 26th August, 2014. 

 The brief details of the policy are as follows:

SRS is a relationship-driven entity which deeply values the direct and indirect role played by varied elements of the society in its 

success. As a conscientious corporate citizen that works with a human touch, it believes in going beyond business to create goodness 

all around. This sentiment is well captured in our vision for CSR: “Enhance the quality of life of people by providing them with key skills, 

aid and support to make a marked change in their living conditions, putting in place a sustainable advantage to enable them live an 

empowered life. As a result, help in creating a lasting human, social, economic and cultural capital for the society.”

 CSR POLICY

 The CSR Policy of SRS Limited is:

 - Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and sanitation and making available safe 
drinking water;

 - Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocational skills especially among children, 
women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects;

 - Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and orphans; setting up old age 
homes, day care centres and such other facilities for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and 
economically backward groups;

 - Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry, 
conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and water;

 - Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of historical importance and works of 
art; setting up public libraries, promotion and development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

 - Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;

 - Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic sports;

 - Contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central Government for socio-economic 
development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and 
women;

 - Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions which are approved by the 
Central Government;

 - Rural development projects; and 

 - Slum area development.

Apart from this, the CSR Policy shall retain a dynamic outlook and shall take a call on the sectors, activities and areas for focus with a 

view to maximize the productivity from such efforts. SRS will also have the option to partner with complimentary governmental 

bodies, NGOs, industry bodies, proven social welfare experts etc. so as to create a more synergistic CSR plan.

2. Composition of CSR committee as on 31st March, 2017

3. Average Net Pro�t of the Company for last three �nancial years 

Average Net Profits - Rs. 40, 10,10,575/-

Name  Designation

Sh. Lalit Kumar (Independent Director) Chairman

Dr. Anil Jindal Member

Sh. Raju Bansal  Member 



4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above) 

CSR Expenditure –Rs.80, 20,212/-

5. Details of CSR spent during the �nancial year:

a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs.80,30,000/- 

b) Amount unspent if any: Nil

a) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

The CSR Committee con�rms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

              

   (Sunil Jindal)                                                                                     (Lalit Kumar)

       Managing Director                                Chairman-CSR Committee 

Annexure IV to Board’s Report

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the 

web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs

 The CSR Policy is adopted by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 26th August, 2014. 

 The brief details of the policy are as follows:

SRS is a relationship-driven entity which deeply values the direct and indirect role played by varied elements of the society in its 

success. As a conscientious corporate citizen that works with a human touch, it believes in going beyond business to create goodness 

all around. This sentiment is well captured in our vision for CSR: “Enhance the quality of life of people by providing them with key skills, 

aid and support to make a marked change in their living conditions, putting in place a sustainable advantage to enable them live an 

empowered life. As a result, help in creating a lasting human, social, economic and cultural capital for the society.”

 CSR POLICY

 The CSR Policy of SRS Limited is:

 - Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and sanitation and making available safe 
drinking water;

 - Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocational skills especially among children, 
women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects;

 - Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and orphans; setting up old age 
homes, day care centres and such other facilities for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and 
economically backward groups;

 - Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry, 
conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and water;

 - Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of historical importance and works of 
art; setting up public libraries, promotion and development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

 - Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;

 - Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic sports;

 - Contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central Government for socio-economic 
development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and 
women;

 - Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions which are approved by the 
Central Government;

 - Rural development projects; and 

 - Slum area development.

Apart from this, the CSR Policy shall retain a dynamic outlook and shall take a call on the sectors, activities and areas for focus with a 

view to maximize the productivity from such efforts. SRS will also have the option to partner with complimentary governmental 

bodies, NGOs, industry bodies, proven social welfare experts etc. so as to create a more synergistic CSR plan.

2. Composition of CSR committee as on 31st March, 2017

3. Average Net Pro�t of the Company for last three �nancial years 

Average Net Profits - Rs. 40, 10,10,575/-

S. No. CSR Project or activity identi�ed Sector in which Projects or  Amount outlay  Amount spent  Cumulative   Amount spent:
  the project is programmes (budget) project on the projects expenditure upto  Direct or through
   covered 1) Local area or programs wise or programs the reporting   implementing
     or other (in Rs.) Sub Heads:  period (in Rs.) agency
   2)  Specify the  1)  Direct   
    State and   Expenditure on   
    district where   projects or  
    projects or   programmes
    programs was  2)  Overheads
    undertaken   (in Rs.)

1. Amount spent under Scheme Gender equality Local Area          80,20,212/-    42,70,000/- 42,70,000/- Through  
  ‘Beti Bachao Beti Padhao’ and education     Implementing
 for education of girl child   for girls      Agency- SRS Social  
        Welfare Association

2. Donation given to Aggarwal Education Local Area     37,60,000/- 80,30,000/- Through 
 Vidhya Parcharni Sabha      Implementing  
       Agency- SRS Social
       Welfare Association

              

   (Sunil Jindal)                                                                                     (Lalit Kumar)

58 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Annual Report 2016-17 59 | SRS Limited



60 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 61 | SRS Limited



62 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 63 | SRS Limited



64 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 65 | SRS Limited



66 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 67 | SRS Limited



68 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 69 | SRS Limited



70 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 71 | SRS Limited



72 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



Annual Report 2016-17 73 | SRS Limited



Annexure-A

Declaration A�rming Compliance of provisions of the Code of Conduct

This is to certify that pursuant to Para D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
we affirm that the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have complied with the Code of Conduct of the  Company 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017.

Place: Faridabad
Date: 12th July, 2017 (Anil Jindal) (Sunil Jindal)
 Chairman Managing Director
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Annexure-B

Certi�cations by Chairman, MD & CFO of the Company

We, Anil Jindal, Chairman; Sunil Jindal, Managing Director and Sachin Goyal, CFO, of  ‘SRS Limited’, to the best of our Knowledge and belief, 
certify that:

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and Cash Flow Statement along with all the Notes for the year and to the best of the our 
knowledge and belief:

 (i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading;

 (ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or 
violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

3. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have evaluated the effectiveness of 
internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and Audit Committee, 
wherever applicable:

 a) Deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, which come to our notice and steps have been taken/proposed 
to be taken to rectify these deficiencies;

 b) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

 c) Significant changes in accounting policy during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.

 d) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.   

       

Place: Faridabad
Date:  30th May,2017 (Anil Jindal) (Sunil Jindal) (Sachin Goyal)
 Chairman Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure - C

Certi�cate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding Compliance
of Conditions of Corporate Governance

To 
The Members 
SRS Limited

I have examined the Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by ‘SRS Limited’ (the Company) for the year ended 31st March, 2017 
as stipulated in Regulation 17 to Regulation 27 and clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of schedule of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. (Listing Regulations purruant to the listing agreements of the company 
with Stock Exchanges.)

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. My examination has been 
limited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said clause. 

In my opinion and to best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, except that due to regination of two indipennt 
directors in the month of Febrauary & March, 2017 respectively,  the composttion of the Board of Directors was not porper in that period in 
terms of SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

However, on this day of certificate, the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in compliace with the  provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Place: Faridabad        (Savita Trehan) 
Date: 12th July, 2017                                                                                 Company Secretary

 C.P. No. 2569

(Savita Trehan) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SRS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SRS Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as 

at March 31, 2017 the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement 

of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 

to the preparation of these standalone financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 

(including other comprehensive income), cash Flow and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015 (as amended) under Section133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safe guarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true 

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under including the accounting and auditing standards and 

matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made the reunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 

143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 

control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

standalone financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 

financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Cash Credit and Demand Loan facilities from consortium of banks, the aggregate outstanding of which amounts to Rs. 878 crore as on 31st

March 2017 are irregular and classified as NPA mainly due to non-servicing of interest and related charges.

Our opinion is not modified in respect to above matter.

Basis for Quali�ed Opinion

1.  Foreign Trade Receivables aggregating Rs. 30619 lacs (as on 31st March 2017) on account of sale during the FY 2015-16 and 2016-17 in 

UAE (including Rs. 13899 lacs out of sale to parties from inventories sent through NSEZ unit of the Company located in India to UAE 

Branch through Branch transfer) are unsecured, i.e., not backed up by any security. Out of aforesaid Trade Receivables, the Company has 

recovered Rs. 9315 lacs subsequent to 31st March 2017 (refer Note 3.43 to financial statements).

 We are unable to comment on the recoverability and any further impact on the Company’s financials forthe year ended 31st March 2017.
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2.  Deposit Repayment Reserve Account for the Fixed deposits at the close of FY 2016-17 required under Section 73(2)(c) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 equal to 15% of the deposits maturing in the year & year following were found short by Rs.855 lacs (short amount as on 31st

March 2017).We are unable to comment on the financial implications in respect of the same.

Quali�ed Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the matter 

described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the 

Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the 

state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its profit/ loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash Flow and the 

changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

a) In terms of the Joint Responsibility Statement (as per Standards on Auditing-299) forming part of the Engagement Letter:

 i. Audit of Retail Segment, Cinema Segment and part of un-allocable segment whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 

13044 lacs as at 31st March, 2017 and total revenue of Rs. 31513 lacs for the year ended on that date has been carried out by M/s SVP 

& Associates; and

 ii. Audit of Gold & Jewellery Segment, Corporate & Other Segment and part of un-allocable segment whose financial statement reflect 

total assets of Rs. 156024 lacs as at 31st March, 2017 and total revenue of Rs. 68575 lacs for the year ended on that date has been 

carried out by M/s Oswal Sunil & Co.

  Refer segment information in the statement of standalone audited results for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

b) The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 

1, 2015 included in these standalone financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements forthe years 

ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as 

amended) which were not audited by us, on which we received a modified opinion and an unmodified opinion respectively, dated June 

8, 2016 and May 22, 2015 respectively, from other Auditors. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in 

accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to Indian Accounting Standards have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect to above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(i)  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section(11) of 

section 143 of the Act (“the Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered 

appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

(ii) Subject to matters stated in ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 

for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination 

of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the 

Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 

133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of 

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of 

the Act.

(f ) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 

given to us:
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i.  The Company has disclosed the impact, if any,  of pending litigations as at March 31, 2017 on its financial position in its standalone

financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2017,as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material 

foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company during the year ended March 31, 2017.

iv. The Company has provided disclosures in its financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during 

the period from 8th November 2016 to 30th December 2016. However, we are unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit 

evidence to report on whether the disclosures are in accordance with books of account and records maintained by the Company 

and as produced to us by the Management – Refer Note 3.42 to financial statements.

For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) 
Partner Partner
M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238

Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad
Date: 30th May, 2017 Date: 30th May, 2017
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(As referred in paragraph (1) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements ‘of our report to the members of

SRS Limited on the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017)

(i) (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

 (b)  As explained to us, the company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are 

verified in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 

Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with the program, fixed assets were verified during the year and no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 

the title deeds of immovable properties held are in the name of the Company.

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the year. As far as we could ascertain 

and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed between the physical stock 

and the book records.

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loan to one company covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

 (a)  In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been granted were not, prima facie, 

prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

 (b) The principal and interest amount is repayable as per stipulations.

 (c) Since the principal & interest amount is repayable as per stipulations, provisions of clause (3)(iii)(c) of the order are not 

applicable to the company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of 

section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect tothe loans and investments made.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not complied with the directives 

issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the rules framed there under with regard to Deposits accepted from the public, in respect of maintenance of liquid assets (refer 

para 2 of ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ forming part of the main report) and in respect of provisions regarding acceptance, repayment 

of deposits and payment of interest.  

 As per information and explanations given to us, with regard to Deposits accepted from the public, no order has been passed by 

Reserve Bank of India or any Tribunal, other than National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT). In respect of orders issued by Courts, as per 

information and explanations given to us, the orders were in the course of compliance. However, the Order/s for extension in 

repayment of deposits and payment of interest issued by NCLT was/were not fully complied with. The amounts involved and impact 

thereof are not ascertainable in view of the Order/s providing for staggered payments over the period ending June 2017/ Dec 2017.

(vi) According to information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records 

under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, provisions of Clause 3 (vi) ofthe order are not applicable 

to the company.

(vii) (a) The Company, has been generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including 

Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, 

Cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to 

information and explanations given to us,no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State 

Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax,Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and Cess were in arrears as at 

March 31, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount payable (Rs. in lacs) Period to which the
   amount relates

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 153.39 AY 2016-17



Name of the Lender Nature of Borrowings Amount of default as Period of default
  at Balance Sheet date (Rs. in lacs) 

State Bank of India Interest on Cash Credits
 and Demand Loan 4,436.39 >3 months

Bank of India Interest on Cash Credits 1,550.91 >3 months

Union Bank of India Interest on Cash Credits 1,084.16 >3 months

Oriental Bank of Commerce Interest on Cash Credits 423.07 >3 months

Syndicate Bank Interest on Cash Credits 124.29 >3 months

Name of the Lender Nature of Borrowings Amount of default as Period of default
  at Balance Sheet date (Rs. in lacs) 

State Bank of India Cash Credits and Working
 Capital Demand Loan 46,636.94 >3 months

Bank of India Cash Credits 17,114.10 >3 months

Union Bank of India Cash Credits 9,708.40 >3 months

Oriental Bank of Commerce Cash Credits 5,217.22 >3 months

Syndicate Bank Cash Credits 993.30 >3 months

Name of the statute Nature of dues Demand amount  Amount paid  Period to which the  Forum where 
  (Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) amount relates dispute is
     pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 636.33 174 AY 2012-13 CIT (Appeals),
     Faridabad

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 614.63 -  AY 2013-14 CIT (Appeals),
     Faridabad

 (b) According to the information and explanations given tous, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,Duty of 

Customs, Duty of Excise & Value Added Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as given below:

(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or 

borrowings to any banks and financial institutions as at balance sheet date, except in the below mentioned cases:

Interest amount:

Principal amount:

The Company does not have any debentures, loans or borrowings from the government.

(ix) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)during the year. 

The term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were raised.

(x) Based upon the audit procedure performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view and on the basis of the information 

and explanations given by the management, were port that no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the 

course of our audit.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to usand based on our examination of the records of the Company,the Company 

has paid/provided for managerialremuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 

read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)  As per the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, all transactions 

with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable and the details 

have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) 
Partner Partner
M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238

Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad
Date: 30th May, 2017 Date: 30th May, 2017

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 

Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the 

year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to usand based on our examination of the records of the Company,the Company 

has not entered into non-cash transactionswith directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is 

not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SRS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SRS Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction 

with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company' sinternal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 

Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the 

Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding there liability 

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate.

Quali�ed opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness has been identified as 

at March 31,  2017:
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The Company’s UAE Branch did not have an appropriate internal control system for credit appraisal and ultimate collection from the trade 

debtors.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting,such that there is a 

reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or 

detected on a timely basis.In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on the achievement of 

the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2017, based on‘the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India’.  We 

have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in 

our audit of the March 31, 2017 financial statements of the Company, and the possible impact due to aforesaid material weakness, has been 

appropriately reflected in our qualified opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company in respect of the same.

For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) 
Partner Partner
M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238

Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad
Date: 30th May, 2017 Date: 30th May, 2017
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 Particulars Note As at As at As at
  No. 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

 Assets
 Non-Current Assets 
 Property, Plant and Equipment 3.1 19,951.22 21,971.67  23,248.53
 Capital work-in-progress 3.2  181.83  105.24 25.42
 Intangible assets 3.3  53.95 72.37  115.11
 Financial Assets 3.4
   -   Investments 3.4.1 2,666.70  1,926.96 92.96
   -   Other �nancial assets 3.4.2  1,109.55  1,103.27 1,060.44
 Deferred Tax Assets (net) 3.5  3,771.50  (866.50)  (978.00)
 Other non-current assets 3.6  233.92 196.16  44.97 

 Total Non-Current Assets   27,968.67  24,509.17 23,609.43

 Current Assets
 Inventories 3.7  20,822.49 55,077.88 35,784.80
 Financial Assets 3.8
   -  Investments 3.8.1 - 5.00 180.00
   -  Trade receivables 3.8.2  117,810.93 80,785.19  88,570.25
   -  Cash and cash equivalents 3.8.3  749.43 3,966.77  5,785.34
   -  Bank balances other than above 3.8.4  77.28 2,417.75  3,876.90
   -  Loans 3.8.5  54.37  328.67 -
   -  Other �nancial assets 3.8.6  140.17 336.79 263.88
 Other current assets 3.9  1,444.07 15,632.60  1,926.07

 Total Current Assets  141,098.74  158,550.65  136,387.24

 Total Assets  169,067.41  183,059.82  159,996.67

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 EQUITY
 Equity Share Capital 3.10  27,858.20  27,858.20   13,929.10
 Other Equity 3.11  20,488.68  36,539.49  48,877.29

 Total Equity  48,346.88   64,397.69   62,806.39

 LIABILITIES
 Non-Current Liabilities
 Financial Liabilities 3.12
   -  Borrowings 3.12.1  5,535.45  2,041.15  2,497.36
   -  Other �nancial liabilities 3.12.2  31.37  8.03  28.73
 Provisions 3.13  282.67   227.20  186.72
 Total Non-Current Liabilities  5,849.49  2,276.38  2,712.81
 Current Liabilities
 Financial Liabilities 3.14
   -  Borrowings 3.14.1 82,378.88  67,867.33  57,354.08
   -  Trade Payables 3.14.2  21,113.92 45,321.28 34,327.87
   -  Other �nancial liabilities 3.14.3  10,789.15  2,562.86   2,134.64
 Provisions 3.15 12.78  18.14  16.13
 Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 3.16  136.00  143.08   525.22
 Other Current Liabilities 3.17  440.31  473.06  119.53
 Total Current Liabilities  114,871.04  116,385.75  94,477.47

 Total Liabilities  120,720.53  118,662.13  97,190.28

 Total Equity and Liabilities   169,067.41  183,059.82   159,996.67

Signi�cant Accounting Policies 1

₹ in Lacs

  

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2017
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(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
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  (Navneet Kwatra)  (Sachin Goyal) 
Place: Faridabad  C.O.O. & Company Secretary  Chief Financial O�cer
Date: 30th  May, 2017   M. No. 16672

  (Navneet Kwatra)  (Sachin Goyal) 

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) 

Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) 

   



Particulars Note Year Ended  Year Ended  
 No. 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 

Continuing Operations
Income
Revenue from Operations 3.20 100,087.65   373,151.40
Other Income 3.21  179.37  135.94

Total Income  100,267.02   373,287.34

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 3.22  648.09  81,909.73
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 3.23  48,808.97 276,187.99
Exhibition Cost 3.24  2,858.21   3,034.67
Change in Inventories of �nished goods & stock-in-trade 3.25  34,260.92   (14,245.86)
Employee bene�ts expense 3.26  3,356.37 3,713.22
Finance Costs 3.27  11,700.12   8,091.84
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3.28  1,772.17  1,890.30
Other Expenses 3.29  17,548.86  10,809.93

Total   120,953.71  371,391.82

Pro�t before Tax   (20,686.69)  1,895.52
Less: Tax Expense
  -  Current Tax   -  410.70
  -  Deferred Tax  (4,637.99)  (40.09)
  -  MAT Credit  -  (71.41)
  -  Earlier year (s) Tax  - 18.60

Total Tax Expenses  (4,637.99)  317.80

Pro�t for the year from continuing operations   (16,048.70)  1,577.72

Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)

Remeasurement of net de�ned bene�t plans   (2.11) 13.58

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  (16,050.81)  1,591.30

Earning per share :
(Refer Note No 3.30)
Face Value per Equity Share (in ₹)  10.00  10.00
  -  Basic & Diluted (in ₹)   (5.76) 0.57

Statement of Standanone Pro�t and Loss for the year ended  31st March 2017
₹ in Lacs

Signi�cant Accounting Policies  1

Accompanying Notes from 1 to 3.46 are integral part of the �nancial statements
As per our report of even date attached.

For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) (Sunil Jindal)  (Raju Bansal) 
          Partner Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
    M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238 DIN: 00013791  DIN-00007344

   

  (Navneet Kwatra)  (Sachin Goyal) 
Place: Faridabad  C.O.O. & Company Secretary  Chief Financial O�cer
Date: 30th  May, 2017   M. No. 16672

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) 
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B. Other Equity

 Particulars Security Premium General Retained Remeasurement Total
   Account Reserve Earnings of net de�ned 
      bene�t plans

As at 1st April, 2015 26607.13 192.96 22077.20  -    48877.29
Pro�ts for the year  -     -    1577.72  -    1577.72
Other comprehensive income for the year  -     -     -    13.58 13.58

Total comprehensive income for the year  -     -     1,577.72   13.58   1,591.30

Amount utilised for issuance of bonus shares  (13,929.10)  -     -     -     (13,929.10)

As at 31st March, 2016  12,678.03   192.96   23,654.92   13.58   36,539.49

Pro�ts for the year  -     -     (16,048.70)  -     (16,048.70)
Other comprehensive income for the year  -     -     -     (2.11)  (2.11)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -     -     (16,048.70)  (2.11)  (16,050.81)

As at 31st March, 2017  12,678.03   192.96   7,606.22   11.47   20,488.68

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2017

₹ in Lacs

Signi�cant Accounting Policies

Accompanying Notes from 1 to 3.46 are integral part of the �nancial statements
As per our report of even date attached `

For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) (Sunil Jindal)  (Raju Bansal)
            Partner Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
     M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238 DIN: 00013791  DIN-00007344

   

  (Navneet Kwatra)  (Sachin Goyal) 
Place: Faridabad  C.O.O. & Company Secretary  Chief Financial O�cer
Date: 30th  May, 2017   M. No. 16672

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) 

   

  Other
 Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive 
  Income (OCI)

A. Equity Share Capital  ₹ in Lacs

 As at 1st April, 2015   13,929.10  
 Changes in equity share capital during the year   13,929.10

 As at 31st March, 2016   27,858.20
 Changes in equity share capital during the year   -

 As at 31st March, 2017   27,858.20
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₹ in Lacs

Particulars  For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
   31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
 Net Pro�t before tax (as per Statement of Pro�t and Loss)   (20,686.69)  1,895.52
 Adjustments to reconcile net pro�t to net cash provided by operating activities
 Depreciation and amortisation expense  1,772.17  1,890.30
 Balances w/back (net)   (14.13)  575.55
 Provision for doubtful debts   9,316.96   -
 Interest Expenses   11,700.12   8,091.84
 Interest Income   (122.36)  (62.90)
 Loss on sale of Capital Assets  11.09  26.02
 Net Gain on Sale of Current Investment   (1.07)  (41.28)
 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation   321.53   622.52
 Property, Plant and Equipment & CWIP written o�   135.69   76.99
 Changes in assets and liabilities
 Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  (23,906.66)  10,567.52
 Increase/(Decrease) in Other �nancial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions 887.39  678.77
 (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  34,255.39   (19,293.08)
 (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables   (46,950.80) 7,012.88
 (Increase)/Decrease in Loans, other �nancial assets and other assets  14,318.25   (13,846.51)
 Direct Taxes Paid   (56.67)  (888.95)
 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)   (19,019.79)  (2,694.81)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
 Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment [including Capital Advances]  (123.37) (806.42)
 Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment & CWIP  231.88   10.56
 Investment in Subsidiary  (832.70)  (1,834.00)
 Proceeds from Sale of Investment in Mutual Funds   6.07   216.28
 Loans Given to Subsidiary Company  274.30   (328.67)
 Proceeds from Sale of Shares in Subsidiary Company   92.96  -
 Interest Income   122.36  62.90
 Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B)  (228.50)  (2,679.35)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
 Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings   24.00   1,027.61
 Repayments of Long Term Borrowings   (65.02)  (428.88)
 Net Proceed from Short Term Borrowing   20,504.16   15,880.32
 Repayments of Short Term Borrowings   (2,296.57)  (6,430.09)
 Interest Paid (Net of Interest Received on Fixed Deposits)   (4,476.09)  (7,952.52)
 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities ( C)   13,690.48  2,096.44
 Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)   (5,557.81)  (3,274.30)
 Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year   6,384.52   9,662.24
 Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year   826.71   6,384.52
 Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents   (5,557.81)  (3,277.72)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2017

Note: The statement of cash �ows has been prepared by following indirect method as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. There were no 
material di�erences between the Statement of Cash Flows presented under Ind AS and the Previous GAAP.

Accompanying Notes from 1 to 3.46 are integral part of the �nancial statements
As per our report of even date attached.    

For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) (Sunil Jindal)  (Raju Bansal) 
          Partner Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
    M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238 DIN: 00013791  DIN-00007344

   

  (Navneet Kwatra)  (Sachin Goyal) 
Place: Faridabad  C.O.O. & Company Secretary  Chief Financial O�cer
Date: 30th  May, 2017   M. No. 16672

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) 
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Signi�cant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2017

1 Signi�cant Accounting Policies

1.1 Basis of Preparation

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind 

AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

 Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017 are the first financials with the comparatives, the Company has prepared 

under Ind AS. For all periods upto and including the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in 

accordance with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP’) used for its statutory reporting requirement in India 

immediately before adopting Ind AS. The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 and the opening Balance Sheet as at 

1st April, 2015 have been restated in accordance with Ind AS for comparative information.

 The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of 

the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2015 being the date of transition to Ind AS.

 Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

2) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

 Current and non-current classi�cation
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. All assets and liabilities have been classified as 

current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the 

Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for and their realisation in cash and 

cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification 

of assets and liabilities.

1.2 Use of estimates and judgements
The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are 

based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company 

believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the 

period in which the results are known/ materialised.

 The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide 

additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

1.3 Revenue Recognition

 i Revenue from sale is recognized when the significant risk and rewards in respect of ownership of the goods are transferred to 

customer.

 ii Revenue from theatre business is recognized on the basis of tickets sold for the period under accounting.

 iii Entertainment tax collection in respect of its multiplex set up in Uttar Pradesh (U.P.) has been recognised as revenue on sale of 

tickets, considering the exemption from payment of entertainment tax upto a specified period in terms of the scheme of U.P. state 

government.

 iv Revenue from Lease Rent, Common Area Maintenance (CAM) Charges and Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis.

 v Advertisement revenue is recognized as and when advertisement is displayed.

 vi Claims lodged with the insurance companies are accounted on accrual basis to the extent these are measurable and ultimate 

collection is reasonably certain. 

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 

that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 

other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are incurred.

 Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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 Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as Capital 

work-in-progress. 

 Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to 

the Companies Act, 2013 with the exception of the following:

•   Depreciation on leasehold improvements is charged over the period of lease.

•   Depreciation on assets costing  ₹ 5,000 or less is provided @100% over a period of one year

Freehold land is not depreciated.

 The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end 

and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP 

carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1st April,2015.

1.5 Intangible Assets
Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are 

recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 

and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Finite-life intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their 

expected useful lives.

 Estimated useful life by major class of finite-life intangible asset is as follows: 

Computer software - 5 years

 The amortisation period and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year end and 

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. "

 Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as 

its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1st April, 2015.

1.6 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of Assets. 

Qualifying Asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are 

treated as period cost and charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which it was incurred.

1.7 Impairment of non-�nancial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets or group of assets, called cash generating units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable 

amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the 

recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

 An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 

amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the 

estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 

the time value of money and risk specific to the assets."

1.8 Investments
Investments are stated at fair market value.

1.9 Inventories
Raw materials are valued at lower of Cost and Net Realizable Value.

Finished goods are valued at lower of Cost (raw material and appropriate proportion of overheads) and Net Realizable Value.

Goods held for Resale are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs of inventories are determined on First in First out (‘FIFO’) basis in the ordinary course of business.

Net Realizable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the 

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.10  Foreign Exchange Transaction
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transactions.

 Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of items which are covered by 

forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange 

difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Any profit or loss arising on 

cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts are recognized as income or as expenses for the year.
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 Non-monetary items are carried at cost.

 Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized and is reflected 

separately in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

 In respect of foreign branch, the company has adopted integral foreign operation approach as per Ind AS 21 and accordingly revenue 

items have been converted at date of transaction date. Monetary Assets and Liabilities are converted at the year-end exchange rate. 

Exchange gain or loss arising out of above is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

1.11 Tax expenses

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the 

extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other 

comprehensive income or equity.

 Current Tax:

Provision for Taxation is ascertained on the basis of assessable profit computed in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 

1961.

 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit:

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized, as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the 

Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized 

as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Profit and Loss Account and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement under Loans & 

Advances. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement 

to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period. 

 Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements 

and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled 

or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 

period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

1.12  Employee bene�ts

Short Term Employee Bene�ts:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and 

the undiscounted amount of such employee benefits are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the 

employee renders the related services. These benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, performance incentives etc.

De�ned Bene�t Plan

Gratuity and long–term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out at the close of each period. 

The actuarial valuation is done by an Independent Actuary as per projected unit credit method.

 For defined benefit plans, the amount recognised as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss is the cost of 

accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the costs of individual events such as past/future service benefit 

changes and settlements (such events are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss). The amount of net interest 

expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset is charged to ‘Employee benefits 

expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually 

achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the 

plans, are recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and 

Loss.

De�ned Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employee provident fund, superannuation scheme, employee pension scheme 

etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the 

employees. Company’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a government administered fund and 

charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the 

Company has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions.
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1.13 Segment reporting

Identi�cation of segments

As defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources

based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. The accounting principles 

used in the preparation of financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segment and 

are as set out in the significant accounting policies.

  Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on reasonable basis.

 Unallocated items

Include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocable to any business segment.

 Segment policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the 

financial statements of the Company as a whole.

1.14  Leases

Operating lease

As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company, as lessee, are classified 

as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over 

the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the 

Company’s expected inflationary cost increases.

As a Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term 

unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost 

increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

1.15  Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method in accordance with Ind AS 7, whereby a profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 

of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from 

operating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.16  Earning Per Share

Earning Per Share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 

Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

 For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earning Per share, the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders is 

divided by the Weighted Average Number of shares outstanding during the period after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential 

equity shares.

1.17 Miscellaneous Expenditure

Share issue expenses are adjusted from Securities Premium Account at the time of issue of respective Shares.

 1.18  Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that 

an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised 

for future operating losses.

 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 

obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre tax rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of 

time is recognised as interest expense.

 Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 

Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
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1.19  Financial Instruments

a).   Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial 

recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and 

loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to 

the acquisition value of the financial asset. Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at

 •     amortised cost

 •     fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

 Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at cost.

 Other equity investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those 

equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

 Impairment of �nancial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other 

than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

 The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the business 

environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether 

there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

b). Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial 

liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

 Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Financial liabilities 

carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss.

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

1.20  Derivative �nancial instruments

Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option contracts and cross currency swaps, to hedge its foreign currency 

risks are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair 

value with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when they arise.

2 First-time adoption of Ind AS

The standalone financial statements of SRS Limited for the financial year ended March, 31, 2017 have been prepared in accordance with 

Ind AS. 

 Ind AS 101-First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are issued 

and effective for the first Ind AS financial statements which is for the year ended 31st March, 2017 for the company, be applied 

retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented. Consequently, in preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the 

Company has availed certain exemptions and complied with the mandatory exceptions provided in Ind AS 101, as explained below. The 

resulting difference in the carrying values of the assets and liabilities as at the transition date between the Ind AS and Previous GAAP 

have been recognised directly in equity (retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity).

 Set out below are the Ind AS 101 optional exemptions availed as applicable and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from 

previous GAAP to Ind AS.

 Optional exemptions availed

a). Deemed cost

The Company has opted paragraph D7 AA and accordingly considered the carrying value of property, plant and equipments and 

Intangible assets as deemed cost as at the transition date.

Annual Report 2016-17 93 | SRS Limited



 b). Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

The Company has opted para D14 and D15 and accordingly considered the Previous GAAP carrying amount of Investments as deemed 

cost as at the transition date.

c). Designation of previously recognised �nancial instruments

Paragraph D19B of Ind AS 101 gives an option to an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at fair value through other 

comprehensive income (FVOCI) on the basis of the facts and circumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS. The company has opted 

to apply this exemption for its investment in equity Investments.

Applicable Mandatory Exceptions

a). Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same 

date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies).

- Investment in equity instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL) or FVOCI;

 - Investment in debt instruments carried at FVPL; and

 - Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

 (b) Classi�cation and measurement of �nancial assets

As required under Ind AS 101, the Company has assessed the classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts 

and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations

The transition to Ind AS has resulted in changes in the presentation of the financial statements, disclosures  in the notes thereto and 

hence, Previous GAAP information has been regrouped for ease of reconciliation with Ind AS. For the purpose of transition to Ind AS, the 

Company has followed the guidance prescribed in Ind AS 101, First-Time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2015 as 

the transition date and IGAAP as the previous IGAAP. The Regrouped Previous GAAP information is derived from the Financial 

Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP. An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to 

Ind AS has affected the Company's Balance Sheet  and Statement of Profit and Loss, is set out in Note 2.1. 
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2.1 Reconciliations
2.1.1 Reconciliation of Equity as previously reported under GAAP to Ind AS

Particulars Note  As at   As at
 No.  01-Apr-15   31-Mar-16

Assets  IGAAP  Ind AS IND AS IGAAP Ind AS IND AS
    adjustments    adjustments

Non-Current Assets       
Property, Plant and Equipment   23,248.53   -     23,248.53   21,971.67   -     21,971.67
Capital work-in-progress   25.42   -     25.42   105.24   -     105.24
Intangible assets   115.11   -     115.11   72.37   -     72.37

Financial Assets
     - Investments   92.96   -     92.96   1,926.96   -     1,926.96
     - Other �nancial assets A  1,296.86   (236.42)  1,060.44   1,294.30   (191.03)  1,103.27
Deferred Tax Assets (net) B  (995.29)  17.29   (978.00)  (887.22)  20.72   (866.50)
Other non-current assets   44.97   -     44.97   196.16   -     196.16

Total Non-Current Assets   23,828.56   (219.13)  23,609.43   24,679.48   (170.31)  24,509.17

Current Assets
Inventories   35,784.80   -     35,784.80   55,077.88   -     55,077.88
Financial Assets

     - Investments   180.00   -     180.00   5.00   -     5.00
     - Trade receivables C  88,570.25   -     88,570.25   80,786.61   (1.42)  80,785.19
     - Cash and cash equivalents   5,785.34   -     5,785.34   3,966.77   -     3,966.77
     - Bank balances other than above   3,876.90   -     3,876.90   2,417.75   -     2,417.75
     - Loans   -     -     -     328.67   -     328.67
     - Other �nancial assets   263.88   -     263.88   336.79   -     336.79
Other current assets D  1,741.22   184.85   1,926.07   15,501.50   131.10   15,632.60

Total Current Assets   136,202.39   184.85   136,387.24   158,420.97   129.68   158,550.65

Total Assets   160,030.95   (34.28)  159,996.67  183,100.45   (40.63)  183,059.82

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Equity Share Capital   13,929.10   -     13,929.10   27,858.20   -     27,858.20
Other Equity E  48,910.87   (33.58)  48,877.29   36,579.54   (40.05)  36,539.49

Total Equity   62,839.97   (33.58)  62,806.39   64,437.74   (40.05)  64,397.69

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
     - Borrowings   2,497.36   -     2,497.36   2,041.15   -     2,041.15
     - Other �nancial liabilities   28.73   -     28.73   8.03   -     8.03
Provisions   186.72   -     186.72   227.20   -     227.20

Total Non-Current Liabilities   2,712.81   -     2,712.81   2,276.38   -     2,276.38

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
     - Borrowings   57,354.08   -     57,354.08   67,867.33   -     67,867.33
     - Trade Payables F  34,327.87   -     34,327.87   45,321.46   (0.18)  45,321.28
     - Other �nancial liabilities G  2,144.73   (10.09)  2,134.64   2,570.36   (7.50)  2,562.86
Provisions   16.13   -     16.13   18.14   -     18.14
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)   525.22   -     525.22   143.08   -     143.08
Other Current Liabilities H  110.14   9.39   119.53   465.96   7.10   473.06

Total Current Liabilities   94,478.17   (0.70)  94,477.47   116,386.33   (0.58)  116,385.75

Total Liabilities   97,190.98   (0.70)  97,190.28   118,662.71   (0.58)  118,662.13

Total Equity and Liabilities   160,030.95   (34.28)  159,996.67   183,100.45   (40.63)  183,059.82

₹ in Lacs
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2.1.2 Reconciliation statement of Pro�t and Loss as previously reported under GAAP to Ind AS

Particulars Note  For the Year Ended
 No.  31-Mar-16

Income  IGAAP Ind AS IND AS
    adjustments

Revenue from Operations I  373,150.53   0.87   373,151.40
Other Income J  90.55   45.39   135.94

Total Income   373,241.08   46.26   373,287.34

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed   81,909.73   -     81,909.73
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade K  276,191.92   (3.93)  276,187.99
Exhibition Cost   3,034.67   -     3,034.67
Change in Inventories of �nished goods & stock-in-trade   (14,245.86)  -     (14,245.86)
Employee bene�ts expense L  3,699.64   13.58   3,713.22
Finance Costs M  8,089.25   2.59   8,091.84
Depreciation and amortisation expense   1,890.30   -     1,890.30
Other Expenses N  10,752.43   57.50   10,809.93

Total   371,322.08   69.74   371,391.82

Pro�t before Tax   1,919.00   (23.48)  1,895.52
Less: Tax Expense
     - Current Tax   410.70   -     410.70
     - Deferred Tax   (40.09)  -     (40.09)
     - MAT Credit   (71.41)  -     (71.41)
     - Earlier year (s) Tax   18.60   -     18.60

Total Tax Expenses   317.80   -     317.80

Pro�t for the year   1,601.20   (23.48)  1,577.72
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)

Remeasurement of net de�ned bene�t plans O  -     13.58   13.58

Total Comprehensive Income for the year   1,601.20   (9.90)  1,591.30

₹ in Lacs
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Notes to the Reconciliations:

A Financial Assets-Loans
Adjustments to security deposits receivables reflect discounted value of deferred consideration receivable under Ind AS as compared 

to undiscounted value of consideration under IGAAP.

B Deferred Tax Assets (net)
Adjustments to deferred tax assets reflect tax implications of other Ind AS adjustments through statement of profit and loss as 

compared to values under previous IGAAP.

C Trade Receivables
Adjustments to trade receivables include prior period items which have been made in accordance with Ind AS 8 for the above 

mentioned line items.

D Other Current Assets
Adjustments to other current assets reflect transfer of deferred security deposits receivables transferred to prepaid expenses in 

accordance with Ind AS.

E Other Equity
Adjustments to retained earnings and other comprehensive income have been made in accordance with Ind AS for the above 

mentioned line items.

In addition, as per Ind AS 19, actuarial gain and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income as compared to being recognized 

in the statement  of profit and loss under IGAAP.

F Trade Payables
Adjustments to trade payables include prior period items which have been made in accordance with Ind AS 8 for the above mentioned 

line items.

G Other Financial Liabilities
Adjustments to security deposits payables reflect discounted value of deferred consideration payable under Ind AS as compared to 

undiscounted value of consideration under IGAAP.

H Other Current Liabilities
Adjustments to other current liabilities reflect transfer of undiscounted value of security deposits payables transferred to advance 

received from customers in accordance with Ind AS.

I Revenue from operations
Adjustments to lease rent income and trademark/franchise fee reflect recognition of income on deferred security deposit payable, 

calculated under Ind AS as compared to previous IGAAP.

J Other Income
Adjustments to other income include recognition of interest income on present value of security deposits receivable, calculated under 

Ind AS as compared to previous IGAAP.

K Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Adjustments to purchases of stock-in-trade include prior period items which have been made in accordance with Ind AS 8 for the above 

mentioned line items.

L Employee bene�ts expense
As per Ind AS 19, actuarial gain and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income as compared to being recognized in the 

statement  of profit and loss under IGAAP.

M Finance Costs
Adjustments to finance costs include accrual of interest expense on present value of security deposits payable, calculated under Ind AS 

as compared to previous IGAAP.

N Other Expenses
Adjustments to other expenses include recognition of lease rent expenses on deferred value of security deposits receivables, calculated 

under Ind AS as compared to previous IGAAP.

In addition, adjustments to security and housekeeping expenses have been made for prior period items which have been made in 

accordance with Ind AS 8.

O Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)
As per Ind AS 19, actuarial gain and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income as compared to being recognized in the 

statement  of profit and loss under IGAAP.
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Notes forming part of the Standanone Financial Statements

3.2 Capital work-in-progress

3.1  Property, Plant and Equipment 

    Gross Carrying Value     Depreciation    Net Carrying Value 

Description As at Additions Sale / As at Upto for the on Sale / Upto As at As at
 01-Apr-16   Adjustment 31-Mar-17 01-Apr-16  year Adjustment 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Land  2,461.26   -     -     2,461.26   -     -     -     -     2,461.26   2,461.26 

Buildings  7,097.01   -     158.42   6,938.59   769.07   112.02   22.56   858.53   6,080.06   6,327.94 

Leasehold Improvements  10,960.57   13.64   114.79   10,859.42   3,859.59   604.72   30.35   4,433.96   6,425.46   7,100.98 

Temporary Structure  2.79   -     2.79   -     2.79   -     2.79   -     -     -   

Plant & Machinery  6,528.47   58.85   436.71   6,150.61   2,756.80   538.02   386.59   2,908.23   3,242.38   3,771.67 

O�ce Equipment  1,354.28   9.12   461.22   902.18   1,035.98   96.84   432.58   700.24   201.94   318.30 

Furniture & Fittings  2,931.31   21.30   237.77   2,714.84   1,380.58   284.51   187.61   1,477.48   1,237.36   1,550.73 

Computers  613.30   3.96   122.45   494.81   490.42   50.81   113.46   427.77   67.04   122.88 

Vehicles  570.88   0.51   113.66   457.73   252.97   62.26   93.22   222.01   235.72   317.91 

TOTAL  32,519.87   107.38   1,647.81   30,979.44   10,548.20   1,749.18   1,269.16   11,028.22   19,951.22   21,971.67 

Previous Year  32,026.00   670.74   176.84   32,522.83   8,777.47   1,834.04   63.28   10,548.28   21,974.55

₹ in Lacs

Description  As At   Additions*   Transferred to  As At
 01-Apr-16  Property, Plant and 31-Mar-17
   Equipment   

    
Capital work-in-progress 105.24 143.26 66.67 181.83

TOTAL  105.24   143.26   66.67  181.83

Previous Year 25.42 467.71 387.89 105.24

₹ in Lacs
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*CWIP includes Preoperative Expenses which are as follows :

3.3 Intangible Assets

    Gross Carrying Value    Amortisation   Net Carrying Value 

Description As at Additions Sale / As at Upto for the on Sale / As at As at As at
 01-Apr-16   Adjustment 31-Mar-17 01-Apr-16  year Adjustment 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Computer Software  354.11   4.57   215.05   143.63   281.74   22.99   215.05   89.68   53.95   72.37 
(Bought Out) 

TOTAL  354.11   4.57   215.05   143.63   281.74   22.99   215.05   89.68   53.95   72.37 

Previous Year  340.58   13.53   -     354.11   225.47   56.27   -     281.74   72.37  

₹ in Lacs

Particulars  For the year ended

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Salary & Related Expenses - -
Electricity and Water Expenses -  0.74
House Keeping, Security and CAM Charges - -
Rent Expenses - -
Travelling and Conveyance - -
Other Expenses -  0.48

Total for the Year  -  1.22

Add: Brought forward from Previous Year  3.25  2.77

Grand Total  3.25  3.99

Less: Allocated to Property, Plant and Equipment  -  0.74

Balance Carried Forward   3.25  3.25

₹ in Lacs
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3.4 Financial Assets

3.4.1 Investments

* C/Y-Nil (P/Y 132) number of shares held by Dr. Anil Jindal, Mr. Naresh Kumar Goyal, Mr. Ankit Garg and Mr. Ankit Goel as nominee shareholders where the Company was the bene�ciary owner.

** Investment in government securities are unquoted and at amortised cost.

3.4.2 Other �nancial assets

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Security Deposits  1,100.06   949.31   1,016.53
Other Bank Balances-Restricted Cash
-  Fixed Deposits pledged with bank for
    bank guarantees given to authorities
    (Refer note no. 3.8.4.1) 9.49   153.96   43.91

Total  1,109.55   1,103.27   1,060.44

₹ in Lacs

Particulars No. of Shares/ As at No. of Shares/ As at No. of Shares/ As at
 Units 31-Mar-17 Units 31-Mar-16 Units 01-Apr-15

Investments in Subsidiary
SRS Worldwide (FZC) * -  - 550 92.96 550 92.96

SRS Entertainment India Limited
(Formerly known as 26,660,000  2,666.00 18,340,000 1,834.00 - -
SRS Entertainment Limited)

Other Investment
Investment in National Savings  - 0.70 - - - -
Certi�cates (NSC)**

Total  26,660,000   2,666.70   18,340,550   1,926.96   550   92.96

Aggregate Value of Unquoted
Investments  2,666.70    1,926.96    92.96

3.5 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Deferred Tax Assets
Business losses carried forward  1,279.31   -     -
Provision for Retirement Bene�ts  102.26   84.91   68.95
Provision for doubtful debts  3,224.60   -     -
Others  75.24   56.17   36.92

Total Deferred Tax Assets (A)  4,681.41   141.08   105.87

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Fixed Assets  1,580.07   1,677.74   1,682.62

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (B)  1,580.07   1,677.74   1,682.62

MAT Credit Entitlement (C)  670.16   670.16   598.75

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (A-B+C)  3,771.50   (866.50)  (978.00)

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs
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3.6 Other non-current assets

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Capital Advances  59.44  64.06   32.45
Income Tax Recoverable (Refer note no. 3.18) 174.48  120.00   -
Prepaid Expenses - 12.10   12.52

Total  233.92 196.16   44.97

₹ in Lacs

3.7 Inventories

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

(As Veri�ed, Valued and Certi�ed by the Management)
Raw Materials *  54.94   9,664.70   4,617.49
Finished Goods#  -     6,116.02   11,057.52
Stock in Trade@ 20,767.55   39,297.16   20,109.79

Total 20,822.49   55,077.88   35,784.80

₹ in Lacs

* Raw Materials for ₹ Nil (PY ₹ 5,776.17 lacs) as on 31st March 2017 are lying with third parties.

# Finished Goods for ₹ Nil (PY ₹ 101.49 lacs) as on 31st March 2017 are lying with third parties.

'@ Stock in Trade for ₹ 43.43 lacs (PY ₹ 21274.32 lacs) as on 31st March 2017 is lying with third parties.

'@ Stock in Trade includes Goods in Transit for ₹ Nil (PY1.11 lacs).

3.8 Financial Assets

3.8.1 Investments

   As at

  Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

 Face Value Units Amount Units Amount Units Amount

Investment in Mutual Funds
(Quoted, valued at lower of
cost and fair value)

UNION KBC Capital Protection
Oriented Fund - Regular Growth 10  -     -     50,000   5.00   1,799,990   180.00
(Kept as margin money against LC)

Total   -     -     50,000   5.00   1,799,990   180.00

Aggregate Book Value of
Quoted Investments      5.00    180.00

₹ in Lacs

3.8.2 Trade Receivables

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Trade receivables outstanding for a
period exceeding six months from the
date they are due for payment :
  - Secured, Considered Good  -  0.28   0.14
  -  Unsecured, Considered Good 58,968.31   90.64   646.95
  -  Doubtful 9,316.96   -     -
Other Trade Receivables
  - Secured, Considered Good 0.52   5.10   8.20
  - Unsecured, Considered Good 58,842.10   80,689.17   87,914.96

Total  127,127.89   80,785.19   88,570.25

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 9,316.96   -     -

Total  117,810.93   80,785.19   88,570.25

₹ in Lacs
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 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Cash in Hand  554.82   1,223.98   1,279.31
Balances with banks
  -   in Current Accounts  194.61   984.01   1,363.33
  -   in Deposit Accounts (See note 3.8.4.1) -    1,758.77   3,142.69
  -   in EEFC Account -    0.01  0.01 

Total 749.43   3,966.77 5,785.34

₹ in Lacs3.8.3 Cash and cash equivalents

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Other Bank Balances
  -   in Deposit Accounts (See note 3.8.4.1) 74.11   2,414.58   3,871.78
  -   in Earmarked Accounts
Share Application Money received for
Allotment of Securities due for refund  1.79   1.79   3.74
Unclaimed Dividend Account  1.38   1.38   1.38

Total  77.28   2,417.75   3,876.90

₹ in Lacs3.8.4 Bank balances other than above

3.8.4.1

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

FDR Balances with Bank Kept as margin Money
 against guarantees / LC /
 Pledged with Sales Tax Authorities 

Deposit Account with Bank  
  -   Upto 3  months maturity from date of deposit  -     1,758.77
  -   Upto 12 months maturity from date of deposit  -     2,392.41
  -   Maturity more than 12 months but within one year from the reporting date  74.11   22.17

Shown as Current Assets  74.11   4,173.35

  -   Maturity more than 12 months but after one year from the reporting date  9.49   153.96

Shown as Non-Current Assets  9.49   153.96

Total  83.60   4,327.31

₹ in Lacs

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Loans to Related parties (Refer note no. 3.38)
Loan to Subsidiary *  54.37   328.67   -

Total 54.37   328.67   -

₹ in Lacs3.8.5 loans

* Loan given to  SRS Entertainment India Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS Entertainment Limited) of ₹ 54.37 lacs (PY 328.67 ) as working capital support and carries

interest rate of 16.5% p.a. Maximum outstanding during the year was Rs. 325.67 lacs (PY Rs. 329.06 lacs). 
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 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Security Deposits  103.88   208.48   95.56
Advances to Employees 19.03   14.35   13.24
Interest Accrued but not Due  17.26   89.98   114.64
Other Receivables  -     23.98   40.44

Total  140.17   336.79   263.88

₹ in Lacs3.8.6 Other �nancial assets

3.9 Other current assets

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Entertainment Tax and VAT Recoverable  770.10   656.02   555.52
TDS Receivable 35.86   -     -
Prepaid Expenses 129.44   372.85   501.54

Advances to Suppliers
  -   To Related Parties (refer note no. 3.38) - 6.74 -
  -   To Others  346.76   14,494.04   782.75

Advances recoverable
  -   From Subsidiaries -     2.30   2.30
  -   From Others 112.79   100.65   76.26
  -   From related parties 49.12   -     7.70

Total 1,444.07   15,632.60   1,926.07

₹ in Lacs

3.10 Equity Share Capital

   As at

  Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

 Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
  (₹ In lacs)  (₹ In lacs)  (₹ In lacs)

Authorised
Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each  280,000,000   28,000.00   280,000,000   28,000.00   150,000,000   15,000.00

Total  280,000,000   28,000.00   280,000,000   28,000.00   150,000,000   15,000.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each
Opening  278,582,026   27,858.20   139,291,013   13,929.10   139,291,013   13,929.10
Additions  -     -     139,291,013   13,929.10   -     -
Deductions  -     -     -     -     -     -
Closing  278,582,026   27,858.20   278,582,026   27,858.20   139,291,013   13,929.10

Total  278,582,026   27,858.20   278,582,026   27,858.20   139,291,013   13,929.10

₹ in Lacs

3.10.1 The rights, preference and restrictions attached to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and 
the repayment of capital are as under :      

 Equity Shares      

 The equity shares have a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and 
pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting.      

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of 
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.      

 During the FY 2015-16, the Company had issued 13,92,91,013 number of Bonus Shares to the existing equity shareholders in the 
ratio of 1:1 on 29th June, 2015.       
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3.10.2 Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company  

   As at

  Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

 No. of Shares % of  No. of Shares % of No. of Shares % of 
 held Holding  held  Holding  held Holding

BTL HOLDING COMPANY LTD 128,637,542   46.18  153,471,810  55.09 76,735,905  55.09

3.11 Other Equity

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

(A) Security Premium Account
Opening Balance  12,678.03   26,607.13   26,607.13
Add: Addition during the year - -   -
Less: Amount utilised for issuance of bonus shares  -  13,929.10   -

Closing Balance  12,678.03   12,678.03   26,607.13

(B) General Reserve
Opening Balance  192.96   192.96   192.96
Add: Transfer during the year -     -     -

Closing Balance 192.96   192.96   192.96

(C) Surplus in Statement of Pro�t & Loss
Opening Balance  23,668.50   22,077.20   -
Add : Net Pro�t for the current year (16,050.81) 1,591.30 -

Closing Balance  7,617.69   23,668.50   22,077.20

Total  20,488.68   36,539.49   48,877.29

₹ in Lacs

3.12 Financial Liabilities-Non Current

3.12.1 Borrowings   

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Secured
Term Loan (refer note no. 3.12.1.1)
     - From Bank 62.69 268.87 501.27
     - From Other Parties 4.44  -     -

   67.13   268.87   501.27

Unsecured (refer note no. 3.12.1.2)
     - Deferred Credit Payment  -     -     2.32
     - Public Deposits  5,468.32   1,772.28   1,993.77

   5,468.32   1,772.28   1,996.09

Total  5,535.45  2,041.15   2,497.36

₹ in Lacs 



3.12.1.1 The requisite particulars in respect of secured borrowings  are as under:   

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st  Particulars of   Terms of 
 March 2017 Mar 2016 security / guarantees / default Repayment

State Bank of India -   Secured against �rst pari pasu charge on all the �xed assets of the Company, 4 0  e q u a l  m o n t h l y
Corporate Loan    including Equitable Mortgage of land and building at site no 4, City Center,  installments of ₹ 25.00 
Balance Outstanding  474.99  474.99 Sector-12 Faridabad with plot area measuring 2,136.86 sq. mtr. and Lacs commencing from 
Current Maturity  474.99  299.99 Multiplex-cum Shopping Mall constructed thereon in the name of the July 31, 2014.
Non-Current Maturity  -   175.00 Company and further secured by �rst pari passu charge on (a) 8 acres of
   land at Prithla in the name of SPS Buildcon Ltd. (merged with SRS Retreat
   Services Ltd.)  (b) 6.84 acres of land at Prithla in the name of SRS Retreat
   Services Ltd. (c) Extension of charge on current assets. The Facility is further
   secured by personal guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of
   SRS Retreat Services Ltd, BTL Holding Company Limited {(formerly known
   as BTL Investments & Securities Limited) (SRS Holdings India Ltd merged with
   BTL Investments & Securities Limited w.e.f 18.07.2013)}, SRS Knowledge &
   Technologies Pvt. Ltd.(Formerly known as SRS Professional Services Ltd.), and
   Latest IT Solutions Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS IT Solutions Ltd.)

   Applicable rate of interest is base rate + 3.25 % subject to change from
   time to time.   

Vehicle Loan from      Total 8 (PY 16) number of 
Banks      vehicle loan repayable  
Balance Outstanding  93.85   141.18 Secured against hypothecation of speci�ed vehicles of the Company. within 36 - 48 equal 
Current Maturity  31.16   47.31    monthly installments.
Non-Current Maturity  62.69   93.87 Applicable rate of interest is 10.10 % to 14 % . 

Summary
Balance Outstanding  568.84   616.17
Current Maturity  506.15   347.30
Non-Current Maturity  62.69   268.87

Term Loan From   Secured against hypothecation of speci�ed vehicles of the Company. Total 1 ( PY Nil) number
Other Parties      of vehicle loan repayable 
Vehicle Loan       w i t h i n  3 6  e q u a l  
Balance Outstanding  6.29   - Applicable rate of interest is 10.60 % . monthly installments.
Current Maturity 1.86 -
Non-Current Maturity  4.44   -    

₹ in Lacs

3.12.1.2 The requisite particulars in respect of unsecured borrowings are as under:

Particulars As at 31-Mar-17 As at 31-Mar-16 Terms of Repayment 

Public Deposits *
Balance Outstanding 7,629.39   9,492.70 Repayable in 2017-18
Current Maturity  2,161.07   7,720.42 and 2018-19.
Non-Current Maturity  5,468.32   1,772.28

Summary    
Balance Outstanding  7,629.39  9,492.70
Current Maturity  2,161.07  7,720.42
Non-Current Maturity  5,468.32   1,772.28

₹ in Lacs

* Includes Rs. 1647.69 lacs (PY Rs. 2756.26 lacs) received from Shareholders of the Company.
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3.12.1.3 The aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by directors is ₹  474.99 lacs (PY ₹ 474.99 lacs)

3.12.1.4  Repayment delay on Long-Term Borrowings from Banks* 

 Name of the Bank  Nature of Borrowing Principal Amount Interest Amount

 State Bank of India  Corporate Loan  474.99   57.22 

₹ in Lacs

* Refer Note No. 3.14.1.1

* In consortium with State Bank of India, Oriental Bank of Commerce, Union Bank of India and Syndicate Bank is Secured against hypothecation of stocks & book debts and equitable mortgage 

of speci�c properties and Personal guarantee of Directors and Corporate guarantee of SRS Retreat Services Ltd., BTL Holding Company Limited {(formerly known as BTL Investments and Securities 

Limited)(SRS Holdings India Ltd merged with BTL Holding Company Limited w.e.f 18.07.2013)}, SRS Knowledge & Technologies Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS Professional Services Ltd.), and 

Latest IT Solutions Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS IT Solutions Pvt. Ltd.)

@ Gold Loan (Metal) from Bank is secured against Letter of Credit and FDR.

 *The aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by directors is ₹ 80217.32 lacs (PY ₹ 57969.42 lacs)    

3.13 Provisions

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Provision for Employee Bene�ts *
  -  Gratuity (funded) 220.06   166.64   132.75
  -  Leave Encashment (un-funded) 62.61   60.56 53.97

Total 282.67 227.20 186.72

₹ in Lacs

* Also refer note no. 3.36.

3.12.2 Other Financial Liabilities

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Security Deposits Received 31.37   8.03   28.73

Total 31.37   8.03   28.73

₹ in Lacs

3.14 Financial Liabilities-Current
3.14.1 Short-Term Borrowings

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Loan Repayable on Demand from Bank
  -  Cash Credit *  70,217.32   47,969.42   40,598.68 
  -  Demand Loan *  10,000.00   10,000.00   10,475.00
  -  Gold Loan @  -     1,952.49   -

  80,217.32   59,921.91   51,073.68 

Loans from Corporate bodies  0.49   225.00   -

   0.49   225.00   -

Fixed Deposit Scheme
  -  Public Deposit  2,161.07   7,720.42   6,280.40

   2,161.07   7,720.42   6,280.40

Total  82,378.88  67,867.33   57,354.08 

₹ in Lacs
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3.14.1.1  Repayment delay in Short-Term Borrowings from Banks   

Name of the Bank  Nature of Borrowing  Principal Amount  Interest Amount

State Bank of India  Cash Credits  36,636.94   3,359.02

State Bank of India  Demand Loan  10,000.00   1,077.37

Bank of India  Cash Credits  17,114.10   1,550.91

Union Bank of India  Cash Credits  9,708.40   1,084.16

Oriental Bank of Commerce  Cash Credits  5,217.22   423.07

Syndicate Bank  Cash Credits  993.30   124.29

Total   79,669.96   7,618.82

₹ in Lacs 

Cash Credit facilities and corporate loans from consortium of banks, the aggregate outstanding (including interest) of which amounts to Rs. 87288.78 lacs and Rs. 
532.21 lacs respectively as on 31st  March, 2017, are irregular and classi�ed as NPA mainly due to non servicing of interest and related charges. The State Bank of India 
has initiated recovery procedure by opening a Trust and retention account (TRA) and recovered amounting to Rs. 1,282.52 lacs during the period from which the 
accounts have become NPA upto 31st March, 2017 and from the outstanding amount reported above, Rs. 87.75 lacs has been recovered subsequently up to the date of 
30th May, 2017. 

However, the Company has submitted the request for restructuring of accounts vide letter dated 4th July 2016 followed by reference letter dated 18th May, 2017 and 
deliberations in various consortium forums inter-alia including meeting of Joint Lender Forum (JLF) with the sole objective of �nding a solution aimed at revival.

3.14.3 Other Financial Liabilities

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 508.01   347.29   355.35
(Refer note no. 3.14.3.1)
Unpaid matured deposit # 450.08 - - 
Interest Accrued but not due 522.75  495.23   338.08
Interest Accrued & due  7,128.68   -     -
Unpaid interest on unpaid matured deposit 156.17 - -
Share Application Money received for Allotment   1.79   1.79   3.74
of Securities due for refund and interest accrued 
thereon* 
Unclaimed Dividend *  1.38   1.38   1.38
Creditors for Capital Expenditure 88.72   28.17   38.89
Creditors for Revenue Expenditure 1,462.22   1,220.10   997.79
Other Payable
     - Security Deposits Received 52.57   20.10   6.76
     - Retention Money -     59.78   82.15
     - Employees 416.78   389.02   310.50

Total  10,789.15  2,562.86   2,134.64

₹ in Lacs

3.14.2 Trade Payables

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Dues of MSMEs* -     -     -
Dues of other than MSMEs  21,113.92   45,321.28   34,327.87

Total 21,113.92   45,321.28   34,327.87

₹ in Lacs

* The above information as required to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties 
have been identi�ed on the basis of information available with the company. Further, no interest has been paid during the year and payable as on 31st March 2017, 31st 
March 2016 and 1st April 2015 to such parties.

* Do not include any amounts, due and outstanding, to be credited to Investors’ Education and Protection Fund.

# Due to liquidity crunch in the Company, the Company was not able to maintain liquid assets for the year ended 31st March, 2017 as required under Rule 13 of the Companies (Acceptance 

of Deposits)  Rules, 2014. The Company has been regular in repayment of principal amounts till mid of April, 2016. But after that, there is a default in repayment of principal amounts.

The Company had �led an application with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for extension of time for repayment of deposits and NCLT has passed the order on 20th October, 2016 

granting extension of time to the Company for repayment of deposits. The NCLT has granted further extension vide its order dated 2nd February, 2017 for interest payments by 31st March, 

2017 and principal payments by 30th June, 2017 in accordance with its earlier Order dated 20th October, 2016. The payments due are in process.

The Company has re-paid full principal amounts in few cases and under Hardship Category also. The Management is making its best e�orts for arranging fund for payment of 

interest/principal of deposits at the earliest.
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3.15 Provisions

3.16 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

     - Provision for Income Tax (net of advance tax) 136.00   143.08   525.22

Total 136.00   143.08  525.22

₹ in Lacs

3.17 Other Current Liabilities

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

     - Advances received from customers  287.55   91.45   34.70
     - Statutory dues  152.76   381.61   84.83

Total  440.31   473.06   119.53

₹ in Lacs

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Provision for Employee Bene�ts *
     - Gratuity (funded) 9.77   14.00   12.32
     - Leave Encashment (un-funded) 3.01   4.14   3.81

Total  12.78   18.14   16.13

₹ in Lacs 

* Also refer note no. 3.36

* Do not include any amounts, due and outstanding, to be credited to Investors’ Education and Protection Fund.

3.14.3.1 Current Maturity of Long Term Debts

 As at 

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Secured
Term Loan
     - From Bank  506.15   347.29
     - From Other Parties 1.86   -

Total  508.01   347.29

₹ in Lacs 
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# Due to liquidity crunch in the Company, the Company was not able to maintain liquid assets for the year ended 31st March, 2017 as required under Rule 13 of the Companies (Acceptance 

of Deposits)  Rules, 2014. The Company has been regular in repayment of principal amounts till mid of April, 2016. But after that, there is a default in repayment of principal amounts.

The Company had �led an application with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for extension of time for repayment of deposits and NCLT has passed the order on 20th October, 2016 

granting extension of time to the Company for repayment of deposits. The NCLT has granted further extension vide its order dated 2nd February, 2017 for interest payments by 31st March, 

2017 and principal payments by 30th June, 2017 in accordance with its earlier Order dated 20th October, 2016. The payments due are in process.

The Company has re-paid full principal amounts in few cases and under Hardship Category also. The Management is making its best e�orts for arranging fund for payment of 

interest/principal of deposits at the earliest.



3.18 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

3.19 Derivative Instruments and Hedged/ Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure  

3.19.1 All derivative contracts entered into by the Company are for hedging purposes.   

  As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Contingent Liabilities
     - Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of Legal Matters*  1,295.27 1,271.11
     - Pending Export Obligations (duty forgone)   0.17   0.17

Commitments
     - Capital Commitments:
     - Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on   176.35   336.06
        capital account and not provided for#"

₹ in Lacs 

* An amount of Rs.174.48 Lacs (PY Rs. 120 Lacs) deposited by the Company under protest has been shown as Income Tax Recoverable under Long Term Loans & Advances (refer Note No.3.6) 

and has not been adjusted above.

# The above amount is net of capital advances amounting to Rs. 53.95 lacs (PY Rs. 64.06 lacs) (refer note no. 3.6). 

3.19.3 Particulars for Hedged Foreign Currency Exposure: 

   As at   

  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 

Particulars Currency Foreign ₹ in Lacs Foreign ₹ in Lacs
  Currency in Lacs   Currency in Lacs

Foreign Currency Receivables USD  -     -     5.00   331.66

3.19.2 Forward Contract outstanding as at Balance Sheet date 

 Amount Outstanding as at 

Currency  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 Buy / Sell Purpose

USD   -     5  Sell Hedging

₹ in Lacs 

3.19.4 Foreign Currency Exposure that are not hedged by derivative transactions or otherwise:

   As at   

  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 

Particulars Currency Foreign ₹ in Lacs Foreign ₹ in Lacs
  Currency in Lacs   Currency in Lacs

Foreign Currency Receivables USD  195.41   12,670.38   203.20   13,478.64

Foreign Currency Receivables AED  1,016.17   17,948.71   1,137.57   20,794.12

Foreign Currency Payables AED  982.74   17,354.27   1,094.38   19,717.26
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3.20 Revenue from Operations

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

 Sale of products 
     - Gold & Jewellery  68,077.86   338,983.77
     - Food & Beverages   3,136.39   3,906.28
     - Retail   20,675.59   22,048.91
     - Income from sale of tickets of �lms *   7,271.22   7,325.83
 {(net of entertainment and show tax of ₹ 2264.16 Lacs
(Previous year ₹ 2585.05 Lacs)}   99,161.06   372,264.79
 Sale of services 
    - Lease Rent Income   184.19   176.97

     - Common Area Maintenance Charges   40.95   26.82
     - Advertisement Income   624.47   591.19
     - Commission Income   16.89   33.52
     - Trademark / Franchise Fee   5.62   23.55
     - Management Fees   29.29   34.56

   901.41   886.61
Other operating revenues
     - Duty Drawback   25.18   -

  25.18   -

Total  100,087.65   373,151.40

₹ in Lacs 

3.21 Other Income

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Interest Income   122.36   62.90
Net Gain on Sale of Current Investment   1.07   41.28
Other Non-Operating Income 
     - Pro�t on Future/Forward-Commodity & Currency   26.01   5.54
     - Balances w/back (net)    14.13   -
     - Sale of Scrap   1.91   17.44
     - Miscellaneous Income   13.89   8.78

Total  179.37   135.94

₹ in Lacs 

₹ in Lacs 3.22 Cost of materials consumed

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Gold Bar  -     80,844.50
Semi Precious Stone  -     20.41
Food & Beverages  648.09   1,044.82

Total  648.09   81,909.73

₹ in Lacs 
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3.23 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Gold & Jewellery  31,926.39   257,022.51
Food & Beverages  202.51   247.70
Retail   16,680.07   18,917.78

Total   48,808.97   276,187.99

*  Income from sale of tickets of �lms includes Entertainment Tax of ₹ 623.17 lacs (PY ₹ 173.88 lacs) for which the Company is exempted for deposition in terms of the scheme of U.P. State Government.



3.24 Exhibition Cost

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

 Distributor Share & Commission Charges   2,858.21   3,034.67

Total   2,858.21   3,034.67

3.25 Change in Inventories of �nished goods & stock-in-trade

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Closing Stock 

Finished Goods   -     6,116.02
Stock in Trade   20,767.55   39,297.16
Conversion of Raw Material into Stock in Trade   (9,615.29)  -

Opening Stock
Finished Goods   6,116.02   11,057.53
Stock in Trade   39,297.16   20,109.79

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories  34,260.92   (14,245.86)

₹ in Lacs 

3.25.1 Details of Closing Stock

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Finished Goods
Gold & Jewellery  -     6,116.02
   -     6,116.02
Stock in Trade
Gold & Jewellery  18,725.36   36,412.66
Retail  2,042.19   2,884.50
  20,767.55   39,297.16
Total  20,767.55   45,413.18

₹ in Lacs 

3.26 Employee bene�ts expense ₹ in Lacs 

₹ in Lacs 

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

 Salaries, Wages and Bonus   2,879.84   3,208.76
 Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Fund   299.00   289.77
 Sta� Welfare Expenses   98.99   150.52
Provision for Employees Bene�ts (Refer note no. 3.36)   78.54   64.17

Total   3,356.37   3,713.22

3.27 Finance Costs

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

 Interest on:
     -  Term Loans   79.58   88.08
     - Cash Credit/Overdraft   10,139.05   6,034.50
     - Gold Loans   6.97   61.22
     - Fixed Deposits   1,032.06   1,200.58
     - Unsecured Loans   28.55   12.38
     - Others   5.79   0.54
Bank Charges and Other Financial Expenses   491.54   1,072.26

   11,783.54   8,469.56

Less : Interest Income on FDR kept as margin money /guarantee out of 83.42   377.72
Cash Credit accounts   

Total  11,700.12   8,091.84

₹ in Lacs 
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3.28 Depreciation and amortisation expense

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Depreciation  1,749.18   1,834.04
Amortisation  22.99   56.26

Total  1,772.17   1,890.30

3.29 Other Expenses

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

 Jobwork Charges   -     217.09
 Security & House Keeping   1,440.87   1,496.79
Packaging Expenses   20.94   113.81
Fuel Charges   27.98   64.01
Balances w/o� (net)   -     575.55
Consumable Expenses   9.45   20.47
Freight & Cartage   29.84   38.40
Other Operational Expenses   23.40   81.83
 Lease Rent Paid   3,647.50   3,956.16
 Electricity & Water Expenses   1,171.91   1,309.64
Insurance Expenses   54.93   84.83
 Repairs and Maintenance:
     -  Plant & Machinery   186.69   206.39
     -  Building   32.48   26.61
     -  Others   117.89   158.24
 Rates & Taxes   175.68   950.45
 Payment to Auditors (Refer note no. 3.29.1)   16.02   27.01
 Legal & Professional Expenses   150.90   101.57
 Directors' Sitting Fee   7.25   9.22
 Miscellaneous Expenses   201.28   241.49
 Property, Plant and Equipment & CWIP written o�   135.69   76.99
 Loss on sale of Capital Assets   11.09   26.02
 Provision for doubtful debts   9,316.96   -
 Donation   0.02   3.25
 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note no. 3.29.2)   80.30   95.25
 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation   258.93   22.33
 Hedging Expenses   -     0.82
 Travelling & Conveyance Expenses   106.94   167.27
 Selling & Distribution Expenses   132.60   173.28
 Commission & Service Charges   13.86   190.13
 Advertisement   133.64   321.71
 Prior Period Expenses   -     15.59
 Service Tax Paid on Recipient Basis   43.82   37.73

Total  17,548.86   10,809.93

₹ in Lacs 

3.29.1 Payment to Auditors*

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

 Payment to Auditors 
     -  As Auditors   7.96   21.24
     -  For Certi�cation   5.18   5.14
     -  For Taxation Matters   2.30   -
     -  For Reimbursement of Expenses   0.58   0.63

 Total   16.02   27.01 

₹ in Lacs 

*Includes Service Tax

₹ in Lacs 

112 | SRS Limited Annual Report 2016-17



* Expense incurred through SRS Social Welfare Association registered under section 80 G of Income Tax Act.

3.29.2 Detail of CSR Expenditure (for the year ended 31st Mar 2017)
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net pro�t for 
the immediately preceding three �nancial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. As per Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013, the areas 
for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, 
environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural development projects, etc. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act.

 (a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year      :    Rs. 80,20,212 /-

 (b) Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars In Cash/Bank Yet to be incurred Total

(i)   Construction / acquisition of any asset  -  -     -

(ii)  On purpose other than above (i) above *  80,30,000  -     80,30,000
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3.30 “Earning per Share” computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33 “Earnings Per Share”

Notes forming part of the Standanone Financial Statements

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

a) Numerator:
 Net Pro�t after taxation as per Statement of Pro�t & Loss (16,050.81)  1,591.30

b)  Denominator :
 No. of Shares at the beginning of the year  278,582,026   278,582,026
 Total Equity Share outstanding at the end of the year  278,582,026   278,582,026
 Weighted average no. of equity shares for the year  278,582,026   278,582,026
 Weighted average no. of diluted equity shares for the year  278,582,026   278,582,026

c) Face Value per share (in ₹) 10 10

d)  Earning per Share (EPS):
      - Basic (in ₹) (5.76) 0.57
      - Diluted (in ₹) (5.76)  0.57

₹ in Lacs 

3.31 Value of Imported and Indigenous Material Consumed

 For the year ended   

Particulars 31-Mar-17  31-Mar-16

 ₹ in Lacs % ₹ in Lacs %

Imported -    -  21,952.18  26.80

Indigenous  648.09   100.00   59,957.54   73.20

Total 648.09   100.00   81,909.72   100.00

₹ in Lacs 

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Materials  -     21,953.03

Total   -     21,953.03

₹ in Lacs 
3.32 Value of Import on CIF Basis (On accrual basis) 

3.33 Earning in Foreign Exchange (on accrual basis) 

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

FOB value of exports  301.03   51,256.87

Total   301.03   51,256.87

₹ in Lacs 
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3.34 Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Bank charges and other �nancial expenses  0.49   5.91
Insurance Expenses  -    0.51
Lease Rent Paid  -     2.57
Legal & Professional Expenses  -     0.15
Miscellaneous Expenses  -     0.05
Other Operational Expense -     39.13
Rates & Taxes  -     19.87
Security & House Keeping  -     0.21

Total  0.49   68.40

₹ in Lacs 

3.35 The amount of Exchange Di�erence (Net)
The Foreign Exchange Income / (Loss) of ₹ (258.93 lacs) {PY( ₹ 22.33 lacs)} resulting from settlement and realignment of foreign exchange transaction 
has been adjusted in the Statement of Pro�t & Loss.

3.36 Employee Bene�ts
a)  De�ned Contribution Plans
The Company has recognised ₹ 231.81 lacs (PY ₹ 222.18 lacs) as contribution to provident fund in Statement of Pro�t & Loss.

 b)  De�ned Bene�t Plans 
The Company has a de�ned bene�t gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed �ve years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days 
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded. The Company has also provided for Leave Encashment which is 
unfunded.

The following tables summarize the components of net bene�t expense recognized in the Statement of Pro�t & Loss, the funded status and amounts recognized in the 
balance sheet for the respective plans (as per Actuarial Valuation as on 31st March 2017).

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave liability for the Company's plans are shown below:

 Leave encashment  Gratuity

Particulars As at  As at 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Discount Rate (based on the market yields available on Government 7.35% 7.75% 7.35% 7.75%
bonds at the accounting date with term that matches that of the liabilities)

Salary increase (taking into account in�ation, seniority, promotion 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25%
and other relevant factor)

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 0.00% 0.00% 8.35% 8.35%

Average Outstanding Service of Employees upto retirement (years) 30.75 30.64 30.83 30.64

Changes in the present value of De�ned Bene�t Obligation are as follows:

 Leave encashment  Gratuity

Particulars As at  As at 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Present Value of De�ned Bene�t Obligation at the beginning of the year  64.70   57.78   206.26   172.24

Interest Cost  5.01   4.77   15.98   14.67

Past Service Cost -     -     -     -

Current Service Cost  22.07   21.75   44.83   42.48

Bene�ts Paid  (12.88)  (4.55)  (43.24)  (7.24)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation  (13.28)  (15.05)  6.69   (15.90)

Present Value of De�ned Bene�t Obligation  at the end of the year  65.62   64.70   230.52   206.25

₹ in Lacs 
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Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2017

 Leave encashment  Gratuity

Particulars As at  As at 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Present Value of De�ned Bene�t Obligation at the end of the year  65.61   64.70   230.52   206.26

Fair Value of Plan Assets  -     -     0.69   25.62

Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet  (65.62)  (64.70)  (229.83)  (180.64)

₹ in Lacs 

Net Employees Bene�t Expense (recognized in the Statement of Pro�t & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2017

 Leave encashment  Gratuity

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Current Service Cost  22.07   21.75   44.83   42.48

Past Service Cost -     -     -     -

Interest Cost 5.01   4.77   15.98   14.67

Expected return on plan assets -     -     (2.14)  (2.38)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year (13.28)  (15.05)  8.17   (15.65)

Expenses recognized in the statement of Pro�t & Loss  13.81   11.46   66.85   39.13

₹ in Lacs 

Changes in the fair value of Plan Assets are as follows :

 Gratuity
 As at 

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Fair value of the plan assets at the beginning of the year  25.62   27.17
Expected return on Plan Assets  2.14   2.38
Contribution by employer  -     3.55
Bene�ts Paid  (25.59)  (7.24)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on Plan Assets  (1.48)  (0.25)
Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year  0.69   25.62

₹ in Lacs 

Bifurcation of Obligation at the end 31st March 2017 

 Leave encashment  Gratuity

Particulars  As at 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Current Liability (Short Term)  3.01   4.14   9.77   14.00

Non Current Liability (Long Term)  62.61   60.56   220.06   166.64

Total  65.62   64.70   229.83   180.64

₹ in Lacs 

3.37 Segment Reporting
As per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-108 “Operating Segments”, the Company’s segment reporting is as below: 
The Company has identi�ed three reportable segments viz. Cinemas, Retail and Gold & Jewellery. Segments have been identi�ed and reported taking 
into account nature of products and services, the di�ering risks and returns and the internal business reporting systems. The accounting policies adopted 
for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of the Company with following additional policies for segment reporting.

 a)  Revenue and expenses have been identi�ed to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses 
which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

 b)  Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax related assets and other assets and 
liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.
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3.37.1 Primary Segment Information ₹ in Lacs 

3.37.2 Secondary Segment Information
Secondary segment for the company constitutes domestic market and international market.

  For the year ended

 Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

1 Segment Revenue
 "Net Sales/Income (There is no inter-segment revenue)"
 - Within India  99,761.44   321,894.53
 - Outside India   326.21   51,256.87

 Total Revenue  100,087.65   373,151.40

₹ in Lacs 

 Particulars Period  Cinemas  Retail Gold & Corporate Total

      Jewellery & Others

       (Unallocable)

1 Segment Revenue

 Net Sales/Income

 (There is no inter-segment revenue) For the 31-Mar-17 10,595.04 20,783.10 68,103.05 606.46 1,00,087.65

  year ended 31-Mar-16  10,641.83   22,264.50   3,38,984.56  1,260.51   3,73,151.40

2 Segment Result   

 Before interest, other income, For the 31-Mar-17  1,967.83   (545.52)  1,706.36   (695.14)  2,433.53

 depreciation, non-cash expenses year ended 31-Mar-16  2,116.30   (606.47)  14,023.35   (2,249.42)  13,283.76

 and taxes      

 Add: Other Income For the  31-Mar-17  48.58   23.57   28.47   64.62   165.24

  year ended 31-Mar-16  33.65   36.86   7.72   57.71   135.94

 Less: Depreciation For the 31-Mar-17  856.04   241.34   115.10   559.69   1,772.17

  year ended 31-Mar-16  893.77   263.37   112.57   620.59   1,890.30

 Less: Non-cash Items For the  31-Mar-17  (8.64)  45.22   9,763.99   12.60   9,813.17

  year ended 31-Mar-16  (7.17)  111.02   1,406.96   31.23   1,542.04

 Pro�t / (-) Loss before interest For the 31-Mar-17  1,169.01   (808.51)  (8,144.26)  (1,202.81)  (8,986.57)

 and taxes year ended 31-Mar-16  1,263.35   (944.00)  12,511.54   (2,843.53)  9,987.36

 Finance Cost (Net of interest income) For the  31-Mar-17    11,700.12   11,700.12

  year ended 31-Mar-16    8,091.84   8,091.84

 Pro�t before taxes For the  31-Mar-17     20,686.69)

  year ended 31-Mar-16     1,895.52

 Taxes For the  31-Mar-17    (4,637.99)  (4,637.99)

  year ended 31-Mar-16    317.80   317.80

 Net Pro�t after Taxes For the  31-Mar-17     (16,048.70)

  year ended 31-Mar-16     1,577.72

3 Other Informations

 Segment Assets As at 31-Mar-17  8,680.15   4,363.80   1,37,367.12   18,656.34   1,69,067.41

   31-Mar-16  9,002.60   5,502.85   1,48,770.88   19,783.49   1,83,059.82

 Segment Liabilities As at 31-Mar-17  1,066.06   1,833.27   74,017.96   43,803.24   1,20,720.52

   1-Mar-16  889.18   2,058.47   72,927.13   42,787.35   1,18,662.13
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  As at

 Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

2 Segment Assets
 - Within India  137,957.24  148,673.77
 - Outside India   31,110.17   34,386.05

 Total Assets  169,067.40   183,059.82

3 Segment Liability
 - Within India  103,357.05   98,944.24
 - Outside India   17,363.48   19,717.89

 Total Liability  120,720.53   118,662.13

₹ in Lacs 

 3.38  Related Party Disclosure

As per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-24 “Related Party Disclosures”, the Company’s related parties and transactions are disclosed below: 

a. List of related parties & relationships, where control exists

Holding Company

BTL Holding Company Limited (ceased w.e.f. 27.01.2017)

 Subsidiary Company

SRS Worldwide (FZC) (ceased w.e.f. 21.02.2017)

SRS Entertainement India Ltd.

 Fellow Subsidiary Company

SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. (ceased w.e.f. 27.01.2017)

SRS Healthcare & Research Centre Limited (ceased w.e.f. 27.01.2017)

 Step Down Subsidiary Company

SRS Real Estate Ltd. (ceased w.e.f. 27.01.2017)

SRS Retreat Services Ltd. (ceased w.e.f. 27.01.2017)

b. Related parties & relationships with whom transactions have taken place during the year

i Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Dr. Anil Jindal - Executive Chairman

Mr. Sunil Jindal  - Managing Director

Mr. Raju Bansal - Whole Time Director

Mr. Vinod Kumar  - Whole Time Director

Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta  - Chief Financial O�cer (resigned e�ective January 31, 2017)

Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra   - COO & Company Secretary

Mr. Sachin Goyal - Chief Financial O�cer (appointed January 27, 2017)

ii Enterprises owned or signi�cantly in�uenced by KMP and/or their Relatives

SRS Finance Ltd.

BTL Holding Company Limited

SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd.

SRS Real Estate Ltd.

SRS Bright Retail Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS E-Retail Ltd.)

SRS Shining Ornaments Limited (Formerly known as Jai Shiv Jewellers & Manufacturers Ltd)

SRS  Social Welfare Society
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c. Transactions with related Parties:        

    For the year ended

S. No. Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

1 SRS Finance Ltd. Rent Received Income  12.00   12.00

2 SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. Purchase of Building Material Expense  -     0.18

  (Repair & Maintenance Expenses) 

  CAM Charges Paid Expense  19.22   60.71

  Electricity Charges Paid Expense  14.64   34.67

3 BTL Holding Company Limited  Other advances Liability  135.02   -

  Interest Expense Expense  2.48   -

  Rent Received Income  12.00   12.00

4 SRS Entertainment India Ltd. Advance Given Assets  -     187.92

 (Formerly known as Interest Received Income 49.13 10.94

 SRS Entertainment Limited) Purchase of Goods Expense 4.34   0.17 

  Sale of Goods Income  1.87   -

  Purchase of shares Assets  832.00   497.50

  Sale of Fixed Assets Assets  -     0.07

5 SRS Bright Retail Ltd. Advance Given Assets  6.02   -

 (Formerly known as Rent paid Expense  2.11   - 

 SRS E-Retail Ltd.) Rent Received Income  2.21   -

  CAM and Electricity Income Income  1.43   -

  Sale of goods Income  25.40   -

6 SRS Shining Ornaments Limited Job Work Charges Expense  -     47.74

8 SRS Social Welfare Society Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  80.30 95.25

  Expenses 

9 Dr. Anil Jindal Director’s Remuneration Expense  43.10   89.63

10 Mr. Sunil Jindal Director’s Remuneration Expense  26.50   48.00

11 Mr. Raju Bansal Director’s Remuneration Expense  16.73   29.86

12 Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta Director’s Remuneration Expense  13.73   29.86

13 Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta Remuneration Expense  10.12   17.09

14 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra Remuneration Expense  12.02   17.37

15 Mr. Sachin Goyal Remuneration Expense  1.60   -

₹ in Lacs 
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d. Closing balance with related parties 

    As at

S. No. Name of the Party Particulars Nature 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

1 SRS Finance Ltd. Non Trade Receivable Assets  3.45   1.05

2 SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. Non Trade Payable Liability  0.56   38.19

3 SRS Worldwide FZC Investments in Subsidiary Assets  -     92.96
  Advances recoverable in cash or in Assets  -     2.30
  kind or for which value to be
  received

4 BTL Holding Company Limited  Other payables Liability  135.02   -
  Interest Payable Liability  2.23   -
  Non Trade Payable Liability  2.20   0.18

5 SRS Entertainment India Ltd. Investments in Subsidiary Assets  2,666.00   1,834.00
 (Formerly known as Non-Trade Receivables Assets  4.26   -
 SRS Entertainment Ltd.) Trade Payable Liability  4.34   -
  Loan to Subsidiary Assets  54.37   328.67

6 SRS Shining Ornaments Limited Advance to suppliers Assets  -     6.74

7 SRS Bright Retail Ltd. Trade Receivables Assets  19.90   -
 (Formerly known as Non-Trade Payable Liability  1.91   -
 SRS E-Retail Ltd.) Advance others Assets  6.02   -

8 SRS Social Welfare Society Advance others Assets  8.20   -

9 Dr. Anil Jindal Director’s Remuneration payable Liability  1.69   4.51

10 Mr. Sunil Jindal Director’s Remuneration payable Liability -     3.22

11 Mr. Raju Bansal Director’s Remuneration payable Liability  0.95   1.99

12 Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta Director’s Remuneration payable Liability  4.11   1.88

13 Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta Remuneration payable Liability  -     1.06

14 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra Remuneration payable Liability  0.83   1.25

15 Mr. Sachin Goyal Remuneration payable Liability  0.68   -

3.39 In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard "Ind AS-17 on Leases" the following disclosures in respect of operating leases is made as under:

 A. Assets taken on operating lease

a) The Company has taken certain shops/o�ces/other Fixed Assets on non-cancellable operating lease. Minimum lease payments of ₹ 3364.99 lacs  

 (PY ₹ 3638.72 lacs) are charged to Statement of Pro�t & Loss.

 b) Total contingent rents (Calculated on Revenue Sharing Basis) recognized as expense in the statement of pro�t and loss for the year is ₹ 217.68 lacs 

 (PY ₹ 263.69 lacs).

₹ in Lacs 

e. O� balance sheet items with related parties

   As at 
S. No. Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

1 BTL Holding Company Limited  Corporate Guarantee taken O� Balance  83,500.00  83,500.00

2 SRS Retreat Services Ltd. Corporate Guarantee taken Sheet Item -  83,500.00

₹ in Lacs 
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 As at 
 Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
a. Not later than one year  2,893.64   3,700.62
b. Later than one year and not later than �ve years  11,543.82   14,661.40
c. Later than �ve years  2,105.24   4,073.11

₹ in Lacs 

 As at 

 Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

a. Not later than one year  105.24   111.38

b. Later than one year and not later than �ve years  296.32   232.97

c. Later than �ve years  78.28   16.39

₹ in Lacs 

 d) Sub-lease payments received (on accrual basis) of ₹ 142.05 lacs (PY ₹ 132 lacs) are recognized in the Statement of Pro�t & Loss.

 e) The total of future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable sub-leases at the Balance Sheet date are

 ₹ 378.14 lacs (PY ₹ 261.58 lacs).         

B. Assets given on operating lease

a) Future minimum lease payments receivable by the Company in respect of non-cancellable operating lease for shops / kiosks entered by the

 Company are as follows:

 b) Total contingent rents (Calculated on Revenue Sharing Basis) recognized as income in the statement of pro�t and loss for the year is

 ₹ 29.06 lacs (PY ₹ 36.06 lacs).

3.40 In the opinion of the management, the value on realization of current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary course of business would not be 
less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions for all known liabilities have been made.

3.41 The fair values of the �nancial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
1.  Fair value of current assets which includes loans given, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other �nancial assets approximate  
 their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.
2.  Financial instruments with �xed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and  
 individual credit worthiness of the counter party. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these
 receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not materially di�erent from their carrying amounts. 

3.42 The required disclosure for speci�ed bank notes or other denomination note held and transacted during the period from 8th November 2016 to 
30th December 2016 as required in the MCA noti�cation G.S.R. 308(E) dated 30th March 2017 is as under:-    

"Particulars" SBNs* Other Denomination Notes Total

  Amount   Amount   Amount

Closing Balance as at 8th November 2016  428,231,000  3,883,339  432,114,339

Add: Withdrawal from bank accounts  - 208,000  208,000

Add: Receipts for permitted transactions - 128,176,960  128,176,960

Less: paid for permitted transactions  -  23,866,969 23,866,969

Less: amount deposited in Bank account 428,231,000  53,867,699  482,098,699

Closing Balance as at 30th December 2016 - 54,533,631   54,533,631

₹ in Lacs 

*For the purpose of this clause the term 'Speci�ed Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided in the noti�cation of the Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance,

Department of Economics A�airs number S.O. 3407(E), dated the 8th November, 2016.
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 c) Future commitments in respect of minimum lease payments payable in respect of aforesaid lease entered by the Company are as follows:  

       



3.43 Financial risk management

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of �nancial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company’s senior 

management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk management framework. The Company has constituted a Risk 

Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Company’s risk management 

policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review the 

changes in market conditions and re�ect the changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Audit Committee 

of the Company.          

 Management of liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its �nancial liabilities. The Company’s approach in managing 

liquidity is to ensure that it will have su�cient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management 

considers both normal and stressed conditions.

 Due to slow recovery from debtors, the Company is facing liquidity crunch during the year and has not been able to repay of its public deposits and bank 

interest. Therefore, the Company has taken extention from National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for repayment of public deposits. Also, the Company has 

submitted the request for restructuring of accounts vide letter dated 4th July 2016 followed by deliberations in various consortium forums inter-alia including 

meeting of JLF with the sole objective of �nding a solution aimed at revival.

 The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company’s �nancial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash �ows along with its 

carrying value as at the Balance Sheet date:

Particulars Carrying Amount Payable within Payable Total
   1 year after 1 year

As at 31st March 2017
Borrowings 96,001.10   83,336.97   5,535.45   88,872.42
Trade Payables 21,130.03   21,130.03   -   21,130.03
Security Deposits 93.94   52.57   31.37   93.94
Other Financial Liabilities  2,633.70   2,633.70   -   9,762.38

As at 31st March 2016
Borrowings 70,255.77 68,214.62 2,041.15 70,255.77
Trade Payables 45,321.28 45,321.28 - 45,321.28
Security Deposits 28.13 20.10 8.03 28.13
Other Financial Liabilities 2,195.47 2,195.47 - 2,195.47

As at 1st April 2015
Borrowings 60,206.80 57,709.43 2,497.37 60,206.80
Trade Payables 34,327.87 34,327.87 - 34,327.87
Security Deposits 35.49 6.76 28.73 35.49
Other Financial Liabilities 1,772.53 1,772.53 - 1,772.53

₹ in Lacs 

 Management of market risk
The above risks may a�ect the Company’s income and expenses, or the value of its �nancial instruments. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk 
arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to US Dollar and AED.

 The Company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impacting the Company’s exports revenue and imports of raw material. As at 31st 

March, 2017, the net unhedged exposure to the Company on holding �nancial assets (trade receivables) and liabilities (trade payables) other than in their 
functional currency amounted to Rs. 13,264.82 lacs receivable (31st March, 2016: Rs. 14,555.50  lacs and 1st April, 2015 Rs.  20,049.11 lacs).

 Management of credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of �nancial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations. 
a). Trade receivables

  The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk from the trade receivable as at 31st March, 2017, 31st March, 2016 and 1st April, 2015 is the carrying 
value of trade receivable in the �nancial assets.
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   For and on behalf of the Board 
For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company 
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants) 
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N 

  

  (Sunil Jindal)  (Raju Bansal)    
  Managing Director Whole Time Director
  DIN: 00013791  DIN-00007344

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar)  (Navneet Kwatra)  (Sachin Goyal) 
            Partner Partner C.O.O. & Company Secretary  Chief Financial O�cer
     M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238  M. No. 16672

Place: Faridabad
Date: 30th May, 2017
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 Domestic Exposure
The Company is exposed to risk of recovery from its trade receivables in jewellery segment amounting to Rs. 3,7133.17 lacs. The Company has made provision 
for doubtful debts amounting to Rs. 9,283.29 during the FY 2016-17. Management is assured about the recoverability of the Foreign Trade Receivable and 
taking all necessary steps for the recoverability of the same.  Out of aforesaid Trade receivables, Company has received Rs. 327.25 lacs subsequent to 31st March 
2017 upto 30th May, 2017.

 Overseas Exposure
The Company is exposed to risk of recovery from its trade receivables in jewellery segment amounting to Rs. 30,619 lacs. Management is assured about the 
recoverability of the Foreign Trade Receivable and taking all necessary steps for the recoverability of the same.  Out of aforesaid Trade receivables, Company has 
received Rs. 9315 lacs subsequent to 31st March 2017 upto 30th May, 2017.

 b).  Other �nancial assets
 The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks. The Company has given inter-corporate deposits (ICD) only to 

its subsidiary amounting to Rs. 54.37 lacs (31st March, 2016: Rs. 328.67 lacs and 1st April, 2015: Rs. Nil).
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March, 2017, 31st March, 2016 and 1st April, 2015 is the carrying value of each class of �nancial 
assets.

3.44 The �nancial statements are the Company’s �rst Ind AS consolidated �nancial statements. The �gures for the previous year have been restated, regrouped and 
reclassi�ed wherever required to comply with the requiretment of Ind AS and schedule III. 

3.45 All amounts in the �nancial statements are rounded o� to the nearest Rupee in lacs, except as otherwise stated.

3.46 Note 1 to 3.46 are annexed to and form an integral part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st Mar 2017, Statement of Pro�t and Loss, statement of cash �ows and 
statement of changes in equity for the year ended as on that date.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SRS LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SRS Limited (“hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company”) 

and its subsidiary, viz., SRS Entertainment India Limited (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), 

comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 

year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information prepared based on the relevant 

records (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the 

requirements of the Companies Act, 2013(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 

position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated cash Flow and changes in equity of the Group in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy 

of records including financial information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated financial statements. The respective 

Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the 

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  and the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. While conducting the audit, we 

have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under including the accounting standards and matters which are 

required to be included in the audit report.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 

143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 

financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view, in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their report referred to 

in ‘Other Matters’ paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements.

Emphasis of Matter
Cash Credit and Demand Loan facilities from consortium of banks, the aggregate outstanding of which amounts to Rs. 878 crore as on 31st 

March 2017 are irregular and classified as NPA mainly due to non-servicing of interest and related charges.

Our opinion is not modified in respect to above matter.
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Basis for Quali�ed Opinion
1.  Foreign Trade Receivables aggregating Rs. 30619 lacs (as on 31st March 2017) on account of sale during the FY 2015-16 and 2016-17 

in UAE (including Rs. 13899 lacs out of sale to parties from inventories sent through NSEZ unit of the Company located in India to 

UAE Branch through Branch transfer) are unsecured, i.e., not backed up by any security. Out of aforesaid Trade Receivables, the 

Company has recovered Rs. 9315 lacs subsequent to 31st March 2017 (refer Note 3.43 to financial statements).

 We are unable to comment on the recoverability and any further impact on the Company’s financials for the year ended 31st March 2017. 

2.  Deposit Repayment Reserve Account for the Fixed deposits at the close of FY 2016-17 required under Section 73(2)(c) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 equal to 15% of the deposits maturing in the year & year following were found short by Rs.855 lacs (short 

amount as on 31st March 2017). We are unable to comment on the financial implications in respect of the same.

Quali�ed Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the matter 

described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the 

Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the 

state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its profit/loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash Flow and the 

changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

a) In terms of the Joint Responsibility Statement (as per Standards on Auditing-299) forming part of the Engagement Letter:

 i. Audit of Retail Segment, Cinema Segment and part of un-allocable segment whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 

13171 lacs as at 31st March, 2017 and total revenue of Rs. 32907 lacs for the year ended on that date has been carried out by M/s SVP 

& Associates; and

 ii. Audit of Gold & Jewellery Segment, Corporate & Other Segment and part of un-allocable segment whose financial statement reflect 

total assets of Rs. 156024 lacs as at 31st March, 2017 and total revenue of Rs. 69055 lacs for the year ended on that date has been 

carried out by M/s Oswal Sunil & Co.

  Refer segment information in the statement of consolidated audited results for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

b)  The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the transition date opening balance sheet as at 

April 1, 2015 included in these consolidated financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements 

for the years ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2006 (as amended) which were not audited by us, on which we received a modified opinion and an unmodified opinion respectively, 

dated June 8, 2016 and May 22, 2015 respectively, from other Auditors. The adjustments to those financial statements for the 

differences in accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to Indian Accounting Standards have not been audited 

by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Subject to matters stated in ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 

for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Holding Company, its subsidiary included in the Group, 

including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books and records of the Holding Company and the report of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

Consolidated statement of Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the relevant books of account maintained by the Holding Company, its subsidiary included in the Group,  including 

relevant records relating to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 

Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2017 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the report of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, none of 

the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 

164(2) of the Act.

(f ) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company including its 

subsidiary company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A.
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31,2017 on the consolidated 

financial position of the Group.

 ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable law or accounting 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2017.

 iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 

the Holding Company and its subsidiary company during the year ended March 31, 2017.

For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) 
Partner Partner
M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238

Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad
Date: 30th May, 2017 Date: 30th May, 2017
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SRS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of  the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017, we have 

audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SRS Limited (herein after referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its 

subsidiary company, which is incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, are 

responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 

Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the 

Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding there liability 

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 

detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate.
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Quali�ed opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness has been identified as 

at March 31, 2017:

The Holding Company’s UAE Branch did not have an appropriate internal control system for credit appraisal and ultimate collection from the 

trade debtors.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal financial control over financial reporting, such that there is a 

reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or 

detected on a timely basis. In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on the achievement of 

the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2017, based on ‘the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India’.  We 

have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in 

our audit of the March 31, 2017 financial statements of the Company and the possible impact due to aforesaid material weakness, has been 

appropriately reflected in our qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in respect of the same.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting in so far as it relates to one subsidiary company, is based on the corresponding report of the auditors of such company.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) 
Partner Partner
M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238

Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad
Date: 30th May, 2017 Date: 30th May, 2017
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 Particulars Note As at As at As at
  No. 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15
Assets
Non-Current Assets 
 Property, Plant and Equipment 3.1  20,797.04   22,506.43  23,251.25
 Capital work-in-progress 3.2  1,200.39  887.11  25.42
 Intangible assets 3.3  63.43   83.66  115.11
 Goodwill  123.35  127.78  -
 Financial Assets 3.4 
   -  Investments 3.4.1  0.95 0.25 -
   -  Other �nancial assets 3.4.2 1,251.02  1,202.09  1,060.44
 Deferred Tax Assets (net) 3.5  3,907.86  (783.56) (978.00)
 Other non-current assets 3.6  366.73  522.78 44.97
Total Non-Current Assets   27,710.77  24,546.54  23,519.19
Current Assets
 Inventories 3.7  20,829.14   58,096.92   35,912.40
 Financial Assets 3.8
   -  Investments 3.8.1 -  5.00  180.00
   -  Trade receivables 3.8.2  117,842.05  81,705.64  88,956.50
   -  Cash and cash equivalents 3.8.3  793.46  4,228.83  5,788.88
   -  Bank balances other than above 3.8.4  77.28  2,417.75   3,876.90
   -  Other �nancial assets 3.8.5 142.14   342.38   264.77
 Other current assets 3.9  1,799.76  16,017.07   1,986.55
Total Current Assets   141,483.83   162,813.59   136,966.00
Total Assets  169,194.60  187,360.13   160,485.19
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
 Equity Share Capital 3.10  27,858.20   27,858.20  13,929.10
 Other Equity 3.11  20,282.04  39,169.99   49,130.65
 Non-Controlling Interest  -     2.89  -
Total Equity   48,140.24   67,031.08   63,059.75
LIABILITIES
 Non-Current Liabilities
 Financial Liabilities 3.12
   -  Borrowings 3.12.1  5,535.45  3,425.44  2,497.36
   -  Other �nancial liabilities 3.12.2  31.37  8.03 28.73
 Provisions 3.13  293.39   230.77  186.72
Total Non-Current Liabilities   5,860.21   3,664.24   2,712.81
Current Liabilities
 Financial Liabilities 3.14
   -  Borrowings 3.14.1  82,378.88  67,870.98  57,354.08
   -  Trade Payables 3.14.2  21,194.48   45,357.60   34,555.91
   -  Other �nancial liabilities 3.14.3  10,971.37  2,761.90   2,141.76
 Provisions 3.15 13.02  18.24   16.13
 Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 3.16  136.00   143.08   525.22
 Other Current Liabilities 3.17 500.40   513.01  119.53
Total Current Liabilities  115,194.15   116,664.81   94,712.63
Total Liabilities  121,054.36   120,329.05   97,425.44
Total Equity and Liabilities   169,194.60   187,360.13  160,485.19
Signi�cant Accounting Policies 1

  

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2017 ₹ in Lacs
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For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) (Sunil Jindal)  (Raju Bansal) 
              Partner Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
      M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238 DIN: 00013791  DIN-00007344

   

  (Navneet Kwatra)  (Sachin Goyal) 
Place: Faridabad  C.O.O. & Company Secretary  Chief Financial O�cer
Date: 30th  May, 2017   M. No. 16672



Particulars Note 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 
 No. 
Continuing Operations
Income
Revenue from Operations 3.20  101,962.49  411,830.73
Other Income 3.21  143.69   134.65
Total Income   102,106.18   411,965.38
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 3.22  736.43  81,924.26
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 3.23  50,813.60   311,972.08
Exhibition Cost 3.24  3,229.04   3,080.41
Change in Inventories of �nished goods 3.25  34,260.92   (14,117.08)
& stock-in-trade 
Employee bene�ts expense 3.26  3,587.93   3,801.80
Finance Costs 3.27  11,704.74   8,096.88
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3.28  1,866.02   1,916.30
Other Expenses 3.29  19,524.01   11,061.03
Total    125,722.69   407,735.68
Pro�t before Tax    (23,616.51)  4,229.70
Less: Tax Expense
  -  Current Tax   -     410.70
  -  Deferred Tax   (4,691.41)  (67.73)
  -  MAT Credit   -     (71.41)
  -  Earlier year (s) Tax   -     18.60
Total Tax Expenses   (4,691.41) 290.16
Pro�t for the year from continuing operations    (18,925.10)  3,939.54
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)
Remeasurement of net de�ned bene�t plans   (0.29) 13.58
Total Comprehensive Income for the year   (18,925.39)  3,953.12
Pro�t attributable to
Owners of the Company   (18,925.10) 3,941.69
Non-Controlling Interests  - (2.15)
   (18,925.10)  3,939.54
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to
Owners of the Company   (18,925.39)  3,955.27
Non-Controlling Interests   -   (2.15)
  (18,925.39)  3,953.12 
Earning per share :
(Refer Note No 3.30)
Face Value per Equity Share (in ₹)  10.00  10.00
  -  Basic & Diluted (in ₹)   (6.79) 1.42

Signi�cant Accounting Policies 1

Consolidated Statement of Pro�t and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2017
₹ in Lacs
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For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) (Sunil Jindal)  (Raju Bansal) 
          Partner Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
    M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238 DIN: 00013791  DIN-00007344

   

  (Navneet Kwatra)  (Sachin Goyal) 
Place: Faridabad  C.O.O. & Company Secretary  Chief Financial O�cer
Date: 30th  May, 2017   M. No. 16672



B.   Other Equity 

  Other   
 Reserve and Surplus  Comprehensive
  Income (OCI)

Particulars Security  General Retained Foreign   Remeasurement Total
 Premium Reserve Earnings Currency  of net de�ned 
 Account   Translation  bene�t plans
    Reserve 

As at 1st April, 2015 26607.13 192.96 22,327.94 2.62 - 4,9130.65
Pro�ts for the year  -     -    3,941.69  - - 3,941.69
Other comprehensive income for the year  -     -     -    - 13.58 13.58

Total comprehensive income for the year  -     -     3,941.69 -  13.58   3,955.27

Amount utilised for issuance of bonus shares  (13,929.10)  -     -     -  - (13,929.10)
Transferred during the year - - - 13.17 - 13.17 

As at 31st March, 2016  12,678.03   192.96   26269.63 15.79  13.58   39169.99

Pro�ts for the year  -     -     (18,925.10)  - - (18,925.10)
Other comprehensive income for the year  -     -     -    - (0.29) (0.29)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -     -     (18925.10) -  (0.29)  (18925.39)

Transferred during the year - - - 40.12  40.12
Adjustment on cessation of subsidiary   53.23 (55.91)  (2.68)

As at 31st March, 2017  12,678.03   192.96   7,397.76 - 13.29   20,282.04

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2017

₹ in Lacs

A. Equity Share Capital  ₹ in Lacs 

 As at 1st April, 2015   13,929.10  
 Changes in equity share capital during the year   13,929.10
 As at 31st  March, 2016   27,858.20
 Changes in equity share capital during the year   -
 As at 31st  March, 2017   27,858.20
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For SVP & Associates For Oswal Sunil & Company For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants) (Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 003838N Firm Regn. No. 016520N

(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) (Sunil Jindal)  (Raju Bansal) 
          Partner Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
     M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238 DIN: 00013791  DIN-00007344

   

  (Navneet Kwatra)  (Sachin Goyal) 
Place: Faridabad  C.O.O. & Company Secretary  Chief Financial O�cer
Date: 30th  May, 2017   M. No. 16672



Particulars  For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
   31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
 Net Pro�t before tax (as per Statement of Pro�t and Loss)    (23,616.51)  4,229.70
 Adjustments to reconcile net pro�t to net cash provided by operating activities
 Depreciation and amortisation expense   1,866.02   1,916.30
 Balances w/back (net)   (14.13)  575.55
 Provision for doubtful debts   9,316.96   -
 Interes`t Expenses    11,704.74   8,096.88
 Interest Income    (86.27)  (62.90)
 Loss on sale of Capital Assets   1,140.12   26.02
 Net Gain on Sale of Current Investment   (1.07)  (41.28)
 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation   321.53   622.52
 Property, Plant and Equipment & CWIP written o�   135.69   76.99
 Changes in assets and liabilities
 Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables   (23,862.42)  10,375.80
 Increase/(Decrease) in Other �nancial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions 939.76  836.13
 (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories   37,267.78   (22,184.52)
 (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables   (46,061.47)  6,478.68
 (Increase)/Decrease in Loans, other �nancial assets and other assets   14,308.47   (14,273.68)
 Direct Taxes Paid   (56.67)  (888.95)
 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)    (16,697.47) (4,216.76)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
 Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment [including Capital Advances]  (643.13)  (2,447.01)
 Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment & CWIP   (849.64) 40.86
 Purchase of Investment   (0.70)  (0.25)
 Proceeds from Sale of Investment in Mutual Funds   6.07  216.28
 Adjustment for acquisition of Subsidiary   38.97 (170.47)
 Interest Income   86.27   62.90
 Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B)   (1,362.16)  (2,297.69)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
 Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  24.00   2,435.80
 Repayments of Long Term Borrowings   (1,462.97)  (439.13)
 Net Proceed from Short Term Borrowings   20,500.51   15,880.32
 Repayments of Short Term Borrowings   (2,296.57)  (6,426.44)
 Interest Paid (Net of Interest Received on Fixed Deposits)   (4,481.18)  (7,955.30)
 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities ( C)   12,283.79  3,495.25
 Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)    (5,775.84)  (3,019.20)
 Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year    6,646.58  9,665.78
 Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year   870.74  6,646.58
 Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents   (5,775.84)  (3,019.20)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2017
₹ in Lacs
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(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) (Sunil Jindal)  (Raju Bansal) 
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Signi�cant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2017

1 Signi�cant Accounting Policies

1.1 Principals of Consolidation and Basis of Preparation
The Consolidated financial statements consist of SRS Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary companies (collectively referred to as 

"the Group"). The Consolidated consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a)  The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-by-line basis by 

adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group 

balances and intra-group transactions.

b) Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant & 

equipment, are eliminated in full.

c) In case of foreign subsidiaries, been non-integral operations, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the 

year. All assets & liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation 

is recognised as "Foreign Currency Translation Reserve".

d) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each 

subsidiary.

e) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, and the Group's share of net assets at the time of acquisition of 

shares in the subsidiaries is recognised in the Consolidated consolidated financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case 

may be.

f) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and the carrying amount of its assets less liabilities as 

on the date of disposal is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss being the profit or loss on disposal of investment 

in subsidiary, if any.

g) Non-controlling interest in the net assets of Consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 

separately from liabilities and equity of the Group's shareholders.

h)  Non Controlling Interest’s share of profit / loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income of 

the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Company.

i) The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of 

the Group i.e. 31st March, 2017.

j) Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortised but tested for impairment.

k)  The Consolidated financial statements comprise of the consolidated financial statements of SRS Limited (Parent Company) and the 

following as on 31st March, 2017;

 Name of the Company: SRS Entertainment India Limited

 Nature of holding: Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company

 Proportion of ownership interest: 100%

 Country of incorporation: India

1.2 Basis of Preparation

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred 

to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

 Compliance with Ind AS
These consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017 are the first financials with the comparatives, the Group 

has prepared under Ind AS. For all periods upto and including the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Group prepared its consolidated 

financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together 

with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP’) used for its statutory reporting 

requirement in India immediately before adopting Ind AS. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

and the opening Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2015 have been restated in accordance with Ind AS for comparative information.

 The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements, including the 

preparation of the opening Ind AS Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2015 being the date of transition to Ind AS.
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 Historical Cost Convention
The consolidated  financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

2) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

 Current and non-current classi�cation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. All assets and liabilities have been 

classified as current or non current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule 

III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for and their realisation in 

cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current 

classification of assets and liabilities.

1.3 Use of estimates and judgements
The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are continuously evaluated by the 

Group and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that 

the Group believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised 

in the period in which the results are known/ materialised.

 The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide 

additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

1.4 Revenue Recognition

 i Revenue from sale is recognized when the significant risk and rewards in respect of ownership of the goods are transferred to 
customer.

 ii Revenue from theatre business is recognized on the basis of tickets sold for the period under accounting.

 iii Entertainment tax collection in respect of its multiplex set up in Uttar Pradesh and Bihar has been recognised as revenue on sale 
of tickets, considering the exemption from payment of entertainment tax upto a specified period in terms of the scheme of 
respective state governments.

 iv Income from revenue sharing is recognized in accordance with the term of agreements with parties to operate and manage Multi 
screens / Single screen cinemas.

 v Revenue from Lease Rent, Common Area Maintenance (CAM) Charges and Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis.

 vi Advertisement revenue is recognized as and when advertisement is displayed.

 vii Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. 
Interest income is included under the head "other income" in the statement of profit and loss.

 viii Revenue from services are recognized as they are rendered based on agreement/arrangements with the concerned parties and 
recognised net of service tax (if applicable).

 ix Claims lodged with the insurance companies are accounted on accrual basis to the extent these are measurable and ultimate 

collection is reasonably certain. 

1.5 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 

that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 

other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are incurred.

 Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital 

work-in-progress. 

 Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to 

the Companies Act, 2013 with the exception of the following:

•    Depreciation on leasehold improvements is charged over the period of lease.

•    Depreciation on assets costing  ₹ 5,000 or less is provided @100% over a period of one year.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end 

and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Group has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP 

carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1st April,2015.
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1.6 Intangible Assets
Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are 

recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 

and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Finite-life intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their 

expected useful lives.

 Estimated useful life by major class of finite-life intangible asset is as follows: Computer software - 5 years

 The amortisation period and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year end and 

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

 Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as 

its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1st April, 2015.

1.7 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of Assets. 

Qualifying Asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are 

treated as period cost and charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which it was incurred.

1.8 Impairment of non-�nancial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any property, plant and equipment and intangible 

assets or group of assets, called cash generating units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of 

an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount 

of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

 An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 

amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the 

estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 

the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

1.9 Investments
Investments are stated at fair market value.

1.10 Inventories
Raw materials are valued at lower of Cost and Net Realizable Value.

Finished goods are valued at lower of Cost (raw material and appropriate proportion of overheads) and Net Realizable Value.

Goods held for Resale are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs of inventories are determined on First in First out (‘FIFO’) basis in the ordinary course of business.

Net Realizable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the 

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.11  Foreign Exchange Transaction
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transactions.

 Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of items which are covered by 

forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange 

difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Any profit or loss arising on 

cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts are recognized as income or as expenses for the year.

 Non-monetary items are carried at cost.

 Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized and is reflected 

separately in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

 In respect of foreign branch, the Group has adopted integral foreign operation approach as per Ind AS 21 and accordingly revenue 

items have been converted at date of transaction date. Monetary Assets and Liabilities are converted at the year-end exchange rate. 

Exchange gain or loss arising out of above is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

1.12 Tax expenses
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the 

extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other 

comprehensive income or equity.
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 Current Tax:
Provision for Taxation is ascertained on the basis of assessable profit computed in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 

1961.

 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit:
Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized, as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the 

Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as 

an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Profit and Loss Account and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement under Loans & 

Advances. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to 

the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Group will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period. 

 Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial consolidated 

statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled 

or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 

period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

1.13  Employee bene�ts
Short Term Employee Bene�ts:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and 

the undiscounted amount of such employee benefits are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the 

employee renders the related services. These benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, performance incentives etc.

 De�ned Bene�t Plan
Gratuity and long–term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out at the close of each period. 

The actuarial valuation is done by an Independent Actuary as per projected unit credit method.

 For defined benefit plans, the amount recognised as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss is the cost of 

accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the costs of individual events such as past/future service benefit 

changes and settlements (such events are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss). The amount of net interest 

expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset is charged to ‘Employee benefits 

expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually 

achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the 

plans, are recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and 

Loss.

 De�ned Contribution Plan
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employee provident fund, superannuation scheme, employee pension scheme 

etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the 

 employees. Company’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a government administered fund and 

charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the 

Group has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

1.14 Segment reporting
Identi�cation of segments
As defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources
based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. The accounting principles 
used in the preparation of financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segment and 
are as set out in the significant accounting policies.

  Allocation of common costs
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on reasonable basis.

 Unallocated items
Include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocable to any business segment.

 Segment policies
The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the 
financial statements of the Group as a whole.
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1.15  Leases
Operating lease
As a lessee
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group, as lessee, are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over 
the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the 
Group’s expected inflationary cost increases.

 As a Lessor
Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term 
unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost 
increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

1.16  Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method in accordance with Ind AS 7, whereby a profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 
of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from 
operating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.17  Earning Per Share
Earning Per Share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 
Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

 For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earning Per share, the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders is 
divided by the Weighted Average Number of shares outstanding during the period after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

1.18 Miscellaneous Expenditure
Share issue expenses are adjusted from Securities Premium Account at the time of issue of respective Shares.

 1.19  Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised 
for future operating losses.

 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre tax rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage 
of time is recognised as interest expense.

 Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group 
or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

1.20  Financial Instruments
 a).  Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial 
recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit 
and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are 
attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at
•     amortised cost
•     fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

  Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
The Group has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at cost.

  Other equity investments
All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for 
those equity investments for which the Group has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

  Impairment of �nancial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets 
other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

  The Group measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the 
business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends 
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Annual Report 2016-17 137 | SRS Limited



 b). Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial 

liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and 

loss.

  Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Financial liabilities 

carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss.

  A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

1.21  Derivative �nancial instruments
Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option contracts and cross currency swaps, to hedge its foreign currency 

risks are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair 

value with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when they arise.

2 First-time adoption of Ind AS
The Consolidated financial statements of SRS Limited for the financial year ended March, 31, 2017 have been prepared in accordance 

with Ind AS. 

 Ind AS 101-First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are issued 

and effective for the first Ind AS consolidated financial statements which is for the year ended 31st March, 2017 for the Group, be applied 

retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented. Consequently, in preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the 

Group has availed certain exemptions and complied with the mandatory exceptions provided in Ind AS 101, as explained below. The 

resulting difference in the carrying values of the assets and liabilities as at the transition date between the Ind AS and Previous GAAP 

have been recognised directly in equity (retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity).

 Set out below are the Ind AS 101 optional exemptions availed as applicable and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from 

previous GAAP to Ind AS.

 Optional exemptions availed
 a). Deemed cost

The Group has opted paragraph D7 AA and accordingly considered the carrying value of property, plant and equipments and 

Intangible assets as deemed cost as at the transition date.

 b).  Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
The Group has opted para D14 and D15 and accordingly considered the Previous GAAP carrying amount of Investments as 

deemed cost as at the transition date.

 c).    Designation of previously recognised �nancial instruments
Paragraph D19B of Ind AS 101 gives an option to an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at fair value through 

other comprehensive income (FVOCI) on the basis of the facts and circumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS. The Group has 

opted to apply this exemption for its investment in equity Investments.

 Applicable Mandatory Exceptions
 a). Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the 

same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies).

  - Investment in equity instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL) or FVOCI;

- Investment in debt instruments carried at FVPL; and

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

 b). Classi�cation and measurement of �nancial assets
As required under Ind AS 101, the Group has assessed the classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the 

facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

 Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations
The transition to Ind AS has resulted in changes in the presentation of the financial statements, disclosures  in the notes thereto and 

hence, Previous GAAP information has been regrouped for ease of reconciliation with Ind AS. For the purpose of transition to Ind AS, the 

Group has followed the guidance prescribed in Ind AS 101, First-Time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2015 as 

the transition date and IGAAP as the previous IGAAP. The Regrouped Previous GAAP information is derived from the Consolitdated 

Financial Statements of the Group prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP. An explanation of how the transition from previous 

GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Group’s Balance Sheet  and Statement of Profit and Loss, is set out in Note 2.1. 
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2.1 Reconciliations

2.1.1 Reconciliation of Equity as previously reported under GAAP to Ind AS

Particulars Note  As at   As at
 No.  01-Apr-15   31-Mar-16

Assets  IGAAP  Ind AS IND AS IGAAP Ind AS IND AS
    adjustments    adjustments

Non-Current Assets       
Property, Plant and Equipment   23,251.25   -     23,251.25   22,506.43   -     22,506.43
Capital work-in-progress   25.42   -     25.42   887.11   -     887.11
Intangible assets   115.11   -     115.11   83.66   -     83.66
Goodwill   -     -     -     127.78   -     127.78 
Financial Assets      
  -  Investments   -     -     -     0.25   -     0.25
  -  Other �nancial assets A  1,296.86   (236.42)  1,060.44   1,761.40   (559.31)  1,202.09
Deferred Tax Assets (net) B  (995.29)  17.29   (978.00)  (804.28) 20.72  (783.56)
Other non-current assets   44.97   -     44.97   522.78   -     522.78

Total Non-Current Assets   23,738.32   (219.13)  23,519.19   25,085.13   (538.59)  24,546.54

Current Assets
Inventories   35,912.40   -     35,912.40   58,096.92   -     58,096.92
Financial Assets
  -  Investments   180.00   -     180.00   5.00   -     5.00
  -  Trade receivables C  88,956.50   -     88,956.50   81,707.06   (1.42)  81,705.64
  -  Cash and cash equivalents   5,788.88   -     5,788.88   4,228.83   -     4,228.83
  -  Bank balances other than above   3,876.90   -     3,876.90   2,417.75   -     2,417.75
Other �nancial assets   264.77   -     264.77   342.38   -     342.38
Other current assets D  1,801.70   184.85   1,986.55   15,530.44   486.63   16,017.07

Total Current Assets   136,781.15   184.85   136,966.00   162,328.38   485.21   162,813.59

Total Assets   160,519.47   (34.28)  160,485.19   187,413.51   (53.38)  187,360.13

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital   13,929.10   -     13,929.10   27,858.20   -     27,858.20
Other Equity E  49,164.24   (33.58)  49,130.65   39,222.79   (52.80)  39,169.99
Non-Controlling Interest   -     -     -     2.89   -     2.89

Total Equity   63,093.34   (33.58)  63,059.75   67,083.88   (52.80)  67,031.08

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
  -  Borrowings   2,497.36   -     2,497.36   3,425.44   -     3,425.44
  -  Other �nancial liabilities   28.73   -     28.73   8.03   -     8.03
Provisions   186.72   -     186.72   230.77   -     230.77

Total Non-Current Liabilities   2,712.81   -     2,712.81   3,664.24   -     3,664.24

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
  -  Borrowings   57,354.08   -     57,354.08   67,870.98   -     67,870.98
  -  Trade Payables F  34,555.91   -     34,555.91   45,357.78   (0.18)  45,357.60
  -  Other �nancial liabilities G  2,151.84   (10.08)  2,141.76   2,769.40   (7.50)  2,761.90
Provisions   16.13   -     16.13   18.24   -     18.24
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)   525.22   -     525.22   143.08   -     143.08
Other Current Liabilities H  110.14   9.39   119.53   505.91   7.10   513.01

Total Current Liabilities   94,713.32   (0.69)  94,712.63   116,665.39   (0.58)  116,664.81

Total Liabilities   97,426.13   (0.69)  97,425.44   120,329.63   (0.58)  120,329.05

Total Equity and Liabilities   160,519.47   (34.28)  160,485.19   187,413.51   (53.38)  187,360.13

₹ in Lacs
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2.1.2 Reconciliation statement of Pro�t and Loss as previously reported under GAAP to Ind AS

Particulars Note  For the Year Ended
 No.  31-Mar-16

Income  IGAAP Ind AS IND AS
    adjustments

Revenue from Operations I  411,829.86   0.87   411,830.73 
Other Income J  80.64   54.01   134.65 

Total Income   411,910.50   54.88   411,965.38 

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed   81,924.26   -     81,924.26
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade K  311,976.01   (3.93)  311,972.08
Exhibition Cost   3,080.41   -     3,080.41
Change in Inventories of �nished goods & stock-in-trade   (14,117.08)  -     (14,117.08)
Employee bene�ts expense L  3,788.22   13.58   3,801.80 
Finance Costs M  8,094.29   2.59   8,096.88 
Depreciation and amortisation expense   1,916.30   -     1,916.30
Other Expenses N  10,983.08   77.95   11,061.03

Total   407,645.49   90.19   407,735.68

Pro�t before Tax   4,265.01   (35.31)  4,229.70 

Less: Tax Expense    
  -  Current Tax   410.70   -     410.70 
  -  Deferred Tax   (67.73)  -     (67.73)
  -  MAT Credit   (71.41)  -     (71.41)
  -  Earlier year (s) Tax   18.60   -     18.60

Total Tax Expenses   290.16   -     290.16

Pro�t for the year   3,974.85   (35.31)  3,939.54
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)

Remeasurement of net de�ned bene�t plans O  -     13.58   13.58

Total Comprehensive Income for the year   3,974.85   (21.73)  3,953.12

Pro�t attributable to

Owners of the Company   3,941.69   -     3,941.69
Non-Controlling Interests   (2.15)  -     (2.15)

   3,939.54   -     3,939.54

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to

Owners of the Company   3,955.27   -     3,955.27

Non-Controlling Interests   (2.15)  -     (2.15)

   3,953.12   -     3,953.12

₹ in Lacs
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Notes to the Reconciliations:

A Financial Assets-Loans
Adjustments to security deposits receivables reflect discounted value of deferred consideration receivable under Ind AS as compared 

to undiscounted value of consideration under IGAAP.

B Deferred Tax Assets (net)
Adjustments to deferred tax assets reflect tax implications of other Ind AS adjustments through statement of profit and loss as 

compared to values under previous IGAAP.

C Trade Receivables
Adjustments to trade receivables include prior period items which have been made in accordance with Ind AS 8 for the above 

mentioned line items.

D Other Current Assets
Adjustments to other current assets reflect transfer of deferred security deposits receivables transferred to prepaid expenses in 

accordance with Ind AS.

E Other Equity
Adjustments to retained earnings and other comprehensive income have been made in accordance with Ind AS for the above 

mentioned line items.

In addition, as per Ind AS 19, actuarial gain and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income as compared to being recognized 

in the statement  of profit and loss under IGAAP.

F Trade Payables
Adjustments to trade payables include prior period items which have been made in accordance with Ind AS 8 for the above mentioned 

line items.

G Other Financial Liabilities
Adjustments to security deposits payables reflect discounted value of deferred consideration payable under Ind AS as compared to 

undiscounted value of consideration under IGAAP.

H Other Current Liabilities
Adjustments to other current liabilities reflect transfer of undiscounted value of security deposits payables transferred to advance 

received from customers in accordance with Ind AS.

I Revenue from operations
Adjustments to lease rent income and trademark/franchise fee reflect recognition of income on deferred security deposit payable, 

calculated under Ind AS as compared to previous IGAAP.

J Other Income
Adjustments to other income include recognition of interest income on present value of security deposits receivable, calculated under 

Ind AS as compared to previous IGAAP.

K Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Adjustments to purchases of stock-in-trade include prior period items which have been made in accordance with Ind AS 8 for the above 

mentioned line items.

L Employee bene�ts expense
As per Ind AS 19, actuarial gain and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income as compared to being recognized in the 

statement  of profit and loss under IGAAP.

M Finance Costs
Adjustments to finance costs include accrual of interest expense on present value of security deposits payable, calculated under Ind AS 

as compared to previous IGAAP.

N Other Expenses
Adjustments to other expenses include recognition of lease rent expenses on deferred value of security deposits receivables, calculated 

under Ind AS as compared to previous IGAAP.

In addition, adjustments to security and housekeeping expenses have been made for prior period items which have been made in 

accordance with Ind AS 8.

O Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)
As per Ind AS 19, actuarial gain and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income as compared to being recognized in the 

statement  of profit and loss under IGAAP.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.2 Capital work-in-progress

3.1  Property, Plant and Equipment 

   Gross Carrying Value  Depreciation  Net Carrying Value 

Description As at Additions Sale /  Foreign  As at Upto  for the year on Sale / Foreign As at As at As at
 01-Apr-16  Adjustment Currency 31-Mar-17 01-Apr-16  Adjustment Currency 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
    Translation     Translation
    Reserve     Reserve

Land  2,461.26   -     -    -   2,461.26   -     -     -  -    -     2,461.26   2,461.26

Buildings  7,097.02   -     158.42  -    6,938.60   769.08   112.02   22.56 -    858.54   6,080.06   6,327.94

Leasehold mprovements  11,120.59   275.24   114.79  -   11,281.04   3,866.48   623.74   30.35   -   4,459.87   6,821.17   7,254.11

Temporary Structure  2.79   -     2.79  -    -     2.79   -     2.79  -    -     -     -

Plant & Machinery  6,740.82   150.68   436.71  -    6,454.79   2,770.06   561.14   386.59  -    2,944.61   3,510.18   3,970.76

O�ce Equipment  1,409.15   35.21   462.38  -    981.98   1,044.76   110.69   433.13  -   722.32   259.66   364.39

Furniture & Fittings  2,991.37   82.75   238.87  -   2,835.25   1,386.59   296.84   188.19  -    1,495.24   1,340.01   1,604.78

Computers  645.24   13.27   125.25  -   533.26   499.18   61.37   116.26   -   444.29   88.97   146.06

Vehicles  641.04   0.51   183.81  -    457.74   263.91   75.09   116.99  -    222.01   235.73   377.13

TOTAL  33,109.28   557.66   1,723.02  -   31,943.92   10,602.85   1,840.89   1,296.86  -   11,146.88   20,797.04   22,506.43

Previous Year  32,028.88   1,254.31   176.84   2.93   33,109.28   8,777.63   1,859.52   34.35   0.05   10,602.85  22,506.43  

₹ in Lacs

Description  As at  Additions*   Transferred to  As at
  01-Apr-16  Property, Plant and  31-Mar-17
   Equipment   
    

Capital work-in-progress 887.11 827.83 514.55 1,200.39

TOTAL  887.11   827.83   514.55  1,200.39

Previous Year 25.42 1,634.94 773.25 887.11

₹ in Lacs
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3.3 Intangible Assets

   Gross Carrying Value  Amortization Net Carrying Value 

Description As at Additions Sale /  Foreign  As at Upto  for the year on Sale / Foreign As at As at As at
 01-Apr-16  Adjustment Currency 31-Mar-17 01-Apr-16  Adjustment Currency 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
    Translation     Translation
    Reserve     Reserve

Computer Software
(Bought Out)  367.15   4.91   215.05  -  157.01   283.49   25.14   215.05  -  93.58   63.43   83.66 

TOTAL  367.15   4.91   215.05  -  157.01   283.49   25.14   215.05  -  93.58   63.43   83.66 

Previous Year  340.58   26.57   -    -  367.15   225.47   56.79   (1.23) -  283.49   83.66  

₹ in Lacs

*CWIP includes Preoperative Expenses which are as follows :

   For the year ended 

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Salary & Related Expenses   9.61   5.36 

Electricity and Water Expenses  9.17   3.85 

House Keeping, Security and CAM Charges  13.20   11.66 

Rent Expenses  2.27   -   

Travelling and Conveyance  4.12   3.64 

Other Expenses  4.00   1.89 

Total for the Year  42.37   26.40 

Add: Brought forward from Previous Year  60.58   8.50 

Grand Total  102.95   34.90 

Less: Allocated to Property, Plant and Equipment  20.20   2.99 

Balance Carried Forward  82.75   31.91 

₹ in Lacs
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Notes forming part of the Consolitdated Fincancial Statements

3.4 Financial Assets

3.4.1 Investments

3.4.2 Other �nancial assets

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Security Deposits  1,235.78   1,042.38   1,016.53
Other Bank Balances-Restricted Cash
-  Fixed Deposits pledged with bank for 15.24   159.71   43.91 
    bank guarantees given to authorities
    (Refer note no. 3.8.4.1)  

Total   1,251.02   1,202.09   1,060.44 

₹ in Lacs

3.5 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Deferred Tax Assets
Business losses carried forward   1,372.57   69.09   -   
Provision for Retirement Bene�ts  168.63   114.08   68.95 
Provision for doubtful debts   3,228.15   -     -   
Others   75.24   56.17   36.92 

Total Deferred Tax Assets (A)   4,844.59   239.34   105.87 

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Fixed Assets  1,606.98   1,693.15   1,682.62 
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (B)   1,606.98   1,693.15   1,682.62 

MAT Credit Entitlement (C)   670.25   670.25   598.75 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (A-B+C)  3,907.86   (783.56)  (978.00)

₹ in Lacs

3.6 Other non-current assets

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Capital Advances   192.25   390.68   32.45 
Income Tax Recoverable (Refer note no. 3.18)  174.48   120.00   -   
Prepaid Expenses  -     12.10   12.52 

Total  366.73   522.78   44.97 

₹ in Lacs
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Particulars No. of Shares/ As at No. of Shares/ As at No. of Shares/ As at
 Units 31-Mar-17 Units 31-Mar-16 Units 01-Apr-15

Other Investment
Investment in National Savings  -     0.95  -  0.25     -   -   
Certi�cates (NSC)**

Total  -     0.95  -  0.25  -   -   

Aggregate Value of Unquoted
Investments   0.95    0.25    -   

** Investment in government securities are unquoted and at amortised cost 

₹ in Lacs



3.7 Inventories

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

(As Veri�ed, Valued and Certi�ed by the Management)
Raw Materials *  61.59   9,675.82   4,617.49
Finished Goods#  -     6,116.02   11,057.53
Stock in Trade@  20,767.55   42,305.08   20,237.38

Total  20,829.14   58,096.92   35,912.40

₹ in Lacs

* Raw Materials for ₹ Nil (PY ₹ 5,776.17 lacs) as on 31st March 2017 are lying with third parties.

# Finished Goods for ₹ Nil (PY ₹ 101.49 lacs) as on 31st  March 2017 are lying with third parties.

'@ Stock in Trade for ₹ 43.43 lacs (PY ₹ 21274.32 lacs) as on 31st  March 2017 is lying with third parties.

'@ Stock in Trade includes Goods in Transit for ₹ Nil (PY1.11 lacs).

3.8 Financial Assets
3.8.1 Investments

   As at

  Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

 Face Value Units Amount Units Amount Units Amount

Investment in Mutual Funds
(Quoted, valued at lower of
cost and fair value)

UNION KBC Capital Protection
Oriented Fund - Regular Growth 10  -     -     50,000   5.00   1,799,990   180.00 
(Kept as margin money against LC)

Total   -     -     50,000   5.00   1,799,990   180.00

Aggregate Book Value of
Quoted Investments      5.00    180.00

₹ in Lacs

3.8.2 Trade Receivables

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Trade receivables outstanding for a
period exceeding six months from the
date they are due for payment :
  - Secured, Considered Good  -     0.28   0.14 
  -  Unsecured, Considered Good  58,982.61   90.64   646.95 
  -  Doubtful  9,316.96   -     -   

Other Trade Receivables
  - Secured, Considered Good  0.52   5.10   8.20 
  - Unsecured, Considered Good  58,858.92   81,609.62   88,301.21

Total   127,159.01   81,705.64   88,956.50

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  9,316.96   -     -

Total  117,842.05   81,705.64   88,956.50

₹ in Lacs
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 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Cash in Hand  561.03   1,460.61   1,279.36
Balances with banks
  -  in Current Accounts   232.43   1,009.44   1,366.82
  -  in Deposit Accounts (See note 3.8.4.1)  -     1,758.77   3,142.69
  -  in EEFC Account -    0.01  0.01 

Total  793.46   4,228.83   5,788.88

₹ in Lacs3.8.3 Cash and cash equivalents

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Other Bank Balances
  -  in Deposit Accounts (See note 3.8.4.1)  74.11   2,414.58   3,871.78
  -  in Earmarked Accounts
  -  Share Application Money received for 1.79   1.79   3.74
  -  Allotment of Securities due for refund   
  -  Unclaimed Dividend Account  1.38   1.38   1.38

Total   77.28   2,417.75   3,876.90

3.8.4 Bank balances other than above
₹ in Lacs

3.8.4.1

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

FDR Balances with Bank Kept as margin Money
 against guarantees / LC /
 Pledged with Sales Tax Authorities 

Deposit Account with Bank  
  -  Upto 3  months maturity from date of deposit  -     1,758.77
  -  Upto 12 months maturity from date of deposit  -     2,392.41
  -  Maturity more than 12 months but within one year from the reporting date  74.11   22.17

Shown as Current Assets  74.11   4,173.35

  -  Maturity more than 12 months but after one year from the reporting date 9.49 153.96

Shown as Non-Current Assets 9.49 153.96

Total  83.60   4,327.31

₹ in Lacs
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 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Security Deposits   103.88   212.45   96.45 
Advances to Employees  20.19   15.63   13.24 
Interest Accrued but not Due  18.07   90.32   114.64 
Other Receivables  -     23.98   40.44 

Total   142.14   342.38   264.77 

3.8.5 Other �nancial assets ₹ in Lacs



3.9 Other current assets

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Entertainment Tax and VAT Recoverable  772.88   658.36   555.52 
TDS Receivable  35.86   -     -   
Prepaid Expenses  463.18   743.42   514.09 
Advances to Suppliers
 To Related Parties (refer note no. 3.38)  11.57   17.88   -  
 To Others  346.87   14,494.11   832.98 

Advances recoverable
 From Others  120.28   103.30   76.26 
 From related parties  49.12   -     7.70 

Total  1,799.76   16,017.07   1,986.55 

3.10.1 The rights, preference and restrictions attached to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and 

the repayment of capital are as under : 

 Equity Shares
The equity shares have a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and 

pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of 

the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 

shares held by the shareholders.

 During the FY 2015-16, the Company had issued 13,92,91,013 number of Bonus Shares to the existing equity shareholders in the 

ratio of 1:1 on 29th June, 2015.   

3.10 Equity Share Capital

   As at

  Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

 Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
  (₹ In lacs)  (₹ In lacs)  (₹ In lacs)

Authorised
Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each  280,000,000   28,000.00   280,000,000   28,000.00   150,000,000   15,000.00

Total  280,000,000   28,000.00   280,000,000   28,000.00   150,000,000   15,000.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each
Opening  278,582,026   27,858.20   139,291,013   13,929.10   139,291,013   13,929.10
Additions  -     -     139,291,013   13,929.10   -     -
Deductions  -     -     -     -     -     -
Closing  278,582,026   27,858.20   278,582,026   27,858.20   139,291,013   13,929.10

Total  278,582,026   27,858.20   278,582,026   27,858.20   139,291,013   13,929.10

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs
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3.10.2 Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company  

   As at

Name of Shareholders 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

 No. of Shares % of  No. of Shares % of No. of Shares % of 
 held Holding  held  Holding  held Holding

BTL HOLDING COMPANY LTD 128,637,542   46.18  153,471,810  55.09 76,735,905  55.09

₹ in Lacs

3.11 Other Equity

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

(A)  Security Premium Account
 Opening Balance  12,678.03   26,607.13   26,607.13
 Add: Addition during the year - -   -
 Less: Amount utilised for issuance of bonus shares  -  13,929.10   -

Closing Balance  12,678.03   12,678.03   26,607.13

(B)  General Reserve
 Opening Balance  192.96   192.96   192.96
 Add: Transfer during the year -     -     -

Closing Balance 192.96   192.96   192.96

(C)  Surplus in Statement of Pro�t & Loss
 Opening Balance  26,283.21   22,327.94   -
 Add: Net Pro�t for the current year  (18,925.39)  3,955.27   -
 Less: Adjustment on cessation of subsidiary  (53.23)  -     -

Closing Balance  7,411.05   26,283.21   22,327.94

(D)  Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
 Opening Balance  15.79   2.62   -
 Add : Transfer during the year  40.12   13.17   2.62
 Add/(Less): Adjustment on cessation of subsidiary   55.91   -     -

Closing Balance  -     15.79   2.62

Total   20,282.04   39,169.99   49,130.65

₹ in Lacs

3.12 Financial Liabilities-Non Current
3.12.1 Borrowings   

 As at
Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Secured
Term Loan (refer note no. 3.12.1.1)
  -    From Bank 62.69 268.87 501.27
  -    From Other Parties 4.44  -     -
   67.13   268.87   501.27
Unsecured (refer note no. 3.12.1.2)
-Deferred Credit Payment  -     -     2.32
-Public Deposits  5,468.32   1,772.28   1,993.77
-Inter Corporate Deposits  -     1,384.29   -
   5,468.32   3,156.57   1,996.09 
Total  5,535.45   3,425.44   2,497.36

₹ in Lacs
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3.12.1.2 The requisite particulars in respect of unsecured borrowings are as under:

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016 Terms of Repayment 

Public Deposits *   
Balance Outstanding 8,079.47   9,492.70 Repayable in 2017-18
Current Maturity  2,611.15   7,720.42 and 2018-19.
Non-Current Maturity  5,468.32   1,772.28

Others
Balance Outstanding  -     1,384.29 Repayable within 48 
Current Maturity  -     - monthly installments.
Non-Current Maturity  -     1,384.29

Summary    
Balance Outstanding  8,079.47   9,492.70
Current Maturity  2,611.15   7,720.42
Non-Current Maturity  5,468.32   1,772.28

₹ in Lacs

* Includes Rs. 1647.69 lacs (PY Rs. 2756.26 lacs) received from Shareholders of the Company.    

3.12.1.1 The requisite particulars in respect of secured borrowings  are as under:   

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st Particulars of  Terms of 
 March 2017 Mar 2016 security / guarantees / default Repayment

State Bank of India -   Secured against �rst pari pasu charge on all the �xed assets of the Company,
Corporate Loan    including Equitable Mortgage of land and building at site no 4, City Center,
Balance Outstanding  474.99  474.99 Sector-12 Faridabad with plot area measuring 2,136.86 sq. mtr. and
Current Maturity  474.99  299.99 Multiplex-cum Shopping Mall constructed thereon in the name of the
Non-Current Maturity  -   175.00 Company and further secured by �rst pari passu charge on ((a) 8 acres of
   land at Prithla in the name of SPS Buildcon Ltd. (merged with SRS Retreat
   Services Ltd.)  (b) 6.84 acres of land at Prithla in the name of SRS Retreat
   Services Ltd. (c) Extension of charge on current assets. The Facility is further
   secured by personal guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of
   SRS Retreat Services Ltd, BTL Holding Company Limited {(formerly known
   as BTL Investments & Securities Limited) (SRS Holdings India Ltd merged with
   BTL Investments & Securities Limited w.e.f 18.07.2013)}, SRS Knowledge &
   Technologies Pvt. Ltd.(Formerly known as SRS Professional Services Ltd.), and
   Latest IT Solutions Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS IT Solutions Ltd.

   Applicable rate of interest is base rate + 3.25 % subject to change from
   time to time.

Vehicle Loan from      Total 8 (PY 16) number
Banks      of vehicle loan repayable  
Balance Outstanding  93.85   141.18 Secured against hypothecation of speci�ed vehicles of the Company. within 36 - 48 equal
Current Maturity  31.16   47.31    monthly installments.
Non-Current Maturity  62.69   93.87 Applicable rate of interest is 10.10 % to 14 % . 

Summary
Balance Outstanding  568.84   616.17
Current Maturity  506.15   347.30
Non-Current Maturity  62.69   268.87

Term Loan From      Total 1 ( PY Nil) number
Other Parties      of vehicle loan repayable
Vehicle Loan   Secured against hypothecation of speci�ed vehicles of the Company.  within 36 equal  monthly  
Balance Outstanding  6.29   - Applicable rate of interest is 10.60 %.  installments.
Current Maturity  1.86  -     
Non-Current Maturity  4.44   -    

₹ in Lacs

40 equal monthly 
installments of ₹ 25.00 
Lacs commencing from 
July 31, 2014.
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3.12.1.3 The aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by directors is ₹  474.99 lacs (PY ₹ 474.99 lacs)

3.12.1.4  Repayment delay on Long-Term Borrowings from Banks* 

* Refer Note No. 3.14.1.1   

* In consortium with State Bank of India, Oriental Bank of Commerce, Union Bank of India and Syndicate Bank is Secured against hypothecation of stocks & book debts and equitable mortgage 

of speci�c properties and Personal guarantee of Directors and Corporate guarantee of SRS Retreat Services Ltd., BTL Holding Company Limited {(formerly known as BTL Investments and Securities 

Limited)(SRS Holdings India Ltd merged with BTL Holding Company Limited w.e.f 18.07.2013)}, SRS Knowledge & Technologies Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS Professional Services Ltd.), and 

Latest IT Solutions Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS IT Solutions Pvt. Ltd.)

@  Gold Loan (Metal) from Bank is secured against Letter of Credit and FDR.

  *The aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by directors is ₹ 80217.32 lacs (PY ₹ 57969.42 lacs)

3.12.2 Other Financial Liabilities

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Security Deposits Received 31.37   8.03   28.73

Total 31.37   8.03   28.73

₹ in Lacs

3.13 Provisions

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Provision for Employee Bene�ts *
  -    Gratuity (funded)  226.82   168.81   132.75
  -    Leave Encashment (un-funded)  66.57   61.96   53.97

Total  293.39   230.77   186.72

* Also refer note no. 3.36.

₹ in Lacs

 Name of the Bank  Nature of Borrowing Principal Amount Interest Amount

 State Bank of India  Corporate Loan  474.99   57.22 

₹ in Lacs
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3.14 Financial Liabilities-Current
3.14.1 Short-Term Borrowings

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Loan Repayable on Demand from Bank
  -    Cash Credit *  70,217.32   47,969.42   40,598.68 
  -    Demand Loan *  10,000.00   10,000.00   10,475.00
  -    Gold Loan @  -     1,952.49   -

  80,217.32   59,921.91   51,073.68 

Loans from Corporate bodies  0.49   228.65   -

    0.49   228.65   -

Fixed Deposit Scheme
  -    Public Deposit  2,161.07   7,720.42   6,280.40

   2,161.07   7,720.42   6,280.40

Total  82,378.88   67,870.98   57,354.08

₹ in Lacs



3.14.1.1  Repayment delay in Short-Term Borrowings from Banks   

Name of the Bank  Nature of Borrowing  Principal Amount  Interest Amount

State Bank of India  Cash Credits  36,636.94   3,359.02
State Bank of India  Demand Loan  10,000.00   1,077.37
Bank of India  Cash Credits  17,114.10   1,550.91
Union Bank of India  Cash Credits  9,708.40   1,084.16
Oriental Bank of Commerce  Cash Credits  5,217.22   423.07
Syndicate Bank  Cash Credits  993.30   124.29

Total   79,669.96   7,618.82

₹ in Lacs 

Cash Credit facilities and corporate loans from consortium of banks, the aggregate outstanding (including interest) of which amounts to Rs. 87288.78 lacs and Rs. 532.21 
lacs respectively as on 31st  March, 2017, are irregular and classi�ed as NPA mainly due to non servicing of interest and related charges. The State Bank of India has initiated 
recovery procedure by opening a Trust and Retention Account (TRA) and recovered amounting to Rs. 1,282.52 lacs during the period from which the accounts have become NPA 
upto 31st March, 2017 and from the outstanding amount reported above, Rs. 87.75 lacs has been recovered subsequently up to the date of 30th May, 2017. 
However, the Company has submitted the request for restructuring of accounts vide letter dated 4th July 2016 followed by reference letter dated 18th May, 2017 and deliberations 
in various consortium forums inter-alia including meeting of Joint Lender Forum (JLF) with the sole objective of �nding a solution aimed at revival.

3.14.2 Trade Payables

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Dues of MSMEs* -     -     -
Dues of other than MSMEs  21,194.48   45,357.60   34,555.91

Total  21,194.48   45,357.60   34,555.91

₹ in Lacs

3.14.3 Other Financial Liabilities

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 508.01   360.95  355.35
(Refer note no. 3.14.3.1)  
Unpaid matured  deposits # 450.08 - -
Interest Accrued but not due 522.75  495.23  338.08
Interest Accrued & due  7,128.68   -  -
Unpaid interest on unpaid matured  deposits # 156.17 - -
Share Application Money received  1.79   1.79  3.74
for Allotment of Securities due
for refund and interest accrued thereon* 
Unclaimed Dividend *    1.38   1.38  1.38
Creditors for Capital Expenditure  126.97   92.68  38.89
Creditors for Revenue Expenditure  1,522.49   1,251.92  1,004.91
Other Payable
  -    Security Deposits Received  52.97   20.30  6.76
  -    Retention Money  61.87   112.73  82.15
  -    Employees  438.21   424.92   310.50

Total  10,971.37  2,761.90   2,141.76

₹ in Lacs

* The above information as required to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such 
parties have been identi�ed on the basis of information available with the company. Further, no interest has been paid during the year and payable as on 31st  March 
2017, 31st  March 2016 and 1st  April 2015 to such parties. 
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 * Do not include any amounts, due and outstanding, to be credited to Investors’ Education and Protection Fund.
 # Due to liquidity crunch in the Company, the Company was not able to maintain liquid assets for the year ended 31st March, 2017 as required under Rule 13 of the Companies (Acceptance 
of Deposits) Rules, 2014. The Company has been regular in repayment of Principal Amounts till mid of April, 2016. But after that there is a default in repayment of principal amounts.

The Company had �led an application with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for extension of time for repayment of Deposits and NCLT has passed the order on 20th October, 2016 
granting extension of time to the Company for repayment of Deposits. The NCLT has granted further extension vide its order dated 2nd February, 2017 for interest payments by 31st March, 
2017 and Principal payments by 30th June, 2017 in accordance with its earlier Order dated 20th October, 2016. The payments due are in process.

 The Company has re-paid full principal amount in few cases & under Hardship Category also. The Management is making its best e�orts for arranging funds for payment of interest/principal 
of deposits at the earliest.



3.14.3.1 Current Maturity of Long Term Debts

3.15 Provisions

3.16 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Provision for Employee Bene�ts *
  -    Gratuity (funded)  9.87   14.05   12.32
  -    Leave Encashment (un-funded)  3.15   4.19   3.81

Total  13.02   18.24   16.13

₹ in Lacs

  As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Secured
Term Loan
  -    From Bank  506.15   360.95
  -    From Other Parties 1.86   -

Total  508.01   360.95

₹ in Lacs

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

  -    Provision for Income Tax (net of advance tax) 136.00   143.08   525.22

Total 136.00   143.08  525.22

₹ in Lacs

3.17 Other Current Liabilities

 As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

  -    Advances received from customers   311.43   91.50   34.70
  -    Statutory dues  188.97   421.51   84.83

Total  500.40   513.01   119.53

₹ in Lacs

3.18 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

  As at

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Contingent Liabilities
  -    Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of Legal Matters*  1,295.27   1,271.11
  -    Pending Export Obligations (duty forgone)   0.17   0.17

Commitments
  -    Capital Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account   563.99   962.65
and not provided for#"

₹ in Lacs

* Also refer note no. 3.36.

* An amount of Rs.174.48 Lacs (PY Rs. 120 Lacs) deposited by the Company under protest has been shown as Income Tax Recoverable under Long Term Loans & Advances (refer Note No.3.6) and 

has not been adjusted above.

# The above amount is net of capital advances amounting to Rs. 53.95 lacs (PY Rs. 64.06 lacs) (refer note no. 3.6).
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3.19 Derivative Instruments and Hedged/ Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure  

3.19.1 All derivative contracts entered into by the Company are for hedging purposes.   

3.19.3 Particulars for Hedged Foreign Currency Exposure: 

   As at   

  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 

Particulars Currency Foreign ₹ in Lacs Foreign ₹ in Lacs
  Currency in Lacs   Currency in Lacs

Foreign Currency Receivables USD  -     -     5.00   331.66

3.19.2 Forward Contract outstanding as at Balance Sheet date 

 Amount Outstanding as at 

Currency  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 Buy / Sell Purpose

USD   -     5  Sell Hedging

3.19.4 Foreign Currency Exposure that are not hedged by derivative transactions or otherwise:

   As at   

  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 

Particulars Currency Foreign ₹ in Lacs Foreign ₹ in Lacs
  Currency in Lacs   Currency in Lacs

Foreign Currency Receivables USD  195.41   12,670.38   203.20   13,478.64

Foreign Currency Receivables AED  1,016.17   17,948.71   1,137.57   20,794.12

Foreign Currency Payables AED  982.74   17,354.27   1,094.38   19,717.26
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3.20 Revenue from Operations

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

     Sale of products
     -   Gold & Jewellery   68,077.86  3,39,021.17
     -   Food & Beverages   3,427.20  3,906.28
     -   Retail   20,675.59   22,048.91
     -   Wholesale   480.38   38,500.80
     -   Income from sale of tickets of �lms *   8,319.21   7,455.66

{(net of entertainment and show tax of ₹ 2,416.35 Lacs  1,00,980.24   4,10,932.82 
(Previous year ₹ 2,701.46 Lacs)} 

Sale of services
     -   Lease Rent Income   187.33   177.29
     -   Common Area Maintenance Charges   40.95   26.82
     -   Advertisement Income   658.39   595.06
     -   Commission Income   16.89   33.52
     -   Trademark / Franchise Fee   5.62   23.55
     -   Royalty Fees   18.00   7.11
     -   Management Fees   29.89   34.56

   957.07   897.91

Other operating revenues
     -   Duty Drawback   25.18   -

  25.18   -

Total   1,01,962.49   4,11,830.73

₹ in Lacs

3.21 Other Income

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Interest Income   86.27   60.96
Net Gain on Sale of Current Investment   1.07   41.28
Other Non-Operating Income  
      -   Pro�t on Future/Forward-Commodity & Currency   26.01   5.54
      -   Balances w/back (net)    14.13   -
      -   Sale of Scrap   2.01   17.49
      -   Miscellaneous Income   14.20   9.38

Total    143.69   134.65

₹ in Lacs

3.22 Cost of materials consumed

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Gold Bar  -     80,844.50
Semi Precious Stone  -     20.41
Food & Beverages  736.43   1,059.35

Total   736.43   81,924.26

₹ in Lacs

*  Income from sale of tickets of �lms includes Entertainment Tax of ₹ 623.17 lacs (PY ₹ 173.88 lacs) and ₹ 88.39 lacs (PY ₹ 14.74 lacs) for which the company is exempted for deposition in

terms of the scheme of U.P.  State Government and Bihar State Government, respectively.
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3.23 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Gold & Jewellery  31,926.39   257,022.51
Food & Beverages  202.51   247.70
Retail  16,680.07   18,917.61
Wholesale  2,004.63   35,784.26

Total   50,813.60   311,972.08

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs

3.24 Exhibition Cost

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

  Distributor Share & Commission Charges   3,227.75   3,080.41
 Other Exhibition Expenses   1.29   -

Total   3,229.04   3,080.41

3.25 Change in Inventories of �nished goods & stock-in-trade

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Closing Stock 
Finished Goods   -     6,116.02
Stock in Trade   20,767.55   39,297.16
Impact of foreign currency translation resesrve - (1.19)
Conversion of Raw Material into Stock in Trade   (9,615.29)  -

Opening Stock
Finished Goods   6,116.02   11,057.53
Stock in Trade   39,297.16   20,237.38

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories  34,260.92   (14,117.08)

3.25.1 Details of Closing Stock

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Finished Goods
Gold & Jewellery  -     6,116.02

   -     6,116.02

Stock in Trade
Gold & Jewellery  18,725.36   36,412.66
Retail   2,042.19   2,884.50

   20,767.55   39,297.16

Total   20,767.55   45,413.18 
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3.26 Employee bene�ts expense

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

  Salaries, Wages and Bonus   3,077.24   3,285.78
 Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Fund   317.37   293.37
 Sta� Welfare Expenses   107.45   154.51
 Provision for Employees Bene�ts (Refer note no. 3.36)   85.87   68.14

Total   3,587.93   3,801.80

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs

3.27 Finance Costs

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

 Interest on:
     -   Term Loans   79.58   88.08
     -   Cash Credit/Overdraft   10,140.32   6,035.63
     -   Gold Loans   6.97   61.22
     -   Fixed Deposits   1,032.06   1,200.58
     -   Unsecured Loans   29.62   13.24
     -   Others   5.78   0.54
Bank Charges and Other Financial Expenses   493.83   1,075.31

   11,788.16   8,474.60
Less : Interest Income on FDR kept as margin money / guarantee out of
Cash Credit accounts   83.42   377.72 

Total   11,704.74   8,096.88 

3.28 Depreciation and amortization expense

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Depreciation  1,840.88   1,860.04
Amortization  25.14   56.26

Total   1,866.02   1,916.30
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3.29 Other Expenses

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

 Jobwork Charges   -     217.09
 Security & House Keeping   1,571.76   1,522.99
 Packaging Expenses   20.94   113.81
Fuel Charges   27.98   64.01
 Balances w/o� (net)   -     575.55
 Consumable Expenses   9.45   20.47
 Freight & Cartage   29.87   38.40
 Other Operational Expenses   28.52   110.18
 Lease Rent Paid   4,140.05   4,108.27
 Electricity & Water Expenses   1,276.02   1,320.71
 Insurance Expenses   57.47   85.48
 Repairs and Maintenance:
 -Plant & Machinery   200.87   209.18
 -Building   32.48   26.61
 -Others   119.52   158.44
Rates & Taxes   194.90   962.34
 Payment to Auditors (Refer note no. 3.29.1)   17.81   28.58
 Legal & Professional Expenses   154.90   102.00
 Directors' Sitting Fee   7.25   9.22
 Miscellaneous Expenses   220.12   244.99
 Property, Plant and Equipment & CWIP written o�   135.69   76.99
 Loss on sale of Capital Assets   1,140.12   26.02
 Provision for doubtful debts   9,316.96   -
 Donation   0.02   3.27
 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note no. 3.29.2)   80.30   95.25
 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation   258.93   22.33
 Hedging Expenses   -     0.82
 Travelling & Conveyance Expenses   112.48   172.21
 Selling & Distribution Expenses   147.89   173.85
 Commission & Service Charges   13.86   190.13
 Advertisement   154.78   326.42
 Prior Period Expenses   -     15.59
 Service Tax Paid on Recipient Basis   53.07   39.83

Total   19,524.01   11,061.03

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs3.29.1 Payment to Auditors*

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

 Payment to Auditors 
  - As Auditors   9.75   22.81
 - For Certi�cation   5.18   5.14
 - For Taxation Matters   2.30   -
 - For Reimbursement of Expenses   0.58   0.63 

Total    17.81   28.58

*Includes Service Tax
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* Expense incurred through SRS Social Welfare Association registered under section 80 G of Income Tax Act.

3.29.2 Detail of CSR Expenditure (for the year ended 31st Mar 2017)
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net pro�t for 
the immediately preceding three �nancial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. As per Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013, the areas 
for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, 
environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural development projects, etc. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act.

 (a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year      :    Rs. 80,20,212 /-

 (b) Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars In Cash/Bank Yet to be incurred Total

(i)   Construction / acquisition of any asset  -     -     -

(ii)  On purpose other than above (i) above *  8,030,000   -     8,030,000

Amount In ₹ 
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3.30 “Earning per Share” computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33 “Earnings Per Share”

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

a)  Numerator: 
 Net Pro�t after taxation as per Statement of Pro�t & Loss  (18,925.39)  3,953.12

b) Denominator :
 No. of Shares at the beginning of the year  278,582,026   278,582,026
 Total Equity Share outstanding at the end of the year  278,582,026   278,582,026
 Weighted average no. of equity shares for the year  278,582,026   278,582,026
 Weighted average no. of diluted equity shares for the year  278,582,026   278,582,026

c)  Face Value per share (in ₹) 10 10

d) Earning per Share (EPS):
 -    Basic (in ₹)  (6.79)  1.42
 -    Diluted (in ₹)  (6.79)  1.42

₹ in Lacs

3.32 Value of Import on CIF Basis (On accrual basis)    

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Materials  -     21,953.03

Total   -     21,953.03

₹ in Lacs

3.31 Value of Imported and Indigenous Material Consumed    

 For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

 ₹ in Lacs % ₹ in Lacs %

Imported  -     -     21,952.18   26.80
Indigenous  648.09   100.00   59,957.54   73.20

Total  648.09   100.00   81,909.72   100.00

₹ in Lacs



3.33 Earning in Foreign Exchange (on accrual basis) 

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

FOB value of exports  301.03   51,256.87

Total   301.03   51,256.87

₹ in Lacs

3.34 Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)

  For the year ended

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Bank charges and other �nancial expenses  0.49   5.91
Insurance Expenses  -     0.51
Lease Rent Paid  -     2.57
Legal & Professional Expenses  -     0.15
Miscellaneous Expenses  -     0.05
Other Operational Expenses -     39.13
Rates & Taxes  -     19.87
Security & House Keeping  -     0.21

Total   0.49   68.40

₹ in Lacs

3.35 The amount of Exchange Di�erence (Net)    
The Foreign Exchange Income / (Loss) of ₹ (258.93 lacs) {PY( ₹ 22.33 lacs)} resulting from settlement and realignment of foreign exchange transaction 
has been adjusted in the Statement of Pro�t & Loss. 

3.36 Employee Bene�ts
a)  De�ned Contribution Plans
The Company has recognised ₹ 250.17 lacs (PY ₹ 235.07 lacs) as contribution to provident fund in Statement of Pro�t & Loss.

 b)  De�ned Bene�t Plans
The Company has a de�ned bene�t gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed �ve years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days 
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded. The Company has also provided for Leave Encashment which is 
unfunded.

 The following tables summarize the components of net bene�t expense recognized in the Statement of Pro�t & Loss, the funded status and amounts 
recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans (as per Actuarial Valuation as on 31st March 2017).

 Leave encashment  Gratuity

Particulars As at  As at 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Discount Rate (based on the market yields available on 

Government bonds at the accounting date with term that 7.35% 7.75% 7.35% 7.75%

matches that of the liabilities) 

Salary increase (taking into account in�ation, seniority, 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25%

promotion and other relevant factor)

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 0.00% 0.00% 8.35% 8.35%

Average Outstanding Service of Employees upto retirement (years) 30.75 30.64 30.83 30.64

 The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave liability for the Company's plans are shown below :
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Changes in the present value of De�ned Bene�t Obligation are as follows:

 Leave encashment  Gratuity

Particulars As at  As at 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Present Value of De�ned Bene�t Obligation at the beginning of the year  66.15   57.78   208.48   172.24

Interest Cost  5.13   4.77   16.16   14.67

Past Service Cost  -     0.26   -     0.98

Current Service Cost  24.61   22.94   47.79   43.73

Bene�ts Paid  (12.93)  (4.55)  (43.24)  (7.24)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation  (13.23)  (15.05)  8.19   (15.90)

Present Value of De�ned Bene�t Obligation  at the end of the year  69.73   66.15   237.38   208.48

₹ in Lacs

Net Employees Bene�t Expense (recognized in the Statement of Pro�t & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2017

 Leave encashment  Gratuity

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Current Service Cost  24.61   22.94   47.79   43.73
Past Service Cost  -     0.26   -     0.98
Interest Cost  5.13   4.77   16.16   14.67
Expected return on plan assets -     -     (2.14)  (2.38)
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year  (13.23)  (15.05)  9.67   (15.65)
Expenses recognized in the statement of Pro�t & Loss 16.51 12.92 71.48 41.35
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Changes in the fair value of Plan Assets are as follows:    

     Gratuity

Particulars As at 31-Mar-17 As at  31-Mar-16

Fair value of the plan assets at the beginning of the year  25.62   27.17
Expected return on Plan Assets  2.14   2.38
Contribution by employer  -     3.55
Bene�ts Paid  (25.59)  (7.24)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on Plan Assets  (1.48)  (0.25)
Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year  0.69   25.62

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs

Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2017

 Leave encashment  Gratuity

Particulars As at  As at 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Present Value of De�ned Bene�t Obligation at the end of the year  69.72   66.15   237.38   208.48
Fair Value of Plan Assets -     -     0.69   25.62
Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet  (69.72)  (66.15)  (236.69)  (182.86)

₹ in Lacs



Bifurcation of Obligation at the end 31st March 2017 

 Leave encashment  Gratuity

Particulars As at  As at 

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Current Liability (Short Term)  3.15   4.19   9.86   14.05

Non Current Liability (Long Term)  66.57   61.96   226.83   168.81

Total  69.72   66.15   236.69   182.86

₹ in Lacs

3.37 Segment Reporting
As per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-108 “Operating Segments”, the Company’s segment reporting is as below: 

 The Company has identi�ed three reportable segments viz. Cinemas, Retail and Gold & Jewellery. Segments have been identi�ed and reported taking 
into account nature of products and services, the di�ering risks and returns and the internal business reporting systems. The accounting policies adopted 
for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of the Company with following additional policies for segment reporting.

 a) Revenue and expenses have been identi�ed to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses 
which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

 b) Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax related assets and other assets and 
liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.
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3.37.1 Primary Segment Information

 Particulars Period Cinemas Retail  Gold & Jewellery Wholesale Corporate & Others Total 
       (Unallocable)

1 Segment Revenue
 Net Sales/Income
 (There is no inter-segment revenue) For the year ended 31-Mar-17 11,989.50 20,783.10  68,103.05 480.38  606.46  101,962.49
   31-Mar-16  10,820.36   22,264.50   338,984.56  38,500.80  1,260.51   411,830.73

2 Segment Result For the year ended
 Before interest, other income,  31-Mar-17  1,895.78   (545.52)  1,706.36   (2,727.34)  (695.14)  (365.86)
 depreciation, non-cash expenses  31-Mar-16  2,035.90   (606.47)  14,023.35  2,455.53  (2,249.42)  15,658.89
 and taxes 

 Add: Other Income For the year ended 31-Mar-17  65.77   23.57   28.47   -     64.62   182.43
   31-Mar-16  23.75   36.86   7.72   -     57.71   126.04

 Less: Depreciation For the year ended 31-Mar-17  935.25   241.34   115.10  14.65  559.69   1,866.03
   31-Mar-16  906.94   263.37   112.57  12.83  620.59   1,916.30

 Less: Non-cash Items For the year ended 31-Mar-17  (8.64)  45.22   9,763.99   -     12.61   9,813.18 
   31-Mar-16  (7.17)  111.02   1,406.96   -     31.24   1,542.05

 Pro�t / (-) Loss before interest For the year ended 31-Mar-17  1,034.94   (808.51)  (8,144.26)  (2,741.99)  (1,202.82)  (11,862.64)
 and taxes  31-Mar-16  1,159.88   (944.00)  12,511.54  2,442.70  (2,843.54)  12,326.58

 Finance Cost For the year ended 31-Mar-17      11,753.87   11,753.87
   31-Mar-16      8,096.88   8,096.88

 Pro�t before taxes For the year ended 31-Mar-17       (23,616.51)
   31-Mar-16       4,229.70

 Taxes For the year ended 31-Mar-17      (4,691.41)  (4,691.41)
   31-Mar-16      290.16   290.16

 Net Pro�t after Taxes For the year ended 31-Mar-17       (18,925.10)
   31-Mar-16       3,939.54

3 Other Informations
 Segment Assets As at 31-Mar-17  8,807.30   4,363.80   1,37,367.13   -     18,656.37   169,194.60
   31-Mar-16  11,208.05   5,502.84   1,48,770.88  4,225.95  17,652.41   187,360.13

 Segment Liabilities As at 31-Mar-17  1,399.87   1,833.26   74,017.96   -     43,803.27   121,054.36
   31-Mar-16  1,135.58   2,058.47   72,927.13  1,423.41  42,784.46   120,329.05

₹ in Lacs
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 3.38  Related Party Disclosure
As per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-24 “Related Party Disclosures”, the Company’s related parties and transactions are disclosed below: 

a. List of related parties & relationships, where control exists
Holding Company
BTL Holding Company Limited (ceased w.e.f. 27.01.2017)

 Fellow Subsidiary Company
SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. (ceased w.e.f. 27.01.2017)
SRS Healthcare & Research Centre Limited (ceased w.e.f. 27.01.2017)

 Step Down Subsidiary Company
SRS Real Estate Ltd. (ceased w.e.f. 27.01.2017)
SRS Retreat Services Ltd. (ceased w.e.f. 27.01.2017)

b. Related parties & relationships with whom transactions have taken place during the year

i Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Dr. Anil Jindal - Chairman
Mr. Sunil Jindal  - Managing Director
Mr. Raju Bansal - Whole Time Director
Mr. Vinod Kumar  - Whole Time Director
Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta  - Chief Financial O�cer (resigned e�ective January 31, 2017)
Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra   - COO & Company Secretary
Mr. Sachin Goyal - Chief Financial O�cer (appointed January 27, 2017)
Mr. Abhishek Goyal - Whole Time Director & CFO (resigned e�ective June 1, 2016)
Ms. Kumud Aggarwal - Company Secretary 

ii Enterprises owned or signi�cantly in�uenced by KMP and/or their Relatives
SRS Finance Ltd.
BTL Holding Company Limited
SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd.
SRS Real Estate Ltd.
SRS Bright Retail Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS E-Retail Ltd.)
SRS Shining Ornaments Limited (Formerly known as Jai Shiv Jewellers & Manufacturers Ltd)
SRS  Social Welfare Society

3.37.2 Secondary Segment Information    
Secondary segment for the company constitutes domestic market and international market.

  For the year ended

 Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

1 Segment Revenue
 Net Sales/Income (There is no inter-segment revenue)
   -    Within India  101,155.90   322,073.06
   -    Outside India   806.59   89,757.67

 Total Revenue  101,962.49   411,830.73 

₹ in Lacs

  As at

 Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

2 Segment Assets
   -    Within India  138,084.43   152,974.08
   -    Outside India   31,110.17   34,386.05

 Total Assets  169,194.60   187,360.13

3 Segment Liability
   -    Within India  103,690.88   100,611.16
   -    Outside India   17,363.48   19,717.89

 Total Liability  121,054.36   120,329.05

₹ in Lacs
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c. Transactions with related Parties:        

    For the year ended

S. No. Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

1 SRS Finance Ltd. Loan Received Liability  -     1,166.92
  Loan Disposed o� Liability  -     700.74
  Interest Paid Expense  -     38.13
  Rent Received Income  12.00   12.00

2 SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. Purchase of Building Material Expense  -     0.18
  (Repair & Maintenance Expenses) 
  CAM Charges Paid Expense  28.42   65.26
  Electricity Charges Paid Expense  15.98   34.67

3 BTL Holding Company Limited  Other advances Liability  135.02   -
  Interest Expense Expense  2.48   -
  Rent Received Income  12.00   12.00

4 SRS Bright Retail Ltd. (Formerly Advance Given Assets  6.02   -
 known as SRS E-Retail Ltd.) Rent paid Expense  2.11   -
  Rent Received Income  2.21   -
  CAM and Electricity Income Income  1.43   -
  Sale of goods Income  25.40   -

5 SRS Shining Ornaments Limited Job Work Charges Expense  -     47.74

6 SRS Social Welfare Society Corporate Social Responsibility Expense  80.30   95.25
  Expenses 

7 Dr. Anil Jindal Director’s Remuneration Expense  43.10   89.63

8 Mr. Sunil Jindal Director’s Remuneration Expense  26.50   48.00

9 Mr. Raju Bansal Director’s Remuneration Expense  16.73   29.86

10 Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta Director’s Remuneration Expense  13.73   29.86

11 Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta Remuneration Expense  10.12   17.09

12 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra Remuneration Expense  12.02   17.37

13 Mr. Sachin Goyal Remuneration Expense  1.60   -
  Director’s Remuneration Expense  6.40   -

14 Mr. Abhishek Goyal Director’s Remuneration Expense  1.60   3.20

15 Ms. Kumud Aggarwal Remuneration Expense  3.91   0.98

d. Closing balance with related parties 

    As at

S. No. Name of the Party Particulars Nature 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

1 SRS Finance Ltd. Non Trade Receivable Assets  3.45   1.05

2 SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. Non Trade Payable Liability  0.56    42.45

3 SRS Worldwide FZC Investments in Subsidiary Assets  -     92.96
  Advances recoverable in cash or in Assets  -     2.30
  kind or for which value to be
  received

4 BTL Holding Company Limited  Others Liability  135.02   -
  Interest Payable Liability  2.23   -
  Non Trade Payable Liability  2.20   0.18

₹ in Lacs
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   As at 
S. No. Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature

 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

1 BTL Holding Company Limited  Corporate Guarantee taken O� Balance  83,500.00  83,500.00

2 SRS Retreat Services Ltd. Corporate Guarantee taken Sheet Item -  83,500.00

₹ in Lacs

3.39 In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard "Ind AS-17 on Leases" the following disclosures in respect of operating leases is made as under:

 A. Assets taken on operating lease

a) The Company has taken certain shops/o�ces/other Fixed Assets on non-cancellable operating lease. Minimum lease payments of ₹ 3825.85 lacs

 (PY ₹ 4019.47 lacs) are charged to Statement of Pro�t & Loss.

b) Total contingent rents (Calculated on Revenue Sharing Basis) recognized as expense in the statement of pro�t and loss for the year  

 is ₹ 217.68 lacs (PY ₹ 263.69 lacs).

c) Future commitments in respect of minimum lease payments payable in respect of aforesaid lease entered by the Company are as follows:

 As at 
 Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

a. Not later than one year  3,498.68   4,203.74
b. Later than one year and not later than �ve years  14,203.42   16,812.96
c. Later than �ve years  8,750.05   10,931.86

₹ in Lacs

e. O� balance sheet items with related parties

    As at

S. No. Name of the Party Particulars Nature 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

5 SRS Entertainment India Ltd. Investments in Subsidiary Assets  2,666.00   1,834.00
 (Formerly known as Non-Trade Receivables Assets  4.26   -
 SRS Entertainment Ltd.) Trade Payable Liability  4.34   -
  Loan to Subsidiary Assets  54.37   328.67

6 SRS Shining Ornaments Limited Advance to suppliers Assets  -     6.74

7 SRS Bright Retail Ltd. Trade Receivables Assets  19.90   -
 (Formerly known as Non-Trade Payable Liability  1.91   -
 SRS E-Retail Ltd.) Advance others Assets  6.02   -

8 SRS Social Welfare Society Advance others Assets  8.20   -

9 Dr. Anil Jindal Director’s Remuneration payable Liability  1.69   4.51

10 Mr. Sunil Jindal Director’s Remuneration payable Liability -     3.22

11 Mr. Raju Bansal Director’s Remuneration payable Liability  0.95   1.99

12 Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta Director’s Remuneration payable Liability  4.11   1.88

13 Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta Remuneration payable Liability  -     1.06

14 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra Remuneration payable Liability  0.83   1.25

15 Mr. Sachin Goyal Remuneration payable Liability  0.68   -

16 Mr. Abhishek Goyal Director’s Remuneration payable Liability  -     0.73

17 Ms. Kumud Aggarwal Remuneration payable Liability 0.34   0.35

₹ in Lacs
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 As at 

 Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

a. Not later than one year  105.24   111.38

b. Later than one year and not later than �ve years  296.32   232.97

c. Later than �ve years  78.28   16.39

₹ in Lacs

 d) Sub-lease payments received (on accrual basis) of ₹ 142.05 lacs (PY ₹ 132 lacs) are recognized in the Statement of Pro�t & Loss.

e) The total of future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable sub-leases at the Balance Sheet date are

 ₹ 378.14 lacs (PY ₹ 261.58 lacs).

B. Assets given on operating lease

a) Future minimum lease payments receivable by the Company in respect of non-cancellable operating lease for shops / kiosks entered by the

 Company are as follows:

 b) Total contingent rents (Calculated on Revenue Sharing Basis) recognized as income in the statement of pro�t and loss for the year is

 ₹ 29.06 lacs (PY ₹ 36.06 lacs).

3.40 In the opinion of the management, the value on realization of current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary course of business would not be 

less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions for all known liabilities have been made.

3.41 The fair values of the �nancial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 

transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

 1. Fair value of current assets which includes loans given, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other �nancial assets 

approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

 2. Financial instruments with �xed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and 

individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these 

receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not materially di�erent from their carrying amounts.

3.42 Financial risk management

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of �nancial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company’s 

senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk management framework. The Company has 

constituted a Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The 

Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk 

limits and controls, periodically review the changes in market conditions and re�ect the changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks and 

mitigating actions are also placed before the Audit Committee of the Company.

 Management of liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its �nancial liabilities. The Company’s approach in 

managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have su�cient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing 

this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions.   

 Due to slow recovery from debtors, the Company is facing liquidity crunch during the year and has not been able to repay of its public deposits 

and bank interest. Therefore, the Company has taken extention fromm National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for repayment of public deposits. 

Also, the Company has submitted the request for restructuring of accounts vide letter dated 4th July 2016 followed by deliberations in various 

consortium forums inter-alia including meeting of Joint Lender Forum (JLF) with the sole objective of �nding a solution aimed at revival.
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 Management of market risk

The above risks may a�ect the Company’s income and expenses, or the value of its �nancial instruments. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk 

arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to US Dollar and AED.

 The Company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impacting the Company’s exports revenue and imports of raw material. As at 31st 

March, 2017, the net unhedged exposure to the Company on holding �nancial assets (trade receivables) and liabilities (trade payables) other than in their 

functional currency amounted to Rs. 13,264.82 lacs receivable (31st March, 2016: Rs. 14,555.50  lacs and 1st April, 2015 Rs.  20,049.11 lacs).

 Management of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of �nancial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations.

 a). Trade receivables

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk from the trade receivable as at 31st March, 2017, 31st March, 2016 and 1st April, 2015 is the carrying value 

of trade receivable in the �nancial assets.

Domestic Exposure

The Company is exposed to risk of recovery from its trade receivables in jewellery segment amounting to Rs. 37,133.17 lacs. The Company has made 

provision for doubtful debts amounting to Rs. 9,283.29 during the FY 2016-17. Management is assured about the recoverability of the Foreign Trade 

Receivable and taking all necessary steps for the recoverability of the same.  Out of aforesaid Trade receivables, Company has received Rs. 327.25 lacs 

subsequent to 31st March 2017 upto 30th May, 2017.

Overseas Exposure

The Company is exposed to risk of recovery from its trade receivables in jewellery segment amounting to Rs. 30,619 lacs. Management is assured about 

the recoverability of the Foreign Trade Receivable and taking all necessary steps for the recoverability of the same.  Out of aforesaid Trade receivables, 

Company has received Rs. 9315 lacs subsequent to 31st March 2017 upto 30th May, 2017.

 b). Other �nancial assets

The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks. The Company has given inter-corporate deposits (ICD) only to 

its subsidiary amounting to Rs. 54.37 lacs (31st March, 2016: Rs. 328.67 lacs and 1st April, 2015: Rs. Nil).

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March, 2017, 31st March, 2016 and 1st April, 2015 is the carrying value of each class of �nancial assets.

Particulars Carrying Amount Payable within Payable Total
   1 year after 1 year

As at 31st March 2017
Borrowings 96,001.10   83,336.97   5,535.45  88,872.42
Trade Payables  21,210.59   21,210.59   -  21,130.03
Security Deposits  94.34   52.97   31.37  93.94
Other Financial Liabilities   2,815.52   2,815.52   -  9,762.38

As at 31st March 2016
Borrowings  70,259.42   68,218.27   2,041.15 70,255.77
Trade Payables  45,357.60   45,357.60   - 45,321.28
Security Deposits  28.33   20.30   8.03 28.13
Other Financial Liabilities  2,358.08   2,358.08   - 2,195.47

As at 1st April 2015
Borrowings 60,206.80 57,709.43 2,497.37 60,206.80
Trade Payables  34,334.44   34,334.44   - 34,327.87
Security Deposits  35.49  6.76   28.73 35.49
Other Financial Liabilities  1,888.31   1,888.31  - 1,772.53

₹ in Lacs

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company’s �nancial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash �ows along with its 

carrying value as at the Balance Sheet date:          
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3.43 Salient features of the Financial statements of the subsidiaries- 

(pursuant to �rst proviso of sub-section (3) of Section 129 of Companies Act, 2013, read with general instructions for the preperation of consolidated �nancial 

statements)          

3.44 In the opinion of the management all transactions with the associated enterprieses are made on the basis of arm length and/or at comparative/bene�t 

assessment basis. The report of accountant u/s 92E ((Transfer Pricing) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and related records will be submitted along with Income Tax 
Return. The company does not expect any material libility on this account in view of fair assessment of mark ups, mangement  charges and/other costs. 

3.45 The consolidated �nancial statements are the Group’s �rst Ind AS conslidated �nancial statements. The �gures for the previous year have been restated, 
regrouped and reclassi�ed wherever required to comply with the requiretment of Ind AS schedule III. 

3.46 All amounts in the �nancial statements are rounded o� to the nearest Rupee in lacs, except as otherwise stated.

3.47 Note 1 to 3.47 are annexed to and form an integral part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st Mar 2017, Statement of Pro�t and Loss, statement of cash �ows and 

statement of changes in equity for the year ended as on that date.
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(CA Pankaj Kumar) (CA Naresh Kumar) (Sunil Jindal)  (Raju Bansal) 
           Partner Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
     M. No. 091822 M. No. 085238 DIN: 00013791  DIN-00007344

   

  (Navneet Kwatra)  (Sachin Goyal) 
Place: Faridabad  C.O.O. & Company Secretary  Chief Financial O�cer
Date: 30th  May, 2017   M. No. 16672

Name of Entity Net Assets =  Share in Pro�t 
 (Total assets minus total liabilities)  or Losses

 As % of  Amount As % of  Amount
 consolidated net assets (Rs. in lacs) consolidated  (Rs. in lacs)
   pro�t or loss

Parent
SRS Limited 94.18%  45,337.71  84.81%  (16,050.80)

Subsidiary
SRS Worldwide(FZC) (Foreign) 0.00%  -    14.50%  (2,744.71)
SRS Entertainment Ltd 5.82% 2,802.53  0.69%  (129.88)
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